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1 Letter to Stockholders

 I. Business Performance in 2007

1. Operation Review
The year of 2007 was full of challenges and opportunities.  Operating costs continued 

to rise, not just in fuel prices but also in the charges of terminal, canal and inland transport.  
The US sub-prime crisis affected consumer’s confi dence and dampened import demand.  
Furthermore, the impact of weakening dollar was refl ected in surging oil prices and heavily 
weighed on carrier’s cost burden. 

Except for the slack imports to the US, most of other trade lanes posted solid growth.  
To reap more profi ts from the changing market, we adjusted fl eet deployment in line with 
world economic development and conducted a yield management program to improve 
profitability. The strategy worked well and produced a better-than-expected financial 
outcome in the challenging environment. 

To cope with industry development and to cater for customer demand, we launched 
“Evergreen Line” as the new service brand name on May 01 2007.  The new marketing 
strategy served to consolidate the business operation of Evergreen Marine Corp. and 
other subsidiary companies in the shipping industry. 

To our customers, the new business structure offered more convenience with one 
contact for all trade lanes.  For the company, the single brand name strategy streamlined 
our business structure and further strengthened our competitiveness. 

To ensure thorough implementation of company policy in every corner of our global 
network, in October we held a Global Agency Management Meeting, which witnessed 
the attending by around 200 of Evergreen Line’s senior management and agency partners 
from 71 countries.  

The two-day meeting disclosed important guidelines for future planning and covered 
essential topics such as service planning, market analysis, e-commerce enhancement, 
operation safety, schedule integrity, and cost reduction, etc. 

To pave the way for long-term growth, we continued to expand our service network 
through joint venture and slot exchange agreement with strategic partners.

In April 2007, Evergreen and COSCO upgraded the services to South Africa and South 
America.  The new ESA string skipped South Africa and substantially shortened transit 
time between Asia and the east coast of South America.  The new FAX loop was extended 
northwards to China and provided a wider scope for cargo to South Africa.

In May 2007, Evergreen teamed up with COSCO in the launch of SRS (Straits – Red 
Sea Shuttle) service in response to greater demand for capacity between the Red Sea and 
Asia.  This is another step forward to enhance our coverage in the booming market after 
the capacity expansion of FRS service with COSCO in 2006.
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In September 2007, Evergreen joined efforts with Wan Hai to start the new NSE service 
connecting Japan, Taiwan, Hong Kong, Vietnam and Thailand.  The new service catered to 
increasing space demand and further complemented our substantial presence in the intra-
Asian trades. 

From November 2007, Evergreen started a regular service to the booming Eastern 
Mediterranean market with the launch of AEM (Asia – Eastern Mediterranean) service to 
cope with rapid growth in the region.

In November 2007, Evergreen entered a slot-charter agreement with Maersk Line 
to serve the SE Asia-Australia trade. The new option of AU-3 service benefi ted from the 
additional hub of Tanjung Pelepas in addition to Singapore, and provided more effi cient 
transshipment link than previous participation in the ASA service.  

Evergreen extended the lease on Kaohsiung’s Container Terminal No 4 and No 5.  
The lease extension is part of our strategy to provide effi cient transport services through 
investment in upstream and downstream businesses.

For third year running, Evergreen was chosen the most prestigious enterprise in a 
survey conducted by local Commonwealth magazine.  The award is seen as industrial 
Oscar in Taiwan and well demonstrates our competitiveness.  

In the aspect of service quality, Evergreen was once again selected as “Best Shipping 
Line Intra-Asia” in the Asian Freight & Supply Chain Awards, held by Cargonews Asia.  

2. Fulfi llment Ratio of Financial Target
Compared with budget and actual operating revenue in 2007, the fulfi llment ratio is 

100.56%; Compared with mentioned two income before income fax, the fulfi llment ratio is 
112.89%.

3. Annual Accounts & Profi tability Analysis
The operating revenue in 2007 amounted to NT$27,844,435,000, the operating 

income was NT$2,056,646,000, and the profit after tax was NT$10,381,702,000. The 
Return on Assets was 11.94%, Return on Equity was 16.35%, and EPS was NT$3.53.

4. Research & Development
Our award-winning e-commerce service is highly exalted by our customers for its user-

friendly features. Service information can be inquired on-line and obtained instantly.  For 
registered customers, shipment reports can be subscribed for regular update.  

The cargo tracking system helps customers to trace shipment more easily and 
have better control of cargo status.  The shipment statistics function provides the latest 
shipment progress and serves as an advanced tool for cargo management.
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In 2007, we enhanced the electronic report function by providing various forms of 
matching charts to the statistics, which are now available in excel format for customer’s 
easy compilation and further analysis. 

After the launch of regional information websites in Taiwan, Hong Kong and China, we 
extended the e-commerce capability to Europe.  In 2007, three more information websites 
were set up in Germany, Italy and Netherlands.  

The information websites provide the latest industry news in addition to shipping 
related information such as sailing schedules, exchange rate, B/L available time, etc.  The 
information is available both in English and in local languages.

 II. Business Plans for 2008

1. Operation Guideline
(1) Faced with skyrocketing oil prices, we will enforce floating mechanism of bunker 

surcharges to ease the fl uctuation of fuel costs.  Besides, we have devised a bunker 
formula to recover extra costs where there is no unifi ed trade announcement.

(2) In response to increasing costs and changing markets, we will adopt more active 
approaches for effi cient service adjustment, profi table cargo selection and optimal slot 
utilization.

(3) The exploitation of new market is high on the agenda of our strategic planning. We will 
seek opportunities to launch new services in line with market development and future 
growth.

(4) We will keep an eye on the development of shipbuilding market and will take 
advantage of proper timing to start next newbuilding program to maintain the leading 
scale of our fl eet.

(5) We will strengthen strategic alliance with partners through joint venture and slot 
exchange agreement to offer a great variety of services and to improve business 
performance.

2. Business Forecast
According to International Monetary Fund, GDP growth of the world economy is 

approximately 4% between 2006 and 2010.  Based on the forecast, container shipping 
market is expected to produce around 10% of cargo growth for the years to come.  

Even though the delivery of VLCS (Very Large Container Ships) will continue, the 
increase of effective slots will be lower than newbuilding statistics.  Recent development 
has brought structural changes to fleet deployment and caused mitigating effects to 
capacity growth, such as port congestion, fuel reduction and feeder loop expansion.
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Looking ahead, the development of container shipping industry is expected to 
continue along the rising path on the basis of continuous cargo growth and stable capacity 
increase.

3. Important Policies
It is our mission to be customer’s best business partner. With a service network 

stretching across the globe, Evergreen has always been a leading carrier in container 
shipping industry and plays an important part to facilitate the world trade development. 

As a member of global community, we embrace social responsibility as one of the 
company’s core values.  As its name proclaims, Evergreen is a company that spares 
no efforts in environmental protection and helps to preserve a clean and sustainable 
environment for future generations.

For almost forty years, this company has been committed to providing more effi cient, 
convenient and reliable services to our customers. We will carry on with the pursuit for 
service quality and operation safety, which, in turn, will ensure our long-term growth.

Shareholders’ support is the momentum behind our endeavors.  Evergreen and all 
of the employees will make the utmost efforts to meet every challenge lying ahead to 
safeguard the interests of every shareholder.  Finally, we would like to wish each and every 
one of you a prosperous and successful 2008.
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 1. Brief Introduction

(1) Registration Date of the Company: September 25, 1968

(2) A Chronology of Evergreen Marine Corporation (Taiwan) Ltd.
1968: Established with a capital of NT$2 million.
1969: Launched a Far East/Arabian-Persian Gulf regular liner service.
1972: Launched a Far East/Caribbean Sea regular liner service.
1975: Launched a Far East/US East Coast regular full container service.
1976: Launched a Far East/US West Coast regular full container service.
1979: Launched a Far East/Persian Gulf regular full container service.
 Launched a Far East/Europe regular full container service.
      Provided free training for maritime navigation and engineering students from the 

maritime school in Taiwan on board its own, and also the country’s first, training 
vessel.

1984: Launched the unprecedented Round-the-World service eastbound and westbound 
regular full container service.

1985: Launched a Western Mediterranean and US East Coast regular full container service.
1987: Listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange with capital totaling NT$10 billion.
1989: Introduced a Far East/US West Coast refrigerated container service.
1993: Evergreen’s capital further increased to NT$11 billion.
     Established Peony Investment SA and Greencompass Marine SA
1994: Evergreen’s capital was further increased to NT$12.6 billion.
1995: Evergreen’s capital further increased to NT$13.9 billion.
1996: Introduced a Far East/Mediterranean/Europe joint service with Lloyd Triestino.
 Issued Global Depository Receipts to the amount of US$115 million on the London 

Stock Exchange.
 Evergreen’s capital further increased to NT$15.6 billion. 
1997: Introduced a Far East/Mauritius/South Africa/East Coast South America full 

container liner service, formerly introduced and operated by Uniglory Marine in 
1993.

      Awarded ISM CODE (International Safety Management Code) by NK, Japan.
 Introduced a Far East/Australia full container joint service with Lloyd Triestino.
 Evergreen’s capital further increased to NT$16.7 billion.
      Colon Container Terminal SA in Panama became fully operational as a common 

user facility.

2 General Condition of the Corporation
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1998: Launched a South America Coast /North America liner service.
     Evergreen’s capital further increased to NT$17.2 billion.
 Named “Company of the Year 1998” by Containerisation International.
1999: Evergreen’s capital further increased to NT$18.6 billion.
2000: Introduced a Far East/Australia full container joint service with COSCO.
      Evergreen Container Terminal No 5, Berth 79, 80 and 81 in Kaohsiung Port 

became fully operational and Taiwan’s customs authorities approved the operation 
of an “overall self-management “system to improve and upgrade Evergreen’s 
service to shippers.

 Evergreen’s capital further increased to NT$20.1 billion.
2001: Introduced a Southwestern Asia (Sri Lanka and India)/Europe joint service.
      Taranto Container Terminal in the south of Italy, invested in by Evergreen Group, 

opened for business with comprehensive feeder network serving other Italian 
ports, the West and East Mediterranean, the Adriatic Sea and the Black Sea.

      The Evergreen Seafarer Training Center was awarded ISO-9001:2000 by DNV. The 
training center, an Evergreen Group investment opened in 1999, aims to polish the 
professional skills of the Group’s crew members, to reduce the risk of accidents or 
environmental pollution at sea and to conform to international regulations.

      Jointly established Charng Yang Development Co Ltd with Tesco Taiwan to invest 
in the Tesco Chingkuo Store in Taoyuan City.

      Named by the Far Eastern Economic Review as one of the top 10 Taiwan 
enterprises for nine years consecutively for its high quality services, innovative, 
long-term vision and fi nancial security.

2002: Introduced two pendulum services, the US West Coast/Asia/Europe (WAE) and the 
North Asia/US East Coast/Europe (NUE), to replace two longstanding Round-the-
World Eastbound and Westbound services.

      Launched West Coast of South America service linking the Caribbean hub port in 
Coco Solo, Panama with fi ve ports in Colombia, Ecuador, Peru and Chile.

      Awarded the fi rst ever recognition for “Environmental Excellence” by  Port of Los 
Angeles .

      Certificated for “Safety, Quality & Environmental Management” by American 
Bureau of Shipping.

      Awarded ISO-9001:2000 by DNV.
      Named by the Far Eastern Economic Review as one of the top 10 Taiwan 

enterprises for ten years consecutively.
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2003:  Named “Excellence in Commitment to Training” by Lloyd’s List.
      Awarded the fi rst annual award for “E-commerce Excellence” by LOG-NET.
      Launched a Straits Red Sea express joint service with COSCO, Wan Hai and 

Hapag-Lloyd.
      Launched a joint service with Simatech to link Asia, India and the Gulf.
2004:  Awarded the second annual award for “E-commerce Excellence” by LOG-NET.
2004:  Launched a Far East/Australia full container joint service with Haijin and Hapag 

Lloyd.
2004:  Launched a North China/Singapore/Malaysia/Hong Kong full container joint 

service with Wan Hai and Yang Ming.
2005:  Opened the new state-of-the-art Pierce County Container Terminal at the Port of 

Tacoma, invested in by Evergreen Goup.
          2005: Evergreen, Lloyd Trestino and COSCO upgraded the Far East/South Africa/

South America joint service, extend the port coverage to Shanghai, Ningbo and 
Yantian in China.

2005:  Awarded the 19th Asian Freight & Supply Chain Awards for “Best Shipping Line-
Intra Asia” by Cargonews Asia.

2005:  Launched a Japan/Taiwan/Ho Chi Minh Express Service (JHX) with Yang Ming Line.
2005:  Merge the Far East /Red Sea (FRS) service and the Strait /Red Sea Express (SRX) 

service into a single new FRS service with Hapag-Lloyd and Cosco Container Line.
2006:  Awarded the “Corporate Social Responsibility” by Containerisation International.
2006:  Awarded the 20th Asian Freight & Supply Chain Awards for ”Best Shipping Line-

Intra Asia” by Cargonews Asia. 
2006:  Upgraded a Far East/Red Sea service (FRS) with Cosco Container Lines.
2006:  Launched a China/India Express service CIX with Hapag-Lloyd Container Line 

and Wan Hai Lines.
2006:  Launched a Taiwan/Hong Kong/Ho Chi Minh Express Service (THX) with OOCL 

and Yang Ming Line.
2006:  Launched a China/Panama /US East Coast (CUE) with Cosco Container Lines.
2006:  Launched a China/Straits/India Service (CSI) with Yang Ming Line.
2006:  Entered a slot-charter agreement with Hanjin Shipping Company on the trade 

lane between the East Coasts of North and South America (ECAS)and another 
encompassing Asia, South Africa and South America(ESA).
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2006: Awarded the 2007 China Freight Industry Awards for General Service - China/
America Route Best Shipping Company (silver prize) ; China/Mediterranean 
Route Best Shipping Company (bronze prize); and China/Japan Route, China/
Korea Route and China/Southeast Asia Route Best Shipping Company (award of 
excellence) by China Shipping Gazette.

2006:  Awarded the "Benchmark Enterprise in Taiwan 2006" by Commonwealth Magazine.
2007:  Split the Asia/South Africa/South America(ESA) service into Asia/ South America 

(ESA) service and Far East/South Africa service(FAX) with Cosco Container Lines.
2007:  Awarded the 21th Asian Freight & Supply Chain Awards for ”Best Shipping Line-

Intra Asia” by Cargonews Asia. 
2007:  Launched a Straits/Red Sea Shuttle Service (SRS) with Cosco Container Lines.
2007:  Launched a Japan/Thailand Express Service (NSE/NS6) with Wan Hai Lines.
2007:  Awarded the "Benchmark Enterprise in Taiwan 2007" by Commonwealth Magazine.
2007:  Launched a Asia/East Mediterranean Service (AEM).
2007:  Launched a South East Asia / Australia Service (AU3) with Maersk Line. 
2008:  Launched a China/Europe/Mediterranean Service (CEM) with Maersk Line. 

2008:  Launched a Kaohsiung/Haiphong Shuttle Service (KHP).
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 2. Organization

CLINIC DIV.

LOGISTICS DIV.
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SUPERVISORS

STOCKHOLDERS
MEETING
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DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN

PRESIDENT

AUDITING
DIV.

PROJECT
DIV.

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS
COORDINATION DIV.

CORPORATE OPERATION DIV.

ENGINEERING DIV.

KAOHSIUNG TERMINAL DIV.

SHIPUBILDING DEPT.

PERSONNEL DIV.

PUBLIC RELATIONS DIV.

FINANCE DIV.

LABOR SAFETY & HEALTH DIV.

GENERAL AFFAIRS DEPT.
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 3. Directors& Supervisor

Date: 2008/4/30

    Title Name Elect Date Note

Chairman & Director Wang Long-shung 2007.06.27 *

Director Chang Yung-fa 2007.06.27

Director Lin Sun-san 2007.06.27 *

Director Kuo Shiuan-yu 2007.06.27

Director Yeh Slin 2007.06.27

Director Chang Kuo-cheng 2007.06.27 **

Director Yen Ho-yao 2007.06.27

Supervisor Ko Lee-ching 2007.06.27

Supervisor Kulai Mei-shueh 2007.06.27 ***

* : Representative of Evergreen Airline Services Corporation.
** : Representative of Falcon International Services Ltd.
*** : Representative of Ultra International Investments Ltd.
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 1. Business Highlights.

Overall, global cargo market maintained stable growth in 2007. But regionally, there 
were different developments in each trade lane.  

Due to the downturn of US housing market, Trans-Pacifi c eastbound trade lost steam 
and slowed sharply.  The westbound traffi c showed a more exciting story.  Exports from 
Asia to Europe continued on the booming trend.  The growth to East Mediterranean was 
particularly impressive spurred by rapid economic expansion.  Surging demand for oil 
and commodities substantially increased the purchasing power of emerging markets and 
fueled the hyper-growth of their import demand.

In response to the changes of global shipping market, we adopted a fl exible strategy 
in fleet deployment.  Along with the launch of new services, we continued to adjust 
service pattern in line with market demand and achieved remarkable improvements in 
terms of transit time and slot utilization.

In addition to the expansion of our transport network, we further strengthened the 
cooperation with other carriers.  Based on our position in each market, we selected 
complementary partners for strategic alliance to extend our service scope and to improve 
operating effi ciency.

Our service deployment for 2007 is outlined as follows:

(1) Mainline Services
NUE (North Asia–U.S. East Coast–Europe) service
This pendulum service connects Trans-Pacifi c and Trans-Atlantic trades by a fl eet of 
10 D-type vessels and 2 R-type vessels. 
UAM (U.S. West Coast–Asia-Mediterranean) service
This pendulum service covers Trans-Pacific and Asia-Mediterranean trades by 12 
U-type vessels.
HTW (Hong Kong, Taiwan–U.S. West Coast) service
This loop serves the Asia – Pacifi c Southwest region by 4 U-type and 1 E-type vessels.
TPS (Trans-Pacifi c Southwest) service
This loop serves the trade lane between Asia and the Pacifi c Southwest by 4 E-type 
and 1 S-type vessels.
CPS (China-U.S. Southwest) service
This loop serves the trade lane between Central China and U.S. Southwest by 2 
U-type and 2 DX-type vessels.
CPN (China, Korea-U.S. Northwest) service
This loop serves the trade lane of Asia to/from Northwest of the U.S. and Canada by 
5 G-type vessels.

3 Business Development Outline
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AUE (Asia-U.S. East Coast) service
This all-water service covers the Asia-USEC trade lane with a fl eet of 8 R-type vessels.
AUX (Asia-U.S. East Coast Express) service
Evergreen deploys 2 DX-type and 2 M-type vessels in the joint service with ZIM, 
which covers US east coast and offers transit link to the Caribbean.
CUE (Asia-U.S. East Coast Express) service
Evergreen deploys 4 GX-type vessels in the joint service with Cosco, which offers 
direct link to the west coast of Mexico and transit connection to the Caribbean.
CEM (China-Mediterranean-Europe) service
This service is composed by 8 CX-type vessels and connects China’s export to 
Mediterranean and Europe. 
CES (China- Europe Shuttle) service
This service is run by 8 S-type vessels, covering Taiwan, South China, SE Asia, India 
Sub-continent to Europe.
ADR (Asia-Adriatic) service
Evergreen deploys 6 F-type and 1 O-type vessels in the weekly loop, which serves 
the niche market of Adriatic Sea.
AEM (Far East-East Mediterranean) service
This string serves the trade lane between the Asia and the booming East 
Mediterranean by 4 O-type, 2 N-type and 1 chartered vessels.
ISE (India Subcontinent-Europe) service
This service provides an efficient link between Indian subcontinent and Europe.  
Evergreen deployed 1 chartered vessel to the joint service with K-Line, MISC, SCI, 
ZIM Line and Yang Ming.
ESA (Far East-South America) service
This service is operated by 6 chartered vessels and 3 Cosco vessels.  The new pattern 
skips South Africa and substantially improves the transit time to the east coast of 
South America.
PWS (Panama-West Coast of South America) service
This service is composed of a quartet of geared vessels and provides a weekly 
connection to/from West Coast of South America via our transit hub in Panama.
FAX (Far East-Africa Express) service
This service is jointly operated by 5 G-type vessels and three Cosco vessels.  The 
extended service route offers a more comprehensive coverage from Far East to South 
Africa and complements the revamped ESA string.
EUSA (Europe-East Coast of South America) service
This service is jointly operated with K Line, CSCL and Maruba, linking Europe and 
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the east coast of South America.  Evergreen offers 1 chartered vessel out of a fl eet of 
fi ve.
NCA (North Asia-China-Australia) service
This string is jointly operated with Hanjin and Hapag-Lloyd.  Evergreen offers three 
P-type vessels out of a fl eet of fi ve.
APG (Asia-Arabian Persian Gulf) service
This loop is composed of a fl eet of 6 GX/G-type vessels and offers a weekly service 
between Far East and the Persian Gulf. 
CPG (China-Arabian Persian Gulf) service
This service is jointly operated with Cosco, linking China with Persian Gulf and 
Pakistan.  Evergreen offers three GX-type vessels and Cosco deploys another three. 
FRS (Far East-Red Sea) service
This service is jointly operated with Cosco, connecting Far East with the Red Sea 
market.  Evergreen offers 5 GX/G-type vessels out of a fl eet of seven.
EUG (Europe-USEC-Gulf of Mexico) service
Evergreen deploys 1 chartered vessel to cooperate with CSCL and CMA in the joint 
service, covering Europe, US east coast and the Gulf of Mexico.
MUS (Mediterranean-USEC) service
Evergreen deploys 1 O-type vessel and a comparable chartered vessel in the joint 
service with CMA, connecting Mediterranean and US east coast.
FAL-1 / FAL-3 (Asia-Europe) service
Evergreen takes slots on CMA’s weekly services through a slot exchange agreement. 
MEX (Asia-Mediterranean) service
Evergreen takes slots on CMA’s weekly service through a slot exchange agreement.  
AU-3 (Asia-Australia) service
Evergreen charters space from Maersk for the SE Asia – Australia shuttle service. The 
slot arrangement replaces our previous participation in ASA service and offers a more 
effi cient link to our transit network. 
SNT (North America and South America East Coast) service
Evergreen charters slots from Hamburg-Sud for a weekly service between the Atlantic 
coasts of North America and South America.

(2) Regional Feeder Networks 
East Asia
A comprehensive service network is built on the transit hubs of Kaohsiung and Hong 
Kong and covers all major ports in Taiwan, China, Japan and Korea.
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South East Asia
Complemented by selected common feeder loops, our dedicated services crisscross 
South East Asia via Singapore and Tanjung Pelepas (Malaysia), offering effi cient link 
and comprehensive coverage in the bustling market.
Indian Subcontinent
Evergreen uses Singapore, Tanjung Pelepas, and Colombo (Sri Lanka) as transit hubs 
to connect with mainline services to/from North America, Europe and other markets.
Mediterranean
In addition to direct calls by mainline services, our dedicated facility in Taranto (Italy) 
provides congestion-free operation and efficient connection to major ports in the 
Mediterranean basin. 
Intra-Europe & Baltic
Rotterdam serves as the transit center of our feeder loops and extends the scope of 
our mainline services to Ireland, Baltic countries and Iberia peninsula.
Caribbean
Several regional loops radiate from CCT (Colon Container Terminal, Panama) and 
extend the coverage of long-haul services to major ports in Central America and the 
Caribbean Sea.
West Coast of South America
Colon Container Terminal is used as a transit hub to connect long-haul services from 
Asia, North America and Europe to the Pacifi c Coast of South America.

 2. Business Environment

Attracted by cost advantage, more and more European manufacturers followed 
the outsourcing trend of Trans-Pacific trade and transferred their production bases to 
China.  The structural change of supply chain turned regional delivery into long-haul 
transportation.  Ensuing migration of cargo generated huge space demand and added 
momentum to the growth of Far East – Europe trade.

In spite of the slowdown of US imports, the corresponding capacity reduction helped 
to sustain slot utilization and avoided decrease of freight rates in Trans-Pacifi c eastbound 
trade.  The balance of demand and supply maintained a stable market condition and 
provided a solid foundation for future recovery.  

Skyrocketing prices of energy and commodities boosted the economic expansion of 
emerging markets and increased their appetite for import products.  The prosperity was 
well refl ected in the booming trades from Asia to Middle East, South Africa and South 
America, etc.
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Although the delivery of VLCS (Very Large Container Ships) caused concerns of 
overcapacity, the growth of effective slots was lower than expected due to the mitigating 
effects of port congestion, longer trade routes and the extra tonnage demand for fuel-
saving purpose.

To improve the efficiency of our business operation, we adopted a profit-oriented 
strategy and launched a management system for cargo selection and contribution 
analysis.  The new system offered a practical approach to reduce the impact of economic 
fl uctuation and to generate a more stable profi t outcome.

Looking ahead, the impact of sub-prime crisis is likely to continue into 2008 and the 
mounting pressure of fuel cost may not abate in a short time.  But as widely seen in most 
trade lanes, there are fl oating surcharges to recover extra costs and continuous efforts to 
increase freight rates.  With solid growth of global economy, it is forecast that the year of 
2008 will offer more opportunities for a higher profi t. 

 3. Research & Development

Our award-winning e-commerce system is well acclaimed by our customers for the 
practical functions and user-friendly features. 

In 2007, we enhanced the electronic report function by providing various matching 
charts to the statistics, which are now available in excel format for customer’s easy 
compilation and further analysis. 

After the launch of regional information websites in Taiwan, Hong Kong and China, 
we extended the e-commerce capability to Europe.  In 2007, three more information 
websites were set up in Germany, Italy and Netherlands.  

The information websites provide the latest industry news in addition to shipping 
related information such as sailing schedules, exchange rates, B/L available time, etc.  The 
information is available both in English and in local languages.

To provide customers with more efficient e-commerce service, we are planning 
to launch an All-in-One system in 2008.  This new function will serve as an integrated 
platform for booking, B/L instruction, cargo tracking and shipment management.

 4. Strategic Planning

(1) Faced with skyrocketing oil prices, we will enforce floating mechanism of bunker 
surcharges to ease the fl uctuation of fuel costs.  Besides, we have devised a bunker 
formula to recover extra costs where there is no unifi ed trade announcement. 
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(2) In response to increasing costs and changing markets, we will adopt more active 
approaches for effi cient service adjustment, profi table cargo selection and optimal slot 
utilization.

(3) The exploitation of new market is high on the agenda of our strategic planning. We will 
seek opportunities to launch new services in line with market development and future 
growth.

(4) To maintain the leading scale of our fl eet, we will keep an eye on the development of 
shipbuilding market and will take advantage of proper timing to start next newbuilding 
program.

(5) We will strengthen strategic alliance with partners through joint venture and slot 
exchange agreement to offer a great variety of services and to improve business 
performance.

 5. Market Analysis

(1) Asia to USA 
Affected by the slowdown of US economy, Trans-Pacific eastbound trade lost 

momentum and showed a moderate growth in 2007.  The plunging US dollar 
affected the demand for foreign products and cut down retailers’ import volumes.  To 
make things worse, the sub-prime crisis broke out in the fourth quarter and brought a 
gloomy outlook to the consumer market. 

In spite of the market downturn, we managed to maintain stable slot utilization.  
The group’s market share stood at 10.7% and secured the top spot in this trade.  
Faced with the market changes, we adopted a profit-oriented strategy for cargo 
selection to reduce the impact of rising costs and to improve business performance.

For 2008, the prospect of cargo growth is revised downward due to the 
depressing forecast of US economy. But on the supply side, capacity is not expected 
to show signifi cant increase.  The narrow gap of demand and supply is expected to 
foster stable recovery of the market and stimulate space constraint in peak season.  
Therefore, we are optimistic to achieve a better performance in 2008.

(2) Asia to Canada 
Compared with the lukewarm performance of US market, Canada’s import trade 

was more stable.  The appreciation of Canadian dollar increased the purchasing 
power of consumers and propped up the cargo growth from Far East.   

For years, we were committed to strengthening our foothold in this trade.  The 
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proactive approach transferred our efforts into effective market penetration and once 
again helped us to achieve the highest market share in 2007.  

We will further strengthen the partnership with existing customers and will 
continue to enlarge account base to produce better profi t for 2008.

(3) Asia to Central America & Caribbean Sea
To meet the growing demand of cargo space, we expanded the capacity of CUE 

service in May 2007.   The port of Lazaro Cardenas was added to the rotation and 
started a direct link from Far East to Mexico in our service scope.

The stable economic growth povided a favorable business environment for 
imports from Far East to Central America and Caribbean countries.  In 2007, we 
achieved an increase of 16% in lifting and 15% in revenue.  It is expected that the 
growth will continue into 2008.

(4) North America to Asia 
After more than a decade of recession, exports from North America showed 

an impressive rebound in 2007.  Due to surging demand of commodity, capacity 
constraint intensified in dry bulk market and diverted huge volumes of grain 
shipments to container transport.  

The spillover effect of bulk cargo boosted the slot utilization of Trans-Pacific 
westbound trade and facilitated the implementation of rate increase programs.  
Besides, the recovery of US exports substantially improved the equipment imbalance 
situation and reduced empty reposition costs. 

Benefi ted from the depreciation of US dollar and the infl ux of grain shipments, it 
is forecast that Trans-Pacifi c westbound trade will continue on the rising path in 2008. 

(5) Asia to Europe & Mediterranean
In 2007, the exports from Far East to Europe & Mediterranean continued with the 

bullish growth from 2006.  In spite of massive delivery of newbuildings, the booming 
traffi c managed to absorb the capacity increase.  Remarkable loading performances 
across the market enabled several rounds of freight rate increases.

The market forecast shows that the economic growth in North Europe may slow 
down slightly in 2008.  But the expansion in East Mediterranean has just started. The 
participation of new memebr states will bring more vitality to the European Union 
and add more momentum to the westbound market. 
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(6) Europe & Mediterranean to Asia
The rising Euro heightened the prices of European products in foreign markets 

and imposed an obstacle on the exports from Europe and Mediterranean.  

The successful 
implementation not only produced higher revenues but also provided a more stable 
foundation for future performance. 

(7) Europe to North America
With the appreciation of Euro, US consumers tried to avoid buying more from 

the other side of the Atlantic.  The increase of capacity supply accelerated the 
deterioration of slot utilization and triggered price competition.  

The impact of sub-prime crisis is likely to linger in 2008 and hinder the recovery 
of Trans-Atlantic westbound trade.  Faced with such severe environment, we will 
switch some capacity for better utilization in other trades.

(8) Europe to East Coast of South America
In light of the market potential of East Coast of South America, we launched 

EUSA service in March 2007 to provide a wider service scope for our customers.  
This market is endowed with plenty of beef, poultry, fi sh and fruits. The abundant 

reefer resources offer huge potential for revenue growth.  It is forecast that the 
market can maintain stable growth in 2008. 

(9) North America to Europe
The depreciation of US dollar spurred the growth of US exports and activated 

Trans-Atlantic eastbound market in 2007.  With the favorable trade environment, we 
achieved better-than-expected performances in both volume and revenue. 

In addition to ongoing efforts to improve revenue, we will continue with the 
enforcement of fl oating fuel surcharges to ease the impact of cost fl uctuation on the 
profi t outcome. 

(10) Far East to East Coast of South America and South Africa 
In response to the booming growth in the South Hemisphere, we substantially 

upgraded the services from Far East to South Africa and South America.  
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The ESA string skipped South Africa and shortened the transit time to east coast 
of South America.  The extended FAX loop complemented the revamped ESA and 
offered a more comprehensive coverage from Far East to South Africa.

The new service pattern further sharpens our competitiveness and is expected to 
reap more profi ts from the soundbound market.

(11) Far East to/from Australia  
In 2007, the lasting drought affected Australia’s harvests and led to decline 

in northbound exports. However, the vigorous imports facilitated successful rate 
increase in southbound trade and produced a better performance than 2006.   

In November, we replaced the participation in ASA service by chartering slot on 
AU-3 service.  The alternative loop offers more effi cient link to our transit network and 
helps to reduce connecting costs.

(12) West Coast of South America import and export
The year of 2007 was very fruitful for the countries in the West Coast of South 

America.  Strong demand for the abundant resources advanced the expansion of their 
imports and exports.  To get a higher share of the fl ourishing market, we enlarged the 
capacity of PWS service and achieved remarkable growth in cargo volume and much 
higher increase in revenue. 

 

(13) Asia to Persian Gulf, Red Sea & India Subcontinent 
Surging energy prices brought vast amounts of oil revenues to Middle East 

countries and fueled the hyper-growth of their import demand.  Even in war-torn Iraq, 
business activities were on the way to gradual recovery.  Blessed by massive foreign 
investments, India also displayed phenomenal economic expansion.  

To gain more ground in these prosperous regions, we launched SRS service on 
top of the capacity increase of APG and FRS services.  The expansion strategy bore 
fruit and generated huge revenue in 2007.  It is forecast that the growth will continue 
into 2008 and bring a brigher outlook for this trade. 

(14) Intra-Asia
In 2007, economic growth in China and the integration of ASEAN countries 

joined forces to paint a rosy picture for the bustling Intra-Asia trade.  In this fast 
growing region, the development in Vietnam was particularly impressive.  The 
country followed the footstep of China and emerged as a major production base of 
outsourcing trend.
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In addition to dedicated Intra-Asia loops, we made the best use of way-port 
space on long-haul services to secure more cargo.  Even though the competition 
was intense, we managed to achieve a better performance than 2006.  For 2008, it is 
forecast that cargo growth of Intra-Asia trade will continue on the rising path. 

(15) Reefer Cargo
In 2007, the lifting of our reefer business increased by 5.2% and the revenue grew 

by 11%.  To achieve a better performance for 2008, we will carry on with the phase-
out of ageing equipment and adopt a more fl exible strategy to improve utilization 
effi ciency.

(16) Special equipment
Overall, higher loading performance of our services left less space for out-

guaged cargo and caused a marginal slide in the volume of special equipment.  But 
thanks to effective rate increases, total revenue in this sector grew by 10.4%.

In 2008, as more developing countries speed up the process of industrialization, 
there will be a higher demand for special equipment to carry machinery and 
production facility.

 6. Environmental Protection (EP) Measures:

(1) The six EP featured S-type vessels are delivered for operation. Concerning items of 
environmental design are listed as follows,
1. Enlarge the capacity of Separated Bilge Oil tank and Oily Water Separator.
2. Electric deck machinery installed instead of traditional Electro-Hydraulic machinery.
3. Alternative maritime power equipped.
4. Garbage chamber arranged for waste and food waste storage.
5. Internal oil tank design provides double protection for fuel tanks.
6. Low-Sulfur fuel system.
7. Cargo hold bilge holding tank equipped.
8. Gray water holding tank equipped.
9. Airspace stern tube sealing system installed instead of oil sealing system.

10. Superior hull lines and propeller design reduces drag and improves energy effi ciency.
(2) In compliance with the MARPOL 73/78 Annex VI and the Directive 1999/32/EC, the 

regulation for Air Pollution Protection, the fleet sailing through the SOx emission 
control area (SECA), such as North Sea and Baltic Sea, should use the fuel of maximum 
sulfur content of 1.5% m/m from August, 2007.
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(3) In compliance with the California Air Resources Board (CARB) regulation, the fleet 
sailing through the West Coast of U.S., within 24 nautical miles of the California 
baseline, should use Marine Gas Oil for generator engines from Jan. 1, 2007.

(4) Since May 2005, the 55 existing vessels refi tted the new type of Bilge Separators which 
comply with the IMO Resolution MEPC107 (49). The project had been completed in 
April, 2006. The spare parts purchase for maintenance cost USD 288,543 of year 2007.

(5) The AFS Convention had been ratified by IMO member states in September 2007 
and will be entered into force on September 17, 2008. In compliance with the AFS 
Convention, the tin-free anti-fouling paint should be applied to ship’s hulls for both new 
building and existing vessels. The Statement of Voluntary Compliance for Anti-Fouling 
System should be issued after survey by Class Society. The international antifouling 
system certificate shall be issued after September 17, 2008. In 2007 total 33 ships 
dry-docked had been fully applied the tin-free anti-fouling paints and one ship had 
been applied the silicone paints complied with the AFS Convention. That cost USD 
1,978,102.74 in total.

(6) The expense in 2007 on ECP project is USD 659,791-. These expenses include travel 
expenditures of Self Assessment, Inspection Charge of External Audit, Consultant fee 
and Audit Fee of E&E etc.

 7. Rectifi cation Plan:

(1) Via strict Self Assessment / External Audit and rectification plan, the Zero Pollution 
could be expected optimistically. 

(2) Via comprehensive training course and environmental protection education, the crew 
will deeply aware of the EP concept and correctly making the entry in oil record book.

(3) Keeping all equipments under optimum conditions for safety operation.
(4) Maintain the validity of the certifi cates such as IAPP, IOPP and ISPP and conduct the 

survey for the environmental equipments by Class Society yearly.
(5) Participating in the insurance of GARD Protection and Indemnity (GARD P&I).
(6) Providing the Certifi cate of Financial Responsibility (COFR) for each vessel trading to 

United States to undertake the responsibility and obligation. 
(7) Due to the malfunctions of tank high level alarm and automatic stop device, the oil 

leaking incident occurred on UNI POPULAR and EVER UNION. For preventing the 
same incident recurrence, in addition to properly maintain the fuel tank level alarm for 
each vessel, newly install the fl oat type high level alarm and the automatic stop device 
in fuel tank for double protection. Retrofi tting the 59 existing vessels cost USD 125,538 
in total.
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 8. Environmental Protection Project in future:

(1) In accordance with the latest IMO resolution, the Ballast Water Management 
Convention will be in effect for all new ship building from 2012. Furthermore, the 
existing vessels, C-type and O-type, ballast water capacity from 1,500 M3 to 5,000 
M3, will be complied with this Convention to install the ballast water treatment system 
from 2014. And all other vessels will be installed the ballast water treatment system 
from 2016. The proper and approved equipment will be installed on our fl eet before 
effective date.

(2) In view of strict environmental protection (EP) regulation, such as oil pollution, air 
pollution, bilge pollution and garbage etc. Not only should the effective date regarding 
the EP requirement be attended carefully, the concern equipments should be installed 
simultaneously.  

EVERGREEN is an ocean friendly company. In this connection, the highest standard of 
Environment Protection will be applied to our fl eet for compliance.

IMO -  International Maritime Organization
MEPC -  Maritime Environment Protection Committee
IOPP -  International Oil Pollution Prevention
IAPP -  International Air Pollution Prevention
ISPP -  International Sewage Pollution Prevention

 9. Code of Conduct/ Courtesy

EMC rules and regulations provided herein are applicable for all employees:
1. Employees should observe the company’s regulations and working manual as well as 

act loyally, responsibly and under the supervisors’ orders, directions and supervision.
2. All employees, except managerial staff, are required to sign in/out in the computer 

systems to indicate their offi cial attendance/departure during scheduled working hours.  
Under the exceptional circumstance at the supervisor’s approval is excluded.

3. When leaving the offi ce all employees must ensure their desk tops are clear and tidy, 
and all documents or fi les are placed in proper places.

4. Employees should conduct themselves in an impartial, prudent and self-disciplined 
manner, protect the company’s reputation, disregard bad habits, and respect fellow 
members.
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5. Every employee must perform their duties and responsibilities; cooperate and 
coordinate with interrelated departments to achieve the goals the company set.

6. When given different directions by two supervisors or above, employees should operate 
in compliance with the higher-level one’s.

7. When assigned works after offi ce hours, employees should perform accordingly instead 
of fi nding excuses to reject.

8. Every employee should be concerned with the preservation of cleanliness, beauty and 
safety consciousness of his/her workplace at all times.

9. Employees should be courteous and respectfully to customers.  Displaying an attitude 
of disrespect, arrogance or ignorance is forbidden.

10. Personal use of the telephone system is discouraged.  When talking on the phone, 
employees should talk briefl y and clearly.

11. Having a chat or reading materials not connected with the business of the company or 
the employee’s job should not be done during offi ce hours.

12. No offi cial documents may be brought outside the offi ce unless the employee obtains 
prior permission from his/her direct supervisor as well as gets inspected by security 
guards.

 10. Protection Measures for Safe Work Environment and Labors Safety

The company set up Labor Safety and Health Division in accordance with LABOR 
SAFETY AND HEALTH LAW for the purpose of enhancing a complete occupational 
training mechanism and providing labors with a safe and healthy place of environment.  
Continuous promotion of safety and health education is adopted to reduce the 
possibility of occupational accidents.  The main job functions of Labor Safety and Health 
Division are described as below:
1. Employees are required to observe Safety and Health Regulations, as the Law is 

effective from its date of promulgation.
2. Labor Safety and Health Division is obliged to perform its duty and follow LABOR 

SAFETY AND HEALTH LAW, arranging safety and health education and training for 
new and current employees.

3. Fire Act obliges employers to hold fire and safety education or fire drills for 
employees.

4. Clinic Division is established to provide periodic health examination, health care and 
medical assistance.

5. Security guards are deployed day and night to protect the company’s properties and 
labors’ safety against occupational hazards.
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6. Sexual harassment is a violation of law. The company emphasizes its importance and 
set up designated telephone and e-mail address to handle the complaints concerning 
sexual harassment.

 11. Social Responsibility

Evergreen has been an active sponsor of various educational, cultural and public 
activities. We have worked closely with maritime schools in Taiwan, and we are 
committed to supporting marine education. 

As a leading company in the shipping industry, we have used the most advanced 
design and shipbuilding technology to protect the environment. We have begun to 
take delivery of new S-series containerships from 2005.  The new S-series vessels are 
particularly noteworthy in that they incorporate many new environmental features that 
go well beyond the requirements of new and soon-to-be-introduced international 
requirements.

The company was honored for "Corporate Social Responsibility" for the great 
efforts done for humanity, education and environment protection by leading shipping 
magazine- Containerisation International in 2006.
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 12. IMPORTANT AGREEMENTS

 (1) Long-haul

AGREEMENT THE ‘PARTY’ DURATION CONTENT REMARK

Slot Charter 
Agreement

HANJIN SHIPPING From 2004.05.22
Till 2005.05.21
 Subsequently extended. 

It is subject to 90 days 
pre-notice prior to 
termination.

EMC slot release
(North Asia/
Australia service)

Slot guarantee

Slot Charter 
Agreement

HAMBURG SUD From 2001.09.26
Till 2003.05.25
 Subsequently extended. 

It is  subject to 90 days 
pre-notice prior to 
termination.

EMC slot purchase 
(US East Coast/
East Coast 
S.America service)

Slot guarantee

Slot Exchange 
Agreement

CMA CGM S.A. From 2003.03.05
Till 2004.03.26 
 Subsequently extended. 

It is subject to 90 days 
pre-notice prior to 
termination.

EMC slot 
exchange with 
CMA CGM 
(Far East/ 
Mediterranean 
service)

Slot guarantee

Slot Exchange 
Agreement

NEW WORLD 
ALLIANCE

From 2003.07.01
Till open but is subject to 60 

days  pre-notice prior to 
termination.

EMC slot 
exchange with 
TNWA (Far East / 
USEC service)

Slot guarantee

Vessel Sharing 
Agreement

COSCO 
CONTAINER LINE

From 1999.05.13 
Till open but is subject to 90 

days pre-notice prior to 
termination.

Operated by EMC 
& COSCON jointly
(Far East/ S. 
America service)

Slot guarantee

Vessel Sharing 
Agreement

1. HAPAG LLOYD
2. HANJIN 

SHIPPING

From 2004.05.22
Till 2005.05.21 subject to 90 

days pre-notice prior to 
termination.

Operated by 
EMC, HLC & HJS 
jointly (North Asia/
Australia service)

Slot guarantee



27

AGREEMENT THE ‘PARTY’ DURATION CONTENT REMARK

Vessel Sharing 
Agreement

1.  YANG MING 
LINE

2.  SCI
3.  MISC
4. K LINE
5. ZIM LINE

From 2002.01.06
Till 2003.01.05
 Subsequently extended. 

It is subject to 120 
days pre-notice prior to 
termination.

 EMC has been 
withdrawn effective from 
2007.09.24

Operated by EMC, 
YML, SCI, MISC, 
K LINE and ZIM 
jointly. (ISC/Europe 
service)

Slot guarantee

Vessel Sharing 
Agreement

1. COSCO From :  2004.04.22
It is subject to 90 days  
pre-notice prior to 
termination.

Operated by EMC 
& COSCON jointly
(Far East/ S.Africa)

Slot guarantee

Vessel Sharing 
Agreement

COSCO From :  2006.05.13
 It is subject to 90 days  

pre-notice prior to 
termination.

Operated by 
EMC and COSCO 
jointly. (Far East/
USEC)

Slot guarantee

Slot Exchange 
Agreement

MAERSK From :  2007.05.15
 It is subject to 90 days  

pre-notice prior to 
termination.

EMC slot 
exchange with 
MAERSK (Far East/
USWC)

Slot guarantee

Slot Exchange 
Agreement

NEW WORLD 
ALLIANCE

From :  2007.07.15
 It is subject to 90 days  

pre-notice prior to 
termination.

EMC slot 
exchange with 
TNWA (South-East 
Asia/USEC)

Slot guarantee

Slot Charter 
Agreement

MAERSK From 2007.12.01
Till 2008.11.30
 Subsequently extended. 

It is  subject to 90 days 
pre-notice prior to 
termination.

EMC slot purchase 
(South East Asia/
Australia service)

Slot guarantee
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 (2) Intra-Asia

AGREEMENT THE ‘PARTY’ DURATION CONTENT REMARK

SLOT 
EXCHANGE 

AGREEMENT

YANG MING 
MARINE 
TRANSPORT CORP.

FROM 2002.9.1
 CAN BE EXTENDED. 

IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

EMC SLOT 
EXCHANGES WITH 
YML. (PAN ASIA 
SERVICES)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

SLOT 
EXCHANGE 

AGREEMENT

RCL FEEDER PTE 
LTD.

FROM 2002.9.1
 CAN BE EXTENDED. 

IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 60 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

EMC SLOT 
EXCHANGES WITH 
RCL. (PAN ASIA 
SERVICES)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

SLOT 
EXCHANGE 

AGREEMENT

MCC TRANSPORT 
SINGAPORE PTE 
LTD.

FROM 2002.10.15
TILL 2004.4.14

CAN BE EXTENDED.  
IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

EMC SLOT 
EXCHANGES WITH 
MCC. (INDO-NESIA/
SINGAPORE/
MALAYSIA/THAI-
LAND SERVICES)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

SLOT 
EXCHANGE 

AGREEMENT

SEA CONSORTIUM 
PTE LTD.

FROM 2005.11.13
 CAN BE EXTENDED. 

IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 60 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

EMC SLOT 
EXCHANGES WITH 
SEACON. (TAIWAN/
S. EASTERN ASIA 
SERVICES)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

SLOT 
CHARTERING 
AGREEMENT

SEA CONSORTIUM 
PTE LTD.

FROM 2006.3.20
TILL 2007.6.15 

EMC SLOT 
CHARTERS 
FROM SEACON. 
(KAOHSIUNG/CEBU 
SERVICE

TERMINATION
WEF: 2007.6.15



29

AGREEMENT THE ‘PARTY’ DURATION CONTENT REMARK

VESSEL 
SHARING 

AGREEMENT

WAN HAI LINES 
LTD

FROM 2007.9.25
TILL 2008.9.24

CAN BE EXTENDED.  
IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

OPERATED BY EMC 
AND WHL JOINTLY. 
(JAPAN-THAILAND 
EXPRESS SERVICE)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

VESSEL 
SHARING 

AGREEMENT

WAN HAI LINES 
LTD.

FROM 2002.9.1
 CAN BE EXTENDED. 

IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

OPERATED BY EMC 
AND WHL JOINTLY. 
(JAPAN/TAIWAN/
HONG KONG 
SERVICE)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

VESSEL 
SHARING 

AGREEMENT

1. OOCL (ASIA 
PACIFIC) LTD.

2. YANGMING (UK) 
LTD.

FROM 2006.4.4
TILL 2007.4.3

CAN BE EXTENDED. 
IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

OPERATED BY EMC, 
OOCLL, YM (UK) LTD 
JOINTLY. (TAIWAN/
HONG KONG/
VIETNAM SERVICE)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

VESSEL 
SHARING 

AGREEMENT

1. WAN HAI LINES 
LTD

2. HAPAG-LLOYD
 CONTAINER LINE

FROM 2006.4.30
TILL 2007.4.29

CAN BE EXTENDED. 
IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION

OPERATED BY EMC, 
WHL AND HLCL 
JOINTLY. (TAIWAN/
MAINLAND/
SINGAPORE/
MALAYSIA/INDIA 
SRVICE)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

VESSEL 
SHARING 

AGREEMENT

1. YI-TONG LINES 
CO LTD

2. YANG MING 
MARINE 
TRANSPORT 
CORP.

FROM 2003.9.1
TILL 2004.8.31

CAN BE EXTENDED. 
IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

OPERATED BY EMC, 
YI-TONG AND YML 
JOINTLY.
(TAIWAN/HONG 
KONG SERVICE)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED
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AGREEMENT THE ‘PARTY’ DURATION CONTENT REMARK

VESSEL 
SHARING 

AGREEMENT

PENDULUM 
EXPRESS LINES 
LTD. HONG KONG.

FROM 2004.8.21
TILL 2005.8.20

CAN BE EXTENDED.  
IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

OPERATED BY EMC 
AND PENDULUM 
JOINTLY (THAILAND/
TAIWAN/PHILIPPINES 
SERVICE)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

VESSEL 
SHARING 

AGREEMENT

1. YANG MING 
LINE 

2. STX PAN OCEAN
3. SAMUDERA
4. TS LINE

FROM 2007.10.15
TILL 2008.10.15

CAN BE EXTENDED.  
IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

OPERATED BY EMC, 
STX,YML,SSL AND 
TSL JOINTLY.
(CHINA/INDIA 
SERVICE)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

VESSEL 
SHARING 

AGREEMENT

COSCO 
CONTAINER LINE 
AGENCIES LTD.

FROM 2006.12.31
TILL 2007.12.30

CAN BE EXTENDED.  
IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

OPERATED BY EMC 
AND COSCON 
JOINTLY.
(FAR EAST/RED SEA 
SERVICE)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

VESSEL 
SHARING 

AGREEMENT

COSCO 
CONTAINER LINES 
CO., LTD.

FROM 2007.05.16
 CAN BE EXTENDED.  

IT IS SUBJECT 
TO 90 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

OPERATED BY EMC 
AND COSCON 
JOINTLY.
(SOUTH EAST ASIA/
RED SEA SERVICE)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED

VESSEL 
SHARING 

AGREEMENT

COSCO 
CONTAINER LINE 
AGENCIES LTD.

FROM 2002.09.01
 CAN BE EXTENDED.  

IT IS SUBJECT TO 
140 DAYS PRE-
NOTICE PRIOR TO 
TERMINATION.

OPERATED BY EMC 
AND COSCON 
JOINTLY.
(CHINA/ARABIAN 
PERSIAN GULF 
SERVICE)

SLOT 
GUARANTEED
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 1. The Brief Financial Statement For Recent Five Years

(1) Brief Balance Sheets
                                                                 Unit: Thousand NTD

                    Year

Account Code

Financial Date From 2003 To 2007

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Current assets 11,599,365 14,322,105 16,177,619 28,747,380 17,458,662

Fixed assets 10,785,775 9,648,175 8,282,320 8,811,455 10,752,285

Other assets 68,577,744 61,070,635 62,090,656 55,172,422 49,548,360

Current liabilities
Before distribution 12,737,552 15,647,788 14,353,095 17,319,942 19,006,239

After distribution - 16,565,453 19,388,797 22,366,514 20,366,466

Long-term liabilities 5,211,992 8,965,695 8,468,039 20,692,832 17,613,204

Capital stock 30,338,695 29,159,293 27,075,246 24,259,425 21,468,777

Capital reserve 6,016,190 4,876,090 4,640,403 4,030,933 1,577,479

Retained earnings
Before distribution 31,285,147 21,821,110 28,367,360 23,651,407 14,215,092

After distribution - 20,903,445 23,331,658 18,604,835 12,854,865

Total Assets 90,962,884 85,040,915 86,550,595 92,731,257 77,759,307

Total liabilities
Before distribution 21,265,204 27,727,823 25,824,601 40,454,712 37,472,224

After distribution - 28,645,488 30,860,303 45,501,284 38,832,451

Total shareholder’s 

equity

Before distribution 69,697,680 57,313,092 60,725,994 52,276,545 40,287,083

After distribution - 56,395,427 55,690,292 47,229,973 38,926,856

4 Financial Statement
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(2) Brief Income Statements
Unit: Thousand NTD

               Year

Account Code

Financial Date From 2003 To 2007

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Sales revenues 27,844,435 33,863,398 41,975,536 41,924,420 35,207,238

Gross profi t 4,564,019 3,164,583 9,488,716 7,821,858 1,040,374

Operating income 2,056,646 871,460 6,793,349 5,087,649 (1,678,653)

Non-operating incomes and gains 10,460,216 2,021,907 8,505,444 9,288,124 6,837,874

Non-operating expenses and losses 856,883 2,244,509 633,003 772,292 1,193,692

Income before income tax 11,659,979 648,858 14,665,790 13,603,481 3,965,529

Net income 10,381,702 411,580 12,223,911 12,084,669 3,604,776

Earnings per share 3.53 0.14 4.53 4.81 1.44
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2. The Financial Analysis For Recent Five Years

Item 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Capital structure analysis %

Debt ratio 23.28 32.61 29.84 43.63 48.20

Long-term fund to fi xed assets 724.64 743.70 887.34 879.48 586.86

Liquidity analysis %

Current ratio 91.06 91.53 112.71 165.98 91.86

Quick ratio 83.69 86.81 106.97 162.66 88.68

Times interest earned times 69.22 4.37 33.48 23.58 5.16

Operating performance analysis

Receivable turnover times 25.45 17.04 14.13 13.15 10.38

Average collection days 14 21 26 28 35

Fixed assets turnover times 2.73 3.78 4.91 4.29 2.99

Total assets turnover times 0.32 0.39 0.47 0.49 0.47

Profi tability analysis %

Return ratio on total assets 11.94 0.61 14.01 14.71 5.81

Return ratio on stockholder s equity 16.35 0.70 21.63 26.11 9.28

Operating income to capital stock 6.78 2.99 25.09 20.97 (7.82)

Income before tax to capital stock 38.43 1.72 54.17 56.08 18.47

Profi t after tax to net sales 37.28 1.22 29.12 28.83 10.25

Earnings per share NT$ 3.53 0.14 4.53 4.81 1.44

Cash fl ow %

Cash fl ow ratio 60.96 32.10 142.79 (19.09) 13.14

Cash fl ow adequacy ratio 141.31 107.52 120.97 27.88 91.11

Cash fl ow reinvestment ratio 7.20 0.13 15.77 (4.55) 2.51

Leverage

Operating leverage 2.44 4.20 1.46 1.70 (1.91)

Financial leverage 1.09 1.21 1.07 1.13 0.64
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 3. Financial Statements With Report of Independent Auditors

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Evergreen Marine Corporation

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Evergreen Marine Corporation (the 
“Company”) as of December 31, 2007 and the related statements of operations, of changes in 
stockholders’ equity and of cash fl ows for the year then ended. These fi nancial statements are 
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these fi nancial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the fi nancial statements 
of all the investee companies accounted for under the equity method. Long-term investments 
in these companies amounted to 26,751,437 thousand New Taiwan dollars, constituting 
29.41% of the total assets as of December 31, 2007 and the related investment gain was 
1,902,884 thousand New Taiwan dollars, constituting 16.32% of the net income before tax 
for the year ended then. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports 
thereon have been furnished to us, and our report expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the 
amounts included for Peony Investment S.A. and its affi liated companies and all the investee 
companies accounted for under the equity method, is based solely on the reports of the other 
auditors. The fi nancial statements of Evergreen Marine Corporation as of December 31, 2006 
were audited by other auditors whose report dated March 23, 2007 issued an unqualified 
opinion with explanatory paragraph stating that part of the Company’s investment income 
accounted for under the equity method for the year then ended 2006 was recognized based 
on the investees’ fi nancial statements audited by other auditors.
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Rules Governing Examination of Financial 
Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing standards 
in the Republic of China. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
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and disclosures in the fi nancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall fi nancial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other 
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the fi nancial statements 
referred to in the fi rst paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial position of 
Evergreen Marine Corporation as of December 31, 2007, and the results of its operations and 
its cash fl ows for the year then ended in conformity with the “Rules Governing the Preparation 
of Financial Statements by Securities Issuers”, “Business Entity Accounting Law”, “Regulations 
on Business Entity Accounting Handling” and generally accepted accounting principles in the 
Republic of China.

As discussed in Note C to the fi nancial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company 
adopted SFAS No. 34, “Accounting for Financial Instruments” and No. 36, “Disclosure and 
Presentation of Financial Instruments”. 

We have also audited the consolidated fi nancial statements of Evergreen Marine Corporation 
and its subsidiaries as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007, on which we have issued 
an unqualifi ed opinion with explanatory paragraph thereon.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
April 7, 2008
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position 
and results of operations and cash fl ows in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, 
procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such financial 
statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than 
the Republic of China. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements and report of 
independent accountants are not intended for use by those who are not informed about the 
accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, and 
their applications in practice.
As the fi nancial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers 
cannot accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any 
errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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EVERGREEN MARINE CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

 2007  2006 
 AMOUNT  %  AMOUNT  % 

Operating Revenues (Notes 4(29) and 5) $ 27,844,435  100 $ 33,863,398  100
Operating Costs (Notes 4(30) and 5) ( 23,280,416 ) ( 84 ) ( 30,698,815 ) ( 90 )
Gross profi t  4,564,019  16  3,164,583  10
Operating Expenses (Notes 4(30) and 5)

General and administrative expenses ( 2,507,373 )
     
( 9 )

                          
( 2,293,123 )

     
( 7 )

Operating income  2,056,646  7  871,460  3
Non-operating Income and Gains                                                               

Interest income  171,390  1  181,319  1
Gain on valuation of fi nancial assets  -    -  75,469  -
Investment income accounted for under the equity 

method (Note 4(12))  8,086,030  29  -  -
Dividend income  33,052    -  75,145  -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note 5)  1,514,085  6  1,181,500  4
Gain on disposal of investments  216,182  1  139,556  -
Foreign exchange gain, net  277,055  1  167,183  1
Rental income (Note 5)  76,293  -  63,033  -
Other non-operating income  86,129  -  138,702  -

Non-operating Income and Gains  10,460,216  38  2,021,907  6
Non-operating Expenses and Losses                                                          

Interest expense ( 170,908 ) ( 1 ) ( 148,723 ) ( 1 )
Loss on valuation of fi nancial assets ( 149,937 ) ( 1 )  -  -
Loss on valuation of fi nancial liabilities ( 384,157 ) ( 1 ) ( 111,765 )  -
Investment loss accounted for under the equity 

method (Note 4(12))  -  - ( 1,915,230 ) ( 6 )
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ( 1,589 )  - ( 12,093 )  -
Financing charges ( 28,604 )    - ( 52,951 )  -
Impairment loss (Note 4(10)) ( 119,000 )    -  -  -
Other non-operating losses ( 2,688 )    - ( 3,747 )  -

Non-operating Expenses and Losses ( 856,883 ) ( 3 ) ( 2,244,509 ) ( 7 )
Income from continuing operations before income tax  11,659,979  42  648,858  2
Income tax expense (Note 4(31)) ( 1,278,277 ) ( 5 ) ( 140,670 ) ( 1 )
Income from continuing operations  10,381,702  37  508,188  1
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles  -    - ( 96,608 )  -
(Net of tax benefi t of $ 50,937)                                                               
Net income $ 10,381,702  37 $ 411,580  1

  Before Tax  After Tax  Before Tax  After Tax 
Basic earnings per share (Note 4(32))

Net income from continuing operations $ 3.96 $ 3.53 $ 0.22 $ 0.17
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles  -        - ( 0.05 ) ( 0.03 )

Net income $ 3.96 $ 3.53 $ 0.17 $ 0.14
Diluted earnings per share(Note 4(32))

Net income from continuing operations $ 3.80 $ 3.38 $ 0.21 $ 0.16
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles        -        - ( 0.05 ) ( 0.03 )

Net income $ 3.80 $ 3.38 $ 0.16 $ 0.13

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
See report of independent accountants dated April 7, 2008.
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EVERGREEN MARINE CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

 2007  2006 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES           

Net income $ 10,381,702 $ 411,580
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities           

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles for fi nancial instruments          -  96,608
Depreciation  1,242,225  1,508,574
Amortization  26,834  48,592
Reclassifi cation of depreciation of dock facilities to operating costs and others  602,613  206,436
Reclassifi cation of amortization of deferred charges to others  38,903  63,075
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment ( 1,512,496 ) ( 1,169,407 )
Excess of equity-accounted investment loss over cash dividends ( 7,683,423 )  2,444,905
Loss on impairment of fi nancial assets carried at cost  119,000          -
Interest amortization of fi nancial assets and unrealized exchange gains ( 1,026 )  1,083
Interest compensation of convertible bonds ( 4,650 )  3,275
Net loss on disposal of long-term equity investments under equity method          -  154
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale fi nancial assets ( 12,923 )          -
Changes in assets and liabilities      

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss  2,495,695  1,830,372
Financial assets held-to-maturity - current          -  21,421
Notes and accounts receivable  751,529  1,034,655
Other receivables  489,976 ( 881,608 )
Other fi nancial assets  356 ( 106,083 )
Inventories ( 140,103 )  226,054
Prepaid expenses and prepayments ( 61,807 ) ( 140,560 )
Restricted assets ( 49,496 ) ( 2,865 )
Agent accounts  1,701,479  134,318
Agency reciprocal accounts ( 1,372 ) ( 8,759 )
Other current assets  27,899 ( 67,673 )
Refundable deposits ( 1,343 )  131,910
Notes and accounts payable ( 305,633 ) ( 161,225 )
Income tax payable ( 157,430 ) ( 737,824 )
Accrued expenses ( 550,356 )  1,145,278
Other payables ( 124,319 )  28,809
Other current liabilities  10,368 ( 23,260 )
Accrued pension liability  48,395  72,088
Deferred income tax assets / liabilities  498,979 ( 1,202,216 )
Taxes due to changes in accounting principles for fi nancial instruments          -  26,385
Taxes due to unrealized gain or loss on cash fl ow hedge ( 64,488 )  89,065 

Net cash provided by operating activities  7,765,088  5,023,157 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES           

Proceeds from capital reduction of investee $ 3,409 $ 9,261
Acquisition of long-term equity investment accounted for under the equity method ( 180,000 ) ( 697,906 )
Proceeds from sale of long-term equity investment accounted for under the equity method          -  2,100
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale fi nancial assets - non current  14,080          -
Acquisition of fi nancial assets carried at cost - non current ( 43,750 ) ( 22,100 )
Proceeds from sale of fi nancial assets carried at cost - non current  581,000          -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment ( 3,042,408 ) ( 3,278,173 )
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  1,109,015  2,411,319
Increase in deferred expenses ( 48,472 ) ( 79,763 )
Decrease in long-term receivables  284,953  72,132 

Net cash used in investing activities ( 1,322,173 ) ( 1,583,130 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES           

Decrease in short-term loans ( 834,000 ) ( 966,000 )
Decrease in short-term bills payable          - ( 799,755 )
(Decrease) increase in long-term loans ( 1,144,035 )  3,532,333
Decrease in corporate bonds payable ( 2,500,100 ) ( 1,500,000 )
(Decrease) increase in guarantee deposits received ( 451 )  390
Distribution of cash dividends ( 877,045 ) ( 4,905,302 )
Distribution of employee bonuses and directors and supervisors’ remuneration ( 40,620 ) ( 130,400 )

Net cash used in fi nancing activities ( 5,396,251 ) ( 4,768,734 )
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  1,046,664 ( 1,328,707 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  3,452,533  4,781,240 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 4,499,197 $ 3,452,533 
Supplemental information of cash fl ow information           

Interest paid $ 268,253 $ 151,454
Less: Interest capitalized          -          - 
Interest paid, net of interest capitalized $ 268,253 $ 151,454 
Income tax paid $ 1,001,218 $ 1,965,260 

Financing Activities Not Affecting Cash Flows 
Long-term liabilities due within one year $ 3,248,274 $ 5,474,400 
Capitalization of retained earnings $        - $ 1,907,617 
Conversion of convertible bonds into common stock $ 2,319,100 $ 382,479 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
See report of independent accountants dated April 7, 2008.
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EVERGREEN MARINE CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION
Established on September 25, 1968, Evergreen Marine Corporation (the “Company”) is 
mainly engaged in domestic and international marine transportation, shipping agency 
services and the distribution of containers.  The Company was approved by the Securities 
and Futures Commission (SFC), Ministry of Finance (MOF) (currently known as the 
Securities and Futures Bureau (SFB), Financial Supervisory Commission, Executive Yuan) to 
be a public company on November 2, 1982 and was further approved by the SFC to be a 
listed company on July 6, 1987. The Company’s shares have been publicly traded on the 
Taiwan Stock Exchange since September 21, 1987. The Company had 1,181 employees as 
of December 31, 2007.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying financial statements are prepared in conformity with the “Rules 
Governing Preparation of Financial Statements by Securities Issuers”, “Business Entity 
Accounting Law”, “Regulations on Business Entity Accounting Handling” and accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Republic of China. The Company’s significant 
accounting policies are summarized below:
(1) Classifi cation of current and non-current assets and liabilities

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; 
otherwise they are classifi ed as non-current assets:
a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized or 

consumed, or are intended to be sold within the normal operating cycle;
b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
c) Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance 

sheet date;
d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and 

those that are to be exchanged or used to pay off liabilities more than twelve 
months after the balance sheet date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classifi ed as current liabilities; 
otherwise they are classifi ed as non-current liabilities:
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a) Liabilities arising from operating activities that are expected to be paid off within 
the normal operating cycle;

b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;
c) Liabilities that are to be paid off within twelve months from the balance sheet 

date;
d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to 

more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.
C. Financial liabilities that expire within 12 months from the balance sheet date which 

meet the following conditions are classifi ed as non-current liabilities:
a) The original contract term exceeds one year.
b) Intended for long-term refi nancing.
c) Have completed long-term refinancing and extended the period of liabilities 

before the balance sheet date, or have the intention to refi nance or extend the 
period of liabilities by one year after balance sheet date.

(2) Foreign currency transactions
A. The Company maintain their accounts in New Taiwan dollars. Transactions 

denominated in foreign currencies are translated into New Taiwan dollars and 
functional currencies at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. 
Exchange gains or losses due to the difference between the exchange rate on the 
transaction date and the exchange rate on the date of actual receipt and payment 
are recognized in current year’s profi t or loss.

B. Receivables, other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. 
Exchange gains or losses are recognized in profi t or loss.

C. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized directly in equity, any 
exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognized directly in equity. 
Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profi t or 
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognized in profi t or 
loss. However, non-monetary items that are measured on a historical cost basis are 
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

(3) Translation of fi nancial statements of foreign subsidiaries
Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into New Taiwan dollars 
using the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Equity accounts are translated 
at historical rates except for beginning retained earnings, which are carried forward 
from prior year’s balance. Dividends are translated at the rates prevailing at the date 
of declaration. Profit and loss accounts are translated at weighted-average rates of 
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the year. The resulting translation differences are included in “cumulative translation 
adjustments” under stockholders’ equity.

(4) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks and other short-term 
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to known amount of cash and 
which are subject to insignifi cant risk of changes in value resulting from fl uctuations in 
interest rates.

(5) Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss - current
A. Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

recognized and derecognized using trade date accounting and are recognized 
initially at fair value.

B. These financial instruments are subsequently remeasured and stated at fair value, 
and the gain or loss is recognized in profi t or loss. The fair value of listed stocks, OTC 
stocks and closed-end mutual funds and GDR is based on latest quoted fair prices 
of the accounting period. The fair value of open-end and balanced mutual funds is 
based on the net asset value at the balance sheet date.

(6) Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets - current
A. Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets are recognized or derecognized using choose either 

trade date accounting and is stated initially, at its fair value plus transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the fi nancial asset.

B. The fi nancial assets are carried at amortized cost.
C. If there is any objective evidence that the fi nancial asset is impaired, the impairment 

loss is recognized in profi t or loss. If the fair value of the fi nancial asset subsequently 
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after 
the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be 
reversed to the extent of the loss previously recognized in profi t or loss.

(7) Investments in bonds without active markets - current
A. Investments in bonds without active markets are recognized and derecognized 

using choose either trade date accounting and is stated initially at its fair value plus 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the fi nancial asset.

B. This fi nancial asset is carried at amortized cost. Any change in the fair value of the 
assets to be received during the period between the trade date and settlement date 
is not recognized.

C. If there is any objective evidence that the fi nancial asset is impaired, the impairment 
loss is recognized in profi t or loss. If, subsequently, the fair value of asset increases 
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be 
reversed to the extent of the loss previously recognized in profi t or loss.
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(8) Available-for-sale fi nancial assets
A. Available-for-sale fi nancial assets are recognized and derecognized using trade date 

accounting and are initially stated at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the fi nancial asset.

B. The financial assets are remeasured and stated at fair value, and the gain or loss 
is recognized in equity, until the fi nancial asset is derecognized, at which time the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity shall be recognized in profi t 
or loss. The fair value of listed stocks, OTC stocks and closed-end mutual funds and 
GDR are based on latest quoted fair prices of the accounting period. The fair values 
of open-end and balanced mutual funds are based on the net asset value at the 
balance sheet date.

C. If there is any objective evidence that the fi nancial asset is impaired, the cumulative 
loss that had been recognized directly in equity shall be transferred from equity to 
profi t or loss. When the fair value of an equity instrument subsequently increases, 
impairment losses recognized previously in profi t or loss shall not be reversed. When 
the fair value of a debt instrument subsequently increases and the increase can be 
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized 
in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be reversed to the extent of the loss 
recognized in profi t or loss.

(9) Financial assets carried at cost
A. Investments in unquoted equity instruments are recognized or derecognized using 

trade date accounting and is stated initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the fi nancial asset.

B. If there is any objective evidence that the fi nancial asset is impaired, the impairment 
loss is recognized in profi t or loss. Such impairment loss shall not be reversed when 
the fair value of the asset subsequently increases.

(10) Derivative fi nancial assets for hedging
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a contract is entered into 
and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognizing the 
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging 
instrument and the nature of the hedged item.
(A) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value 
hedges are recognized in profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of the hedged 
asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged item are recognized in profi t or 
loss as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item.

(B) Cash fl ow hedges:
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated 



44

and qualify as cash fl ow hedges is recognized in equity. The gain or loss relating to 
the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profi t or loss.
a) If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of 

a fi nancial asset or a fi nancial liability, the associated gains or losses that were 
recognized directly in equity are transferred to profi t or loss in the same period or 
periods when the hedged item affects profi t or loss. 

b) If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a 
non-fi nancial asset or a non-fi nancial liability, or a forecast transaction for a non-
fi nancial asset or non-fi nancial liability becomes a fi rm commitment for which fair 
value hedge accounting is applied, then the entity shall choose either one of the 
following methods and apply the method selected consistently: the associated 
gains and losses that were recognized directly in equity are transferred into profi t 
or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability 
assumed affects profi t or loss, However, any loss or portion of a loss recognized 
directly in equity expected not to be recovered in the future is reclassified to 
profi t or loss.

(11) Derecognition of fi nancial assets and liabilities
A. All or part of a financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights that 

compose the asset is expired. When all or part of a financial asset is transferred 
and contractual rights that composes the asset is given up, the cash fl ow received 
from the clearing house within a certain limit is treated as sale. When the transfer 
of financial asset does not qualify as lost of contractual rights, then such transfer 
of asset is recognized as guaranteed loan. Reacquiring rights of such assets will no 
longer be accounted as derivative fi nancial assets.

B. All or part of a financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified 
in the contract binding the financial liability is either discharged, cancelled or 
expired. Where there has been an exchange between an existing borrower of debt 
instruments and the Company with substantially different terms, or there has been 
a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability, then the 
transaction is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original fi nancial liability and 
the recognition of a new fi nancial liability. Any gain or loss from extinguishment of 
the original fi nancial liability is recognized in the income statement.

(12) Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided according to the evaluation of the 
collectibility of notes and accounts receivable and other receivables, taking into 
account the bad debts incurred in prior years and the aging analysis of the receivables.
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(13) Inventories
Fuel inventories are physically measured by the crew of each ship and reported back 
to the Head Offi ce through telegraph for recording purposes at year-end. Valuation of 
inventories is based on the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the fi scal year.

(14) Long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method
A. Long-term equity investments in which the Company holds more than 20% of the 

investee company’s voting shares or has the ability to exercise signifi cant infl uence 
on the investee’s operational decisions are accounted for under the equity method. 
The excess of the initial investment cost over the acquired net asset value of the 
investee attributable to goodwill is no longer amortized, effective January 1, 2006. 
Retrospective adjustment of the amount of goodwill amortized in previous year 
is not required. The excess of acquired net asset value of investee over the initial 
investment cost is allocated proportionately and applied as a reduction to the book 
values of identifi able non-current assets, and any remaining amount of such excess 
after this allocation is credited to extraordinary gains.

B. Foreign currency denominated financial statements of overseas subsidiaries and 
investees are translated into New Taiwan dollars in accordance with Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 14, “Accounting for Foreign Currency 
Transactions and Translation of Foreign Financial Statements”. The translation 
differences are recorded as “cumulative translation adjustments” under stockholders’ 
equity.

C. The Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with 
the SFAS No. 7 “Consolidated Financial Statements”. Investee companies of which 
the Company holds more than 50% voting shares of an investee or the Company 
holds less than 50% voting shares of an investee, but has effective control over the 
investee are included in the consolidated fi nancial statements.

(15) Property, plant and equipment
A. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Interests incurred on the loans 

used to bring the assets to the condition and location necessary for their intended 
uses are capitalized.

B. Major improvements and renewals are capitalized and depreciated accordingly. 
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

C. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis according to the respective assets’ 
useful lives regulated by the Ministry of Finance plus one year for salvage value.

D. For ships and equipment that are still in use after expiration of their useful life, 
depreciation is provided based on the original method and the reassessed useful 
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life and salvage value. For other assets that are still in use after expiration of their 
useful life, depreciation is provided based on the original method to the extent that 
the salvage value falls below $3,000. Where impairment loss is recognized, property, 
plant and equipment shall be depreciated over their remaining useful life based on 
their carrying value adjusted for the impairment loss.

(16) Deferred charges
Deferred charges refer to the expenses incurred for decoration, issuance of corporate 
bonds, computer software and cable installation. The expenses incurred for decoration 
are amortized on a straight-line basis over fi ve years, expenses incurred for issuance 
of corporate bonds are amortized over the issuance period, expenses incurred for 
issuance of convertible bonds are amortized over the period from the issuance date 
to the expiry date of the redemption rights and the remaining deferred charges are 
amortized over 2-3 years.

(17) Impairment of non-fi nancial assets
The Company recognizes impairment loss when there is indication that the recoverable 
amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value less costs to 
sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction 
after deducting any direct incremental disposal costs. The value in use is the present 
value of estimated future cash fl ows to be derived from continuing use of the asset and 
from its disposal at the end of its useful life. When the impairment no longer exists, the 
impairment loss recognized in prior years shall be recovered. However, impairment loss 
of goodwill is not recoverable.

(18) Convertible bonds
Bonds payable issued before December 31, 2005 are accounted for as follows:
A. Convertible bonds are stated at their issuance price. The excess of the redemption 

price over the face value of the convertible bonds is amortized using the interest 
method over the redemption period.

B. When bonds are converted, the par value of the bonds is credited to common stock 
and any excess is credited to capital reserve. No gain or loss is recognized on bond 
conversion.

C. Expenditures incurred on issuance of convertible bonds are classified as deferred 
assets and amortized over the life of the bonds. In cases where the bonds are 
converted or redeemed before the maturity date, the issuance expenditures are 
expensed in proportion to the amount of bonds converted or redeemed.

D. Where bonds are not redeemed during the redemption period, the interest on 
redemption is amortized under the interest method over the remaining life of the 
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bonds. If the fair value of the underlying shares at the expiry date of the redemption 
option exceeds the redemption price, the interest on redemption is reclassifi ed to 
capital reserve.

(19) Pensions
A. Under the defi ned benefi t pension plan, net periodic pension costs are recognized in 

accordance with the actuarial calculations. Net periodic pension costs include service 
cost, interest cost, expected return on plan assets, and amortization of unrecognized 
net transition obligation and gains or losses on plan assets. Unrecognized net 
transition obligation is amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years.

B. The Labor Pension Act (“the Act”), which adopts a defined contribution scheme, 
took effect from July 1, 2005. In accordance with the Act, employees of the 
Company may elect to be subject to either the Act, and maintain their seniority 
before the enforcement of the Act, or the pension mechanism of the Labor 
Standards Law. For employees subject to the Act, the Company shall make monthly 
contributions to the employees’ individual pension accounts on a basis no less than 
6% of the employees’ monthly wages.

C. In accordance with the SFAS No. 18, “Accounting for Pension”, the Company has 
recognized pension costs based on the actuarial report since 1995. Under the 
defi ned benefi t pension scheme, net periodic pension cost is contributed based on 
the actuarial report, which includes current service cost, interest cost, expected rate 
of return on plan assets, and amortization of unrecognized net transition assets. The 
part of accumulated benefit obligation which exceeds fair value of pension fund 
is recorded as minimum pension liability on the balance sheet. Unrecognized net 
transition assets and net benefi t obligation are amortized on a straight-line basis over 
15 years. Prior service cost and gain or loss is amortized over the average remaining 
service period on a straight-line basis. While preparing interim fi nancial statements, 
the amount of minimum pension liability is adjusted by the difference between net 
periodic pension cost and contribution. Under the defi ned benefi t pension scheme, 
contribution is recognized in the year when the expenditures are incurred. The 
amount of the minimum pension liability does not have to be re-evaluated.

(20) Income taxes
A. Provision for income tax includes deferred income tax resulting from temporary 

differences, investment tax credits and loss carryforward. Valuation allowance on 
deferred tax assets is provided to the extent that it is more likely than not that the 
tax benefi t will not be realized. Over or under provision of prior years’ income tax 
liabilities is included in current year’s income tax.

 Inter-period and intra-period income taxes are allocated in accordance with the SFAS 
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No. 22, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. Income tax effects arising from taxable 
temporary differences are recognized as deferred income tax liabilities. Income tax 
effects arising from deductible temporary differences, loss carryforwards and income 
tax credits are recognized as deferred income tax assets and a valuation allowance 
is provided based on the expected realizability of the deferred income tax assets. 
In accordance with the “Statute of Income Basic Tax Amount”, effective January 1, 
2006, the estimated basic tax amount payable in the future is considered by the 
Company in evaluating the realizability of deferred income tax assets.

B. Investment tax credits arising from expenditures incurred on acquisitions of 
equipment or technology, research and development, employees’ training, and 
equity investments are recognized in the year the related expenditures are incurred.

C. An additional 10% tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is 
recorded as income tax expense in the year the stockholders resolve to retain the 
earnings.

(21) Revenue, cost and expense recognition
Revenues are recognized when the earning process is substantially completed and are 
realized or realizable. Costs and expenses are recognized as incurred.

(22) Basic (diluted) earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the net income (loss) attributed 
to common stockholders and the weighted-average number of common shares 
outstanding during the period. Any capital increase (reduction) through cash infusion 
(withdrawal), treasury stock transactions or other factors that would cause a change in 
the number of outstanding shares are incorporated in the calculation on a weighted-
average basis according to the circulation period. Adjustments are made retroactively 
to the weighted-average number of outstanding shares if there is any increase 
(decrease) in the number of outstanding shares which does not result in changes 
in the stockholders’ percentage of equity interest. Where the effective dates of the 
above-mentioned events fall between the balance sheet date and the issue date of 
the financial statements, retroactive adjustments are also required. For the purpose 
of calculating diluted earnings per share, it is assumed that the convertible bonds 
are converted into the common stock on the date of issuance of the bonds, and the 
weighted-average number of outstanding shares is adjusted for the dilutive effect of 
the convertible bonds.

(23) Derivative fi nancial instruments and hedge trading
A. Oil swaps and interest rate swaps are utilized to hedge against fl uctuations in interest 

rates and oil prices. The initial recognization and subsequent valuation of derivative 
fi nancial instruments are carried at fair value. The assets are recognized for positive 
fair values, the liabilities are recognized for negative fair value.
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B. The changes in fair value of derivatives are recognized in the income statement when 
such instrument does not qualify for hedge accounting.

 Hedge relationship is classifi ed into the following three categories:
a) Fair value hedges: to mitigate the risk of changes in the fair value of a recognized 

asset or liability or unrecognized commitment.
b) Cash flow hedges: to mitigate the risk of volatility in cash flow. The volatility is 

attributable to a recognized asset or liability (such as all or some future interest 
payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction that 
might affect profi t or loss.

c) Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation: to mitigate the risk of the 
exchange rate fl uctuations associated with net investment in a foreign operation. 

 The Company used cash fl ow hedge to avoid the exchange risk arising from existing 
commitments.

C. The hedging relationship, management and strategy are documented at the 
beginning of a designated hedge. The hedge instruments, related hedge items or 
transactions and identification of hedged risk, and the method for measuring the 
hedge effectiveness, are also documented. The Company expects that the hedge 
could offset the volatility of fair value and cash fl ow during the period under hedge. 
The Company also assesses the effectiveness of hedge, and makes sure the hedge is 
highly effective during the period.

D. In the case where the hedge trading meets the criteria of hedge accounting, the 
accounting for hedging is set forth below:
a) Fair value hedge
 The fair value hedge is used to mitigate the risk of a fair value change of the 

recognized assets or liabilities, unrecognized commitment, or designated part 
of such items, which could arise from certain specifi c risk and affect income. In a 
fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the hedged items arising from hedged risks 
are recognized in the income statement. The gain or loss on derivative fi nancial 
instruments measured at fair value on the subsequent measurement is also 
recognized in the income statement.

 For the fair value hedge associated with hedged items that are initially measured 
at  amortized cost, the adjustment is amortized under effective interest method 
by the budging period and recognized in the income statement. The amortization 
begins either when the adjustment is recognized or when hedge accounting 
ceases to apply.

 For the unrecognized commitment that is designated as a hedge item, the 
cumulative fair value changes due to hedged risk are classified as assets or 
liabilities and recognized in the income statement.
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 The Company discontinues hedge accounting when the hedging instrument is 
settled, sold, terminated or exercised, no longer qualifi es for hedge since it does 
not meet the criteria of hedge relationship, or when the Company decides to 
revoke the designation.

b) Cash fl ow hedge
 Cash flow hedge avoids risk of volatility in cash flow arising from specific risks 

associated with recognized assets or liabilities, or highly expected transaction 
which will affect income statement. The gain or loss that is attributable to effective 
hedge is recognized in equity directly and that is attributable to ineffective hedge 
is recognized in income statement.

 In the case where the expected transaction being hedged is likely to result in the 
recognition of financial assets or financial liabilities, the gain or loss previously 
recognized directly as adjustments in equity is to be transferred to income 
statement as profi t or loss in the period when such assets or liabilities affect net 
income. In other cases where the expected transaction under hedge is likely to 
result in the recognition of non-fi nancial assets or non-fi nancial liabilities, the gain 
or loss previously recognized directly as adjustments in equity for such hedging 
instrument is treated as valuation adjustments to the book value of such assets or 
liabilities.

 When the occurrence of the expected transaction is deemed unlikely, the 
accumulated profit or loss previously recognized as adjustments in equity is 
recognized as profit or loss for the period. When hedging instruments are 
matured, sold, terminated or executed, or when the Company cancelled 
designated hedging instruments under initial recognition, the accumulated 
amount previously recognized directly as adjustments in equity remains in equity 
as an adjustment item when such expected transaction does occur. However, 
when such expected transaction is not likely to occur, the accumulated amount is 
recognized in current income.

c) Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation
 Accounting for hedge of net investment in a foreign operation is similar to 

accounting for cash fl ow hedge.  The hedge instruments are recognized directly 
in equity when deemed effective and recognized in the income statement when 
deemed ineffective. Cumulative gains or losses recognized as adjustments in 
equity are transferred to income statement upon disposal of foreign operation.

(24) Use of estimates
A. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting generally 

accepted principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
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affect the amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the fi nancial statements and the amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
assumptions and estimates.

B. Accrued expenses are recorded at the amounts stated in the original supporting 
documents. Foreign port charges without supporting documents are estimated 
based on past records and period-end sailing schedules. Differences between the 
expenses actually incurred in the following year and the estimated accrued expenses 
are credited or charged to operating costs or expenses in the following year.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
A. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the Statement of Financial Accounting 

Standards (SFAS) No. 34, "Accounting for Financial Instruments" and SFAS No. 36, 
"Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Instruments". All fi nancial instruments on hand 
as of the effective date are recognized according to the following:
a) Transactions which were designated as a hedge prior to the effective date 

For designated hedge transaction prior to the effective date which does not qualify 
for conditions of an effective hedge accounting is no longer applicable since the 
effective date. No retroactive adjustment is required for prior year accounting and 
relevant SFAS is to be complied with.

b) Accounting for derivative instruments 
 The Company recognizes all derivative financial instruments either as assets 

or liabilities at fair value. With the exception of those designated as hedging 
instruments, the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of all 
derivative financial instruments is recognized as cumulative effect of changes in 
accounting principles.

c) Accounting for fi nancial instruments at fair value through profi t or loss and amortized 
cost

 The Company reclassifi ed its fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities at fair value and 
amortized cost according to appropriated categories as of the effective date and 
measured each at fair value and amortized cost, respectively. Difference between 
the carrying value and the fair value of the fi nancial instruments at fair value through 
profi t or loss is recognized as cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles. 
Difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the fi nancial instruments 
either measured at amortized cost or classifi ed under the available-for-sale fi nancial 
instruments, and the derivatives which are associated with cash flow hedge or net 
investment hedge for foreign operation are recognized directly in equity.
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d) Accounting for cash fl ow hedge
 The Company reclassified the deferred income and loss incurred for cash flow hedge 

before the effective date that still qualify for conditions of an effective hedge since 
effective date to adjustment item in equity.

e) Accounting for the non-monetary assets denominated in foreign currency
 The Company revalues the costs of its non-monetary assets denominated in foreign 

currencies originally carried at costs using the prevailing exchange rate at the trade date. 
Cumulative loss originally recognized in equity is then transferred to other fi nancial assets.

The effects of the above changes in accounting principles on the fi nancial statements of the 
Company for the year ended December 31, 2006 are set forth as follows:

 Recognized as Cumulative 
 Effect of Changes in 

 Accounting Principles 

Recognized as
Adjustments 

 in Equity 
 Pre tax  After tax  Pre tax  After tax 

Financial assets at fair value
through profi t or loss-current  $81,120  $74,891  $-  $- 

Derivative fi nancial assets held
for hedging-current

                   
       - 

                   
       - 

              
169,983 

              
127,487 

Available-for-sale fi nancial
assets–non current

                   
       - 

                   
       - 

                
72,213 

                
72,213 

Held-to-maturity fi nancial
assets-non current

                   
       - 

                   
       - 

                  
3,799 

                  
2,849 

Debt investment with no active
market-non current

                   
       - 

                   
       - (367) (367)

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profi t or loss-current (228,665) (171,499)

                   
       - 

                   
       - 

Derivative fi nancial liabilities
held for hedging-non current

                   
       - 

                   
       - (75,574) (56,681)

Financial liabilities accounted
for by the cost method-non
current - - (9,004) (9,004)

Total ($147,545) ($96,608)  $161,050  $136,497 

 Pre tax  After tax 
Effect to earnings per share
(EPS): (In dollars)

Basic EPS ($0.05) ($0.03)
Diluted EPS ($0.05) ($0.03)
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B. The difference between initial investment and the net worth of investees’ equity for 
long-term investments under the equity method was amortized on a straight line 
basis over 5 years.  Pursuant to the newly revised SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Long-
Term Investment in Equity Securities”, effective January 1, 2006, such difference is 
recognized in accordance with the guidelines related to amortization of acquisition 
costs, as stated in SFAS No. 25 “Business combination-Purchase Price Accounting”. 
Difference attributable to goodwill is no longer amortized.  Such changes in 
accounting principles had no effect on net income and EPS for the year ended 
December 31, 2006. 

C. Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 37, “Accounting for Intangible Assets”. Such 
change in accounting principle had no effect on net income, EPS and total assets as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2007.

4. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS
(1) Cash and cash equivalents

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Cash  $7,414  $8,910 
Checking accounts            36,389               35,092 
Demand deposits               8,866              8,145 
Foreign currency deposits   1,470,787    671,175 
Time deposits (New Taiwan dollars)         700,000   1,357,800 
Time deposits (Foreign currencies)   2,236,790   1,393,096 
Add Unrealized foreign exchange gain 

(loss) 38,951 (21,685)
 $4,499,197  $3,452,533 

Interest rates on the above time deposits 1.70%~5.00% 0.24%~5.41%
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(2) Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss - current

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Financial asset held for trading
Listed (TSE and OTC) stocks  $35,113  $94,081 
Benefi ciary certifi cates 1,207,310  2,728,287 
Bond investments   - 13,948 
Interest rate swap (IRS) 12,349 34,179 
Currency exchange swap (CCS) 7,820 2,942 
Oil swap 54,343 - 
Structural fi nancial instruments 329,146 444,402 

1,646,081 3,317,839 
Adjustment of fi nancial asset held for

trading (173,543) 50,906 
 $1,472,538  $3,368,745 

A. The Company recognized net loss of $149,937 and gain of $75,469 for the years 
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

B. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding interest rate swap contracts are 
set forth below:

 December 31, 2007 
 Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

 Interest rate swap   03.08~08.08 NTD 500,000  $844 
 05.03~09.03 USD  10,000     2,316 
 04.07~09.07 USD 25,000 9,189 

 $12,349 

 December 31, 2006 
 Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

 Interest rate swap   03.08~07.08 USD 5,000  $5,239 
 04.05~07.09 USD 2,700             1,882 
 03.08~07.08 USD 7,500              7,862 
 05.03~09.03 USD 10,000            5,381 
 04.05~07.05 USD 10,000               2,586 
 05.03~09.03 USD 15,000            6,755 
 04.07~09.07 USD 25,000 4,474 

 $34,179 
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C. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding currency exchange swap 
contracts are set forth below:

 December 31, 2007 
 Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

 Currency exchange swap   07.10~08.10 USD 48,000 150 
   07.11~08.11 USD 104,000   6,751 
   07.11~09.05 USD 78,000     798 
   07.01~08.01 USD 24,000      121 

 7,820 

 December 31, 2006 
 Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

 Currency exchange swap   06.08~07.02 USD 3,000        800 
   06.08~07.03 USD  3,000      1,289 
   06.09~07.09 USD  3,000       205 
   06.09~07.03 USD    3,000     648 

  2,942 

D. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding oil swap contracts are set forth 
below:

 December 31, 2007 

 Contract period 
 Notional Quantity 

(Ton)  Carrying Value 
 Oil swap   07.08~10.01 399,230  $4,961 

   07.08~10.01 399,230       12,919 
   07.08~10.01 399,230          4,293 
   06.09~09.02 399,230      16,071 
   06.09~09.02 399,230       16,099 

 $54,343 

 December 31, 2006 NONE.
E. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the contracts of structural fi nancial instruments 

are set forth below: 

 December 31, 2007 
 Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

 Structural fi nancial instruments  USD 5,730 / JPY 508,150  $220,581 

 December 31, 2006 
 Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

 Structural fi nancial instruments  USD 12,000 / JPY 50,000  $441,406 
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(3) Derivative fi nancial assets for hedging - current
December 31, 2007 NONE. 

 December 31, 2006 
 Contract period  Notional Quantity (Ton)  Carrying Value 

Oil swap   06.09~09.02                                  5,000  $1,864 

(4) Accounts receivable, net

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Non-related parties  $603,085  $1,311,501 
Add: Unrealized foreign exchange gain 

(loss)                4,785 (1,422)
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,577) (    1,577)

       606,293  1,308,502 

Related parties       114,705        158,589 
 $720,998  $1,467,091 

(5) Other receivables

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Non-related parties
Accrued income  $3,896  $4,707 
Tax refundable           14,157              13,593 
Accounts receivable from disposal of 

investment             72,413          284,985 
Accounts receivable from disposal of 

property, plant and equipment    - 616,459 
Current portion of long-term installment 

receivable 27,841  275,422 
Incentive from Kaohsiung Harbor Bureau         237,002                       - 
Others        139,061            93,164 

         494,370  1,288,330 
Related parties

Others       134,985           78,582 
 $629,355  $1,366,912 
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(6) Other fi nancial assets - current

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Future transaction margin  $105,727  $106,083 

(7) Inventories

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Fuel  $559,953  $419,850 

(8) Other current assets

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Agency accounts  $2,668,473  $3,444,303 
Agency reciprocal accounts          35,836          34,464 
Temporary debits     72,773    100,672 

 $2,777,082  $3,579,439 

A. Agency accounts
 The Company has entered into agreements with foreign agents to deal with the 

port formalities related to foreign ports such as arrival and departure of ships, cargo 
loading, discharging and forwarding, collection of freight and payment of expenses 
incurred with foreign ports. The above transactions are booked in the agency accounts.

B. Agency reciprocal accounts
 The Company has been appointed by Evergreen International S.A., Gaining 

Enterprise S.A., Greencompass Marine S.A., Italia Marittima S.P.A. and Evergreen 
Marine(UK) Limited and Evergreen Marine(Hong Kong) LTD. as their agent to pay the 
petty cash required by their vessels, crew salaries and insurance premiums in Taiwan. 
The above transactions are booked in the agency reciprocal accounts.

(9) Available-for-sale fi nancial assets - non-current

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Listed (TSE and OTC) securities
Central Reinsurance Corp.  $490,801  $490,801 
Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd.         6,187          7,344 

      496,988    498,145 
Add: valuation adjustment   275,076    127,343 

 $772,064  $625,488 
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(10) Financial assets carried at cost - non-current

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Non-listed securities  $1,536,146  $2,195,805 

A. The Company’s investment in non-listed securities were measured at cost since its 
fair value cannot be measured reliably.

B. In April 2007, Taishin International Telecommunication Co., Ltd. purchased publicly-
listed shares of Taiwan Fixed Network Co. Ltd. The Company sold all its shares of 
Taiwan Fixed Network based on the purchase price of $8.3 (in dollars) per share. The 
Company’s investment cost was $700,000, and the purchase price was $581,000. As 
a result, a realized impairment loss of $119,000 was recognized for the year ended 
December 31, 2007.

C. In July 2007 and 2006, Power World Fund Inc. (PWF) reduced its capital at a 
conversion rate of 18.93% and 33.93%, respectively. The amount returned to the 
stockholders was $10 (in dollars) par value per share. As a result of the capital 
reduction, the proceeds received by the Company based on its proportionate equity 
interest in PWF were $3,409 and $9,261, respectively, and the carrying amount of the 
Company’s investment in PWF was written down by $3,409 and $9,261, respectively. 
No gain or loss was incurred.

D. On December 24, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution to 
participate in the issuance of common stocks for cash by GRETEC Construction 
Corp. and acquire 3,500 thousand common shares at $12.5 (in dollars) per share, 
respectively, resulting to a total investment of $43,750 which is recorded under 
fi nancial assets carries at cost.

(11) Investments in bonds without active markets

 Item  Period 
 Coupon 

 rate 
 December 31, 

 2007  2006 
Convertible Bond - Tuntex (Thailand) 

Public Company Limited 
 03.10.05 ~ 
 03.10.13 0%  $10,201  $9,686 

Add: Unrealized exchange gain 1,956 1,445 
 $12,157  $11,131 

A. In 1997, the Company purchased US$180 thousand of the convertible bonds issued 
by Tuntex (Thailand) Public Company Limited (Tuntex). As Tuntex encountered 
fi nancial diffi culties, it defaulted at maturity of the bonds. Accordingly, the Company 
fully recognized the losses on the bonds in 2001. Tuntex subsequently filed an 
application to the court for corporate restructuring and reached a consensus with the 
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creditors to reissue the abovementioned bonds. The convertible bonds allocated to 
the Company were recorded at their face value of THB15,737 thousand (NT$12,581 
thousand), and the Company recognized $12,581 thousand income under “non-
operating income – others” for the year ended December 31, 2005.

B. For stock conversion right of the above convertible bonds, please refer to Note D.23.

(12) Long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method

A. Details of long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity  method are 
set forth below: 

 Investee company 
 Percentage 

 of ownership 

 Carrying amount 
 December 31, 

2007 
 December 31, 

2006 
Peony Investment S.A. 100.00%  $48,998,704  $40,739,478 
Taiwan Terminal Service

Co., Ltd. 55.00%
                         

69,956 
                         

78,938 
Charng Yang Development

Co., Ltd. 40.00%
                       

464,831 
                       

434,098 
Evergreen International

Storage and Transport
Corporation 39.74%

                    
7,561,859 

                    
7,553,108 

Evergreen Security
Corporation 31.25%

                         
53,677 

                         
48,385 

EVA Airways Corp. 19.37% 8,559,094 8,937,289 
Taipei Port Container

Terminal Corporation 20.00%  327,546 150,227 
 $66,035,667  $57,941,523 
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B. Investment income (loss) accounted for under the equity method for the years ended 
December 31, 2007 and 2006 is set forth below: 

 December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 
Peony Investment S.A.  $7,990,833 ($1,875,250)
Taiwan Terminal Service Co., Ltd.             4,641           16,345 
Charng Yang Development Co., Ltd         37,933 32,101 
Evergreen International Storage and 

Transport Corporation 412,597 255,496 
Evergreen Security Corporation                 5,292                 7,558 
EVA Airways Corp. (362,585) (346,678)
Taipei Port Container Terminal 

Corporation (2,681) (2,993)
Toplogis Technology Corporation                   - (1,809)

 $8,086,030 ($1,915,230)

C. The investment income recognized for the above investees accounted for under 
the equity method was based on their fi nancial statements audited by independent 
auditors for the corresponding periods except for Taiwan Terminal Service Co., Ltd., 
Evergreen International Storage and Transport Corporation and Taipei Port Container 
Terminal Corporation. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, investment 
income of $8,086,030 and investment loss of $1,915,230 was recognized, respectively.

D. On March 1, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution for the 
Company to infuse additional cash in EVA Airways Corp. as a shareholder. The 
Company subscribed 58,159 thousand shares at $12 (in dollars) per share amounting 
to $697,906. The ownership decreased to 19.37% after the additional cash infusion. 
Therefore, the retained earnings decreased by $14,511. As of December 31, 2007 
and 2006, percentage of ownership was 19.37%.

E. On October 4, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution to sell all 
shareholdings in Toplogis Technology Corporation at $2.1 (in dollars) per share. With 
a disposal price of $2,100 and a carrying value of $2,254, the Company incurred an 
investment loss of $154.

F. On April 19, 2007 and December 24, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors passed 
a resolution for the Company to infuse additional cash in Taipei Port Container 
Terminal Corporation as a shareholder. The Company subscribed 18,000 thousand 
and 30,000 thousand shares at $10 (in dollars) per share amounting to $180,000 and 
$300,000. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, percentage of ownership was 20%.

G. Please refer to Note D.9. for details of the above second capital increase.



61

(13) Other long-term investments

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Membership fee and service charges 
paid to Marshall golf country club  $312  $ 312 

(14) Property, plant and equipment, net

 Asset 

 December 31, 2007 

 Initial cost 
 Accumulated 
 depreciation 

 Net 
 book value 

Land  $1,998,859  $ -  $1,998,859 
Buildings 1,512,002 (410,976) 1,101,026 
Loading / discharging 

equipment 4,399,522 (3,184,315) 1,215,207 
Computer equipment  132,254 (94,570)            37,684 
Transportation equipment 13,980,792 (9,353,491)  4,627,301 
Ships and equipment   5,770,086 (4,322,384)  1,447,702 
Dock facilities       296,619                   -    296,619 
Offi ce equipment       217,249 (159,733)          57,516 

28,307,383 (17,525,469) 10,781,914 
Prepayments for equipment        3,861                   -             3,861 

 $28,311,244 (17,525,469)  $10,785,775 

 Asset 

 December 31, 2006 

 Initial cost 
 Accumulated 
 depreciation 

 Net 
 book value 

Land  $1,998,859  $-  $1,998,859 
Buildings 1,511,958 (381,256)    1,130,702 
Loading / discharging 

equipment  4,426,531 (2,908,671)  1,517,860 
Computer equipment        136,763 (82,355)          54,408 
Transportation equipment 13,785,118 (11,293,404)   2,491,714 
Ships and equipment   5,770,086 (3,919,591)  1,850,495 
Dock facilities 531,633 -   531,633 
Offi ce equipment        212,439 (148,046)           64,393 

28,373,387 (18,733,323) 9,640,064 
Prepayments for equipment               8,111                 -            8,111 

 $28,381,498 ($18,733,323)  $9,648,175 
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A. All the aforementioned ships and equipment have been insured based on the market 
value of each vessel or the requirement of the creditor banks. As of December 31, 
2007 and 2006, the insurance coverage amounted to USD101,000 and USD72,500, 
respectively. In addition, the ships were covered by the protection and indemnity 
insurance with GARD. The indemnity amounts were unlimited except for oil pollution 
which was limited to USD 8 billion as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

B. The Company’s loading/discharging equipment has been covered by the general 
insurance for construction machinery with insurance coverage amounting to 
$2,001,831 and $2,160,186 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The 
fire insurance coverage for office equipment and building were $1,335,715 and 
$1,395,539 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Container facilities 
were insured with full coverage amounting to USD272,146 and USD265,608 as of 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

C. The Company entered into a construction agreement with Kaohsiung Harbor 
Bureau to complete the extension project of Pier No. 116 of Kaohsiung Harbor. 
The Company is entitled to use the pier free of charge for 16 years commencing 
from the date of completion. Upon expiration of the 16-year period, the Company 
is obliged to return the pier to the Bureau but has the priority to lease the pier. The 
construction project was reclassifi ed to dock facilities upon its completion on January 
1, 1992, and is amortized on a straight-line basis over 16 years with the amortization 
charged to loading/discharging expenses.

D. The Company entered into a construction agreement with Kaohsiung Harbor Bureau 
to complete the extension project of Piers No. 79~81 of Kaohsiung Harbor. The 
Company is entitled to use the piers free of charge for 10 years commencing from 
the date of completion. Upon expiration of the 10-year period, the Company is 
obliged to return the piers to the Bureau but has the priority to lease the piers. The 
construction project was reclassified to dock facilities upon its completion in the 
beginning of 2000, and is amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 years with the 
amortization charged to loading/discharging expenses.

(15) Long-term installment receivables

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Receivables from sales of vessels  $69,770  $371,367 
Less: Unrealized foreign exchange loss (4,807) (21,451)

            64,963        349,916 
Less: Current portion (27,841) (275,422)
Long-term installment receivables,net  $37,122  $74,494 
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A. The above installment receivables were derived from the sale of four vessels, GLEE, 
GLOW, GRUP and GALT, in 2001 and 2002 with a total price of USD54,648. The 
interest charged on the receivables is LIBOR (London InterBank Offered Rate) plus 
1.5%. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the accrued amount of the receivables 
was USD2,000 and USD10,737, respectively.

B. As of December 31, 2007, details of the long-term installment receivables to be 
collected in the following years are as follows (expressed in thousand dollars):

 Expiration  Amount 
Within 1 year USD 857 

1~2 years           1,143 
USD      2,000 

(16) Short-term loans

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Unsecured loans  $-  $834,000 
Interest rate  1.75%~5.04%  1.69%~1.73% 

(17) Financial liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss - current

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Financial liabilities held for trading 
Interest rate swap  $8,373  $28,641 
Oil swap      350,037     186,522 
Currency exchange swap      416,074       14,822 
Foreign exchange rate swap      289,230     234,241 

 $1,063,714  $464,226 
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A. The Company recognized net loss of $384,157 and $111,765 for the years ended 
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

B. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding interest rate swap contracts are 
set forth below:

 December 31, 2007 
 Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

 Interest rate swap   05.03~09.03 USD 15,000  $562 

   03.11~08.11 USD 20,000                  357 

   03.07~08.07 NTD 500,000           7,454 
 $8,373 

 December 31, 2006 
 Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

 Interest rate swap   02.07~07.07 NTD 125,000  $856 

   03.11~08.11 USD 20,000                  193 

   03.07~08.07 NTD 500,000           23,754 

   03.08~08.08 NTD 500,000          3,838 
 $28,641 

C. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding oil swap contracts are set forth 
below:

 December 31, 2007 

 Contract period 
 Notional Quantity

 (Ton)  Carrying Value 

 Oil swap  07.07~09.12   399,230  $347,246 

   07.11~100.04    399,230          2,791 
 $350,037 

 December 31, 2006 

 Contract period 
 Notional Quantity

 (Ton)  Carrying Value 

 Oil swap   05.02~07.06 10,000  $- 

   05.04~07.06 5,000          - 

   06.08~09.01 7,692        109,738 

   07.01~09.06 7,692           76,784 
 $186,522 
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D. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding currency exchange swap 
contracts are set forth below:

 December 31, 2007 

 Contract period 
 Notional 
Amount  Carrying Value 

Currency exchange swap   07.04~08.04 USD 24,000  $1,627 

   07.04~08.05 USD 24,000          1,896 

   07.05~08.05 USD 24,000         2,689 

   07.07~08.07 EUR 6,000     72,082 

   07.07~08.07 EUR 6,000       72,440 

   07.08~08.07 USD 52,000          36,685 

   07.08~08.08 USD 24,000         5,766 

   07.09~08.09 USD 24,000           8,120 

   07.09~08.09 USD 24,000         6,163 

   07.09~08.09 USD 24,000        4,932 

   07.09~08.09 USD 24,000             6,178 

   07.10~08.10 USD 52,000           32,261 

   07.10~09.10 EUR 48,000         40,181 

   07.10~09.10 EUR 24,000          16,866 

   07.10~09.10 EUR 24,000          15,281 

   07.11~09.11 USD 104,000          57,437 

   07.12~08.12 USD 104,000             35,470 

 $416,074 

 December 31, 2006 

 Contract period 
 Notional 
Amount  Carrying Value 

 Currency exchange swap   03.04~07.03 USD 6,250  $7,195 

   03.04~07.03 USD 2,500               2,775 

   06.12~07.12 USD 12,000             4,852 

 $14,822 
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E. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding foreign exchange rate swap 
contracts are set forth below:

 December 31, 2007 

 Contract 
period 

 Notional 
Amount  Carrying Value 

 Foreign exchange rate swap  06.12~11.12 USD 162,000  $221,027 

   04.05~09.05 EUR 25,000           68,188 

   01.10~07.08 USD 2,000 15 

 $289,230 

 December 31, 2006 

 Contract 
period 

 Notional 
Amount  Carrying Value 

 Foreign exchange rate swap  04.05~09.05 EUR 30,000  $27,431 

   03.08~11.12 USD 716,000      206,810 

 $234,241 

(18) Derivative fi nancial liabilities for hedging - current

 December 31, 2007 

 Contract 
period 

 Notional 
Amount  Carrying Value 

 Interest rate swap   03.06~08.06 NTD 300,000  $2,335 

        03.06~08.06 NTD 200,000             1,557 

 $3,892 

 December 31, 2006 

 Contract 
period 

 Notional  
 Quantity(Ton)  Carrying Value 

 Oil swap   06.09~09.02  5,000  $84,462 

     06.09~09.02  5,000         95,153 

     06.11~09.04  5,000           46,705 

     06.11~09.04   5,000        25,449 

 $251,769 
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(19) Accrued expenses

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Accrued expenses  $159,989  $154,972 
Estimated accrued expenses        3,182,078    3,732,252 
Less: Unrealized foreign exchange gain (12,721) (7,522)

 $3,329,346  $3,879,702 

The estimated accrued expenses represent the estimated expenses to be incurred with 
the foreign agents and on the agency services rendered by the Company to the foreign 
marine transportation companies. The estimated accrued expenses as of December 
31, 2006 were $3,724,730, of which $2,204,030 was reversed as of December 31, 
2007, constituting 59.17% of the estimated amount. The estimated accrued expenses 
as of December 31, 2005 were $2,544,448, of which $2,165,779 was reversed as of 
December 31, 2006, constituting 85.12% of the estimated amount.

(20) Long-term liabilities due within one year

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Corporate bonds payable  $1,500,000  $4,134,400 
Long-term bank loans     1,748,274  1,340,000 

 $3,248,274  $5,474,400 

(21) Derivative fi nancial liabilities for hedging - non-current
December 31, 2007: NONE.

 December 31, 2006 
 Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

Interest rate swap   03.06~08.06 NTD 300,000  $6,926 

  03.06~08.06 NTD 200,000        4,624 

    02.08~07.06 NTD 80,000         394 
 $11,944 

(22) Financial liabilities carried at cost - non-current

 December 31, 
 Item  Period  2007  2006 

Stock conversion 
Right 

Tuntex (Thailand) Public 
Company Limited  03.10.13  $9,004  $9,004 
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The above financial liability is the embedded stock conversion right obtained by 
the Company through acquisition of convertible corporate bond issued by Tuntex 
(Thailand) Public Company Limited (TUNTEX) during the fi rst quarter of 2005. As stated 
in the terms of the agreement, TUNTEX can choose either to pay back by cash at face 
value of corporate bonds (THB15,737 thousand dollars) or convert to stock on the 
maturity date.On initial acquisition, such transaction was not recorded separately, and 
subsequently measured at cost using the historical exchange rate.

(23) Corporate bonds payable

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Secured corporate bonds  $1,500,000  $4,000,000 
Unsecured corporate bonds           797,000    3,116,200 
Add: Accrued interest compensation 4,964                  9,614 

   2,301,964   7,125,814 
Less: Current portion (1,500,000) (4,134,400)

 $801,964  $2,991,414 

A. On January 12, 2004, the Company issued its fi rst unsecured domestic convertible 
bonds (referred herein as the “Bonds”) at face value, totaling $4 billion. The major 
terms on the issuance are set forth below:
a) Period: 5 years (January 12, 2004 to January 11, 2009)
b) Coupon rate: 0% per annum
c) Principal repayment and interest payment
 Unless the Bonds are redeemed, repurchased, resold, converted or deregistered 

before maturity, or other events occur due to regulatory reasons, the principal of 
the Bonds shall be repaid in lump sum by cash at maturity based on the face value 
of the Bonds.

d) Collaterals
 The Bonds are unsecured. However, if the Company subsequently issues other 

convertible bonds secured with collaterals, the rights of the bondholders to claim 
their credits and the collaterals are set at the same rank as the holders of the 
convertible bonds issued subsequently.

e) Redemption of the Company’s option
(a) During the period from 3 months after the issuance of the Bonds to 40 

days before the maturity of the Bonds, if the closing price of the Company’s 
common stock at the Taiwan Stock Exchange is equal to or more than 50% of 
the conversion price for a period of 30 consecutive trading days, the Company 
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may redeem 100% of the outstanding bonds in cash at the redemption price 
calculated based on the predetermined yield rate on redemption within 30 
trading days after the abovementioned 30 consecutive trading days. The yield 
rate on redemption is 0.20% per annum during the period from 3 months to 
3 years after the Bonds’ issuance. During the period from 3 years after the 
Bonds’ issuance to 40 days before the maturity of the Bonds, the Bonds are 
redeemable at their face value.

(b) During the period from 3 months after the issuance of the Bonds to 40 days 
before the maturity of the Bonds, if the total amount of the Bonds outstanding 
after the conversion by the bondholders is less than $400 million (10% of the 
total issued amount), the Company may redeem the outstanding bonds in 
cash in accordance with the terms stated in Paragraph (a) above.

(c) When the Company issues its redemption notice, if the bondholders do not 
reply before the effective redemption date, the Company may convert the 
bonds held by those bondholders into common stock at the conversion price 
in effect at the expiration of the notice period.

f) Redemption of the bondholders’ option
 During the period from 30 days before the 3-year maturity of the Bonds to the 

date of maturity, the bondholders may require the Company to redeem their 
bonds in cash at the face value plus interest compensation (i.e. 100.60% of the 
face value with a yield rate of 0.20% per annum).

g) Terms on conversion
(a) Conversion period
 The bondholders may convert the Bonds into the Company’s common stock 

during the period from 3 months after the Bonds are issued to 10 days before 
the maturity of the Bonds.

 The bondholders are prohibited from exercising their conversion right during 
the period from 3 trading days before the announcement of cash or stock 
dividends to the date of distribution of the cash or stock dividends.

(b) Conversion price
 The conversion price is the lowest of the three average closing prices of the 

Company’s common stock during the 10, 15 and 20 trading days before 
October 3, 2003 multiplied by 115%. If any cash or stock dividends are 
distributed before October 3, 2003, the closing price used in the computation 
of the conversion price must be adjusted for the effect of the dividend 
distribution. If any cash or stock dividends are distributed during the period 
from the date on which the conversion price is set to the date on which the 
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Bonds are converted, the conversion price is required to be adjusted in 
accordance with the adjusting formula specifi ed in the bond agreement. The 
conversion price at the issuance of the Bonds was set at $28.60 (in dollars). On 
December 31, 2007, the adjusted conversion price was $21.85 (in dollars).

h) Others
(a) Entitlement to cash dividends
 The bondholders who request to convert the Bonds on a date which is more 

than 3 trading days before the announcement of cash dividends are entitled to 
the cash dividends resolved by the stockholders in the current year.

 The bondholders who request to convert the Bonds 3 trading days before the 
announcement of cash dividends or later are not entitled to the cash dividends 
resolved by the stockholders in the current year, but are entitled to the cash 
dividends resolved by the stockholders in the following year.

(b) The affi liated companies of the Company may subscribe the Bonds, but do not 
have the right to convert the Bonds into the Company’s common stock.

B. On September 6, 2004, the Company issued its second unsecured domestic 
convertible bonds (referred herein as the “Second Bonds”) at face value, totaling $4.5 
billion. The major terms on the issuance are set forth below:
a) Period: 5 years (September 6, 2004 to September 5, 2009)
b) Coupon rate: 0% per annum
c) Principal repayment and interest payment
 Unless the Second Bonds are redeemed, repurchased, resold, converted or 

deregistered before maturity, or other events occur due to regulatory reasons, 
the principal of the Second Bonds shall be repaid in lump sum by cash at maturity 
based on the face value of the Second Bonds.

d) Collaterals
 The Second Bonds are unsecured. However, if the Company subsequently issues 

other convertible bonds secured with collaterals, the rights of the holders of the 
Second Bonds to claim their credits and the collaterals are set at the same rank as 
the holders of the convertible bonds issued subsequently.

e) Redemption of the Company’s option
(a) During the period from 3 months after the Second Bonds are issued to 40 days 

before the maturity of the Second Bonds, if the closing price of the Company’s 
common stock at the Taiwan Stock Exchange is equal to or more than 50% of 
the conversion price for a period of 30 consecutive trading days, the Company 
may redeem the outstanding bonds in cash at the face value of the Second 
Bonds within 30 trading days after the abovementioned 30 consecutive 
trading days. 
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(b) During the period from 3 months after the Second Bonds are issued to 40 days 
before the maturity of the Second Bonds, if the total amount of the Second 
Bonds outstanding after the conversion by the bondholders is less than $450 
million (10% of the total issued amount), the Company may redeem the 
outstanding bonds at their face value any time during the 40 days before the 
maturity of the Second Bonds.

(c) When the Company issues its redemption notice, if the bondholders do not 
reply before the effective redemption date, the Company may convert the 
bonds held by those bondholders into common stock at the conversion price 
in effect at the expiration of the notice period.

f) Redemption of the bondholders’ option
 During the period from 30 days before the 3.5-year maturity of the Second Bonds 

to the date of maturity, the bondholders may require the Company to redeem 
their bonds in cash at the face value.

g) Terms on conversion
(a) Conversion period
 The bondholders may convert the Second Bonds into the Company’s common 

stock during the period from 1 month after the Second Bonds are issued to 10 
days before the maturity of the Second Bonds.

 The bondholders are prohibited from exercising their conversion right during 
the period from 3 trading days before the announcement of cash or stock 
dividends to the date of distribution of the cash or stock dividends.

(b) Conversion price
 The conversion price can be any of the three average closing prices of the 

Company’s common stock during the 1, 3 and 5 trading days before August 
24, 2004 multiplied by 103%. If any cash or stock dividends are distributed 
before August 24, 2004, the closing price used in the computation of the 
conversion price must be adjusted for the effect of the dividend distribution. 
If any cash or stock dividends are distributed during the period from the date 
on which the conversion price is set to the date on which the Second Bonds 
are converted, the conversion price is required to be adjusted in accordance 
with the adjusting formula specifi ed in the bond agreement. The conversion 
price at the issuance of the Second Bonds was set at $28.50 (in dollars). On 
December 31, 2007, the adjusted conversion price was $18.27 (in dollars).

h) Entitlement to cash dividends
 The bondholders who request to convert the Second Bonds during the period 

from January 1 of the current year to any date which is more than 3 trading days 
before the announcement of cash or stock dividends are entitled to the cash or 
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stock dividends resolved by the stockholders in the current year. Conversion of 
the Second Bonds is prohibited during the period from 3 trading days before the 
announcement of cash or stock dividends to the ex-dividend date.

 The bondholders who request to convert the Second Bonds during the period 
from the date following the ex-dividend date to December 31 of the current year 
are not entitled to the cash or stock dividends resolved by the stockholders in 
the current year, but are entitled to the cash or stock dividends resolved by the 
stockholders in the following year.

(24) Long-term loans

   December 31, 

 Types of Loans  2007  2006 

Secured bank loans  $800,000  $1,333,333 

Unsecured bank loans      5,343,045        5,960,000 

Add: exchange loss                   6,253                    - 

  6,149,298 7,293,333 

Less: Current portion (1,748,274) (1,340,000)

 $4,401,024  $5,953,333 

Interest rate  2.18%~5.39%  2.18%~2.37% 

Please refer to Note F for details of the collaterals pledged for the above long-term 
loans.

(25) Pension liabilities
A. The Labor Pension Act (“the Act”), which adopts a defined contribution scheme, 

took effect from July 1, 2005. In accordance with the Act, employees of the 
Company may elect to be subject to either the Act, and maintain their seniority 
before the enforcement of the Act, or the pension mechanism of the Labor standard 
Law. Under the defi ned benefi t pension plan, two units are accrued for each year 
of service for the first 15 years and one unit for each additional year thereafter, 
subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based on the number of 
units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months 
prior to retirement. The Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 9.6% of 
the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited with 
Trust Division of Bank of Taiwan, the trustee, under the name of the independent 
retirement fund committee.
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(1) Actuarial assumptions

For the year Ended 
December 31, 2007

For the year Ended 
December 31, 2006

Discount rate 3.25% 3.25%

Increase in future salary level 2.00% 1.50%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 3.25% 3.25%

(2) The Company’s pension fund is deposited in an exclusive account with Trust Division of 
Bank of Taiwan. Reconciliation of the funded status of the plan to the carrying amount of 
accrued pension liability is as follows: 

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Benefi t obligations

Vested benefi t obligation (VBO) $(250,178) $(229,225)
Non-vested benefi t obligation (883,348) (871,778)
Accumulated benefi t obligation (ABO) (1,133,526) (1,101,003)
Effects of future salary increments (114,991) (114,620)
Projected benefi t obligation (PBO) (1,248,517) (1,215,623)

Fair value of plan assets 533,397 498,058
Funded status (715,120) (717,565)
Unrecognized net transition obligation 60,229 80,306
Unamortized prior service cost 20,895 22,502
Unrecognized loss on plan assets 477,975 507,130
Additional accrued pension liability (444,108) (495,318)
Accrued pension liability $(600,129) $(602,945)

(3) The pension costs comprise the following:

For the year Ended 
December 31, 2007

For the year Ended 
December 31, 2006

Service cost $45,972 $104,448
Interest cost 39,508 30,404
Expected return on plan assets (16,187) (15,125)
Deferred amortization

Unrecognized net transition obligation 20,076 20,076
Prior service cost 1,607 1,607
Unrecognized loss on plan assets 29,659 18,045

Net pension costs $120,635 $159,455
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B. Effective July 1, 2005, the Company established a funded defined contribution 
pension plan (the “New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”). Employees 
have the option to be covered under the New Plan. Under the New Plan, the 
Company contributes monthly an amount based on 6% of the employees’ monthly 
salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts at the Bureau 
of Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are portable when the employmemt is 
terminated.
The pension costs under the defi ned contribution pension plan for the years ended 
December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $140,766 and $172,511, respectively.

(26) Capital stock
A. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company’s authorized capital was 

$36,000,000 for both years, and the paid-in capital was $30,338,695 and $29,159,293, 
respectively, divided into 3,033,870 thousand and 2,915,929 thousand shares of 
common stocks, respectively, with a par value of $10 per share.

B. On June 23, 2006, the Company’s stockholders resolved to increase capital by 
capitalizing $1,907,617 of retained earnings. Accordingly, 190,762 thousand new 
shares were issued with a par value of $10 per share. The Company’s capital stock after 
the capital increase amounted to $29,159,293. The capital increase was approved 
by the Financial Supervisory Commission of Executive Yuan on July 12, 2006 as per 
Letter Jin-Kuan-Zheng-(1)-Zi No. 0950130032 with the effective capital increase date 
set on August 20, 2006.

C. Details of the common stock converted from the unsecured domestic convertible 
bonds issued by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are 
set forth below:

For the years ended December 31,
2007 2006

No. of Shares
(in ‘000) Amount

No. of Shares
(in ‘000) Amount

First unsecured 
convertible bonds 45,899  $458,990               -  $- 

Second unsecured 
convertible bonds 72,041 720,412  17,643 176,430 

117,940  $1,179,402 17,643  $176,430 

(27) Capital surplus
The Securities and Exchange Act Law requires that capital reserve shall be exclusively 
used to cover accumulated deficits or to increase capital and shall not be used for 
any other purpose. However, capital reserve arising from paid-in capital in excess 
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of par value on issuance of common stock and donations can be capitalized once a 
year, provided that the Company has no accumulated deficit and the amount to be 
capitalized does not exceed 10% of the paid-in capital.

(28) Appropriation of retained earnings and dividend policy
A. The sections of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation applicable to the 

appropriation of the 2005 earnings are as follows:
 According to Article 26 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, if there is any 

profi t for a fi scal year, the Company shall fi rst make provision for income tax, and 
cover prior years’ losses, then appropriate 10% of the residual amount as legal 
reserve. Dividends shall be proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved by the 
stockholders. Bonuses paid to employees shall be at least 1% of the total distributed 
amount and the remuneration paid to the directors and supervisors shall not exceed 
5% of the total distribution amount. The Company is currently at the stable growth 
stage. To facilitate future expansion plans, distribution to stockholders shall be in 
the form of both cash and stocks with proportions at 0%~50% and 100%~50%, 
respectively. To maintain the Company’s earnings per share at a certain level and 
in consideration of the impact of stock dividends on the Company’s financial 
performance, the proportions of cash and estimated earnings per share for the year 
in which the dividends are distributed decrease by more than 20% compared to prior 
year. The Company can also adjust the cash and stock dividends with proportions at 
100%~50% and 0%~50%, respectively, based on the Company’s fi nancial situation. 

B. On June 23, 2006, the Company’s Board of Stockholders resolved to amend the 
Company’s policy on dividends and distribution of earnings effective 2006. The 
newly revised policies are as follows:

 According to Article 26 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, if there is any 
profi t for a fi scal year, the Company shall fi rst make provision for income tax, and 
cover prior years’ losses, then appropriate 10% of the residual amount as legal 
reserve. Dividends shall be proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved by 
the stockholders. Bonuses paid to employees shall be at least 0.5% of the total 
distributed amount and the remuneration paid to the directors and supervisors 
shall not exceed 5% of the total distributed amount.  The Company is currently at 
the stable growth stage. In order to facilitate future expansion plans, dividends to 
stockholders are distributed mutually in the form of both cash and stocks with the 
basic principle that the ratio of cash dividends to total stock dividends shall not be 
lower than 10%.

C. Legal reserve
 Pursuant to the Company Law, the Company is required to set aside 10% of its 
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annual after-tax net income as legal reserve until the balance of such reserve equals 
the Company’s paid-in capital. Utilization of the legal reserve is limited to offsetting 
defi cits and capital increase. Appropriation of the legal reserve as cash dividends is 
prohibited.

D. Special reserve 
 If there is any negative stockholders’ equity item recorded by the Company, such as 

unrealized loss on the decline in market value of long-term equity investments and 
cumulative translation adjustments, the Company is required to set aside an amount 
equal to the amount of the negative stockholders’ equity item as special reserve from 
the after-tax net income. If the negative stockholders’ equity items are subsequently 
reversed, an amount not exceeding the reversed amount can be appropriated from 
the special reserve.

E. Appropriation of the 2006 and 2005 earnings as resolved by the stockholders on 
June 27, 2007 and June 23, 2006, respectively, is set forth below:

Appropriated 
Earnings

Dividend Per Share
(in dollars)

2006 2005 2006 2005
Cash dividends to common 

stockholders $877,045 $4,905,302 $0.30 $1.80
Stock dividends to 

common stockholders - 1,907,617 - 0.70
Cash bonus to employees 33,620 70,000
Remuneration to directors 

and supervisors 7,000 60,400

 Appropriation of the 2006 and 2005 earnings were calculated using the following 
formula. After distributing the bonus to employees and the remuneration to directors 
and supervisors, the after-tax basic earning per share for 2006 and 2005 decreased 
from $0.14 to $0.13 and from $4.23 to $4.19, respectively.

Formula

After-tax net income Cash bonus to employees
Remuneration to directors and supervisors 

Weighted-average number of outstanding shares
(After retroactive adjustment)

2006 = (411,580 33,620–7,000)/ 2,911,327 thousand shares=$0.13

2005 = (12,223,911–70,000–60,400)/ 2,886,869 thousand shares =$4.19
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F. Information relating to the appropriation of the Company’s 2007 earnings as 
proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved by the stockholders in 2008 is 
published on the “Market Observation Post System” at the website of the Taiwan 
Stock Exchange.

(29) Operating revenues

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Marine freight income  $26,448,735  $31,219,805 
Ship rental income         742,594     1,926,377 
Commission income and agency service 

income
      295,670         312,383 

Others        357,436         404,833 
 $27,844,435  $33,863,398 

(30) Expenses relating to personnel expense, depreciation, depletion and amortization
Personnel, depreciation, depletion and amortization expenses are summarized as follows:

 For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Operating cost 
Operating 
expense Total 

Personnel expenses
Salaries  $344,220  $1,004,869  $1,349,089 
Labor and health insurance            16,392             60,622             77,014 
Pension expense             54,033             86,734        140,767 
Others            22,514             30,848              53,362 

Depreciation        402,793       839,432   1,242,225 
Depletion  -               -                   - 
Amortization        602,613           26,834         629,447 

 For the year ended December 31, 2006 

 Operating cost 
 Operating 

expense  Total 
Personnel expenses

Salaries  $418,388  $814,606  $1,232,994 
Labor and health insurance            20,076            53,494            73,570 
Pension expense 70,800 101,711 172,511 

  Others            26,713           31,073           57,786 
Depreciation         328,464   1,180,109   1,508,573 
Depletion                      -                        -                     - 
Amortization         206,436           48,592       255,028 
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(31) Income tax

 For the years ended December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Income tax expense  $1,278,277  $140,670 
Add (Less):

Prepaid and withholding taxes (453,200) (573,547)
Separate income tax ( 337) (111)
Adjustments for changes in tax estimates            105,284 (815)
Net change in deferred income tax 

assets (498,979)  1,202,216 
Changes in accounting principles                             - (50,937)
Income tax effect arising from equity 

adjustments              64,488 ( 64,513)
Income tax payable  $495,533  $652,963 

A. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities 

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Total deferred income tax assets  $460,198  $468,188 
Total deferred income tax liabilities ($2,000,245) ($1,508,960)
Valuation allowance for deferred

income tax assets ($826) ($1,122)
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B.  Details of temporary differences,  resulting in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are 
as follows:

 December 31, 
 2007  2006 

 Amount  Tax effect  Amount  Tax effect 
Current items:

Bad debts  $556  $139  $786  $197 
Unrealized foreign exchange 

loss(gain) (23,700) (5,925)
          

16,282 
             

4,070 
Foreign dividends            -           - 3,742       936 
Loss(Gain) on valuation of 

fi nancial assets 81,025 20,256 (50,081) (12,520)
Loss(Gain) on valuation of 

fi nancial liabilities 1,014,844 253,711 431,511 107,877 
Loss(Gain) on valuation of 

fi nancial liabilities for hedging 3,892  973 (1,864) (466)
 $269,154  $100,094 

Non-current items:
Unrealized investment loss            -           - 1,300       325 
Deferred income on disposal of 

shipping equipment 581,152 145,288 1,044,603 261,151 
Unrealized expense and losses  3,306     826  3,188      797 
Pension expense 156,021 39,005 107,627 26,906 
Loss on valuation of fi nancial  

liabilities for hedging            -      - 263,714 65,929 
  Equity-accounted investment 

income (7,977,281) (1,994,320) (5,983,895) (1,495,974)
  Valuation allowance (826) (1,122)

($1,810,027) ($1,141,988)

C. The earnings of 2006 and 2005 proposed by the Board of Stockholders not to be 
appropriated, have been assessed the 10% sur tax amounting to $0 and $406,741, 
respectively.

D. As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s income tax returns through 2005 have been 
assessed and approved by the Tax Authority.
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E. Unappropriated retained earnings

 December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 
Earnings generated in and before 1997  $5,570,596  $5,570,596 
Earnings generated in and after 1998  18,273,064      8,850,185 

 $23,843,660  $14,420,781 

F. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the balance of the imputation tax credit account was 
$2,514,432 and $1,605,161, respectively. The creditable tax rate was 11.98% for 2006 and is 
estimated to be 24.45% for 2007.

(32) Earnings per share

 For the year ended December 31, 2007 

Amount           
Weighted-average 

outstanding
 common shares  

 Earnings per  
 share (in dollars) 

Before tax  After tax Before tax  After tax 
Net income $11,659,979  $10,381,702               2,943,402  $3.96  $3.53 
Dilutive effect of common 
stock equivalents:
(Convertible bonds)              55               41                  128,429 
Diluted earnings per share
Net income attributable to 

common  stockholders 
with  dilutive effect of  
common stock  $11,660,034  $10,381,743               3,071,831  $3.80  $3.38 

 For the year ended December 31, 2006 

Amount           
Weighted-average 

outstanding
 common shares  

 Earnings per  
 share (in dollars) 

 Before tax  After tax Before tax  After tax 
Net income  $648,858  $508,188  2,911,327  $0.22  $0.17 
Cumulative effect of changes 

in accounting principles (147,545) (96,608) (0.05) (0.03)
501,313 411,580  $0.17  $0.14 

Dilutive effect of common 
stock equivalents:
Convertible bonds     4,080      3,879                  171,422 
Diluted earnings per share
Net income  attributable 

to  common stockholders 
with dilutive effect of  
common stock  $505,393  $415,459 3,082,749  $0.16  $0.13 
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5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) Names of the related parties and their relationship with the company

Related Party Relationship with the Company

Evergreen International S.A. (EIS) Major stockholder of the Company

Taiwan Terminal Services Co., Ltd. (TTSC) Subsidiary of the Company

Peony Investment S.A. (Peony) Subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen International Storage and Transport 
Corporation (EITC)

Investee accounted for under the equity method

EVA Airways Corporation (EVA) Investee accounted for under the equity method

Evergreen Security Corporation (ESRC) Investee accounted for under the equity method

Charng Yang Development Co., Ltd. (CYD) Investee accounted for under the equity method

Evergreen International Corporation (EIC) Investee of the Company’s major stockholder

Evergreen State Transport Co., Ltd. 
(Evergreen State)

Investee of the Company’s major stockholder

Evergreen Star Transport Co., Ltd. (Evergreen Star) Investee of the Company’s major stockholder

Evergreen Airline Service Corporation (EAS) Investee of the Company’s major stockholder

Chang Yung-Fa Charity Foundation Its chairman being the Company’s director

Chang Yung-Fa Foundation Its chairman being the Company’s director

Shenzhen Greentrans Transportation Co., Ltd. 
(SGTC)

Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Vigor Enterprise S.A. (Vigor) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Clove Holding Ltd. (Clove) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Marine (UK) Limited (EMU)
(Formerly Hatsu Marine Limited)

Indirect subsidiary of the Company

PT. Multi Bina Transport (MBT) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

PT. Multi Bina Pura International (MBPI) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Greencompass Marine S.A. (GMS) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Heavy Industrial Co., (Malaysia) Sdn. 
Bhd. (EHIC(M))

Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Deutschland)
GmbH (EGD)

Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Ireland) Ltd. (EGU) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Netherlands) B.V. 
(EGN)

Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Poland) SP. ZO. O 
(EGD-WWX)

Indirect subsidiary of the Company
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Related Party Relationship with the Company

Evergreen Argentina S.A. (EGB) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Shipping Agency France Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Shipping (Spain) S.L. (EES) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Italy) S.P.A. (EIT) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Vietnam) Corp. (EGV) Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Green Peninsula Agencies SDU. Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Armand Investment (Netherlands) N.V.
(Armand N.V.)

Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Australia) Pty. Ltd 
(EMA)

Indirect subsidiary of the Company

Shanghai Jifa Logistics Co., Ltd. (SJL) Investee of Peony

Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. (NVC) Investee of Peony

Qingdao Evergreen Container Storage and 
Transportation Co., Ltd. (QECT)

Investee of Peony

Island Equipment LLC (Island) Investee of Peony

Whitney Equipment LLC (Whitney) Investee of Peony

Hemlock Equipment LLC (Hemlock) Investee of Peony

Taranto Container Terminal S.P.A. (TCT) Investee of Peony

Italia Marittima S.P.A (ITS) Investee of Peony

Evergreen Container Terminal (Thailand) (ECTT) Investee of Peony

Colon Container Terminal S.A. (CCT) Investee of Peony

PT. Evergreen Marine Indonesia (EMI) Investee of Peony

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 
(EGT)

Investee of Peony

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 
(EGS)

Investee of Peony

Evergreen Korea Corporation (EGK) Investee of Peony

Evergreen India Pte. Ltd. (EGI) Investee of Peony

Gaining Enterprise S.A. (GESA) Investee of EITC
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(2) Signifi cant transactions and balances with related parties
A. Operating revenues from related parties

 For the years ended December 31, 

 2007  2006 

 Amount 

 % of Total 
 Operating 
 Revenues  Amount 

 % of Total 
 Operating 
 Revenues 

EITC  $102,540          -  $102,298           - 

EIC 2,007,331 8 2,183,110          7 

EVA                     51   -                    130          - 

TTSC            3,082  -                2,971           - 

ITS    136,061  -         916,617           3 

EMU          81,777  -        378,204        1 

GMS      324,647 2        131,974          - 

EIS         99,569  -         90,774          - 

GESA          21,203  -        24,603         - 

 $2,776,261   10 $3,830,681 11 
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B. Expenditures on services rendered by related parties

 For the years ended December 31, 
 2007  2006 

 Amount 

 % of Total  
 Operating  
 Costs and
Expenses  Amount 

 % of Total  
 Operating  
 Costs and  
 Expenses 

EITC  $848,033         3  $908,056        3 
EIC    378,970   2    304,830    1 
TTSC       742,019    3   692,203         2 
ESRC         43,880     -       53,564         - 
EAS             1,796    -              6,879          - 
EVA              3,793         -          10,988    - 
GESA 1,792,169     7 1,804,413         6 
ITS      392,106       2     361,734       1 
EMU      233,047      1       717,750          3 
GMS        466,998       2        781,175         3 
EIS      119,952       -      119,019          - 
EMI            54,978      -           61,579           - 
EGT          56,640        -         56,119          - 
EGI           18,425    -                           -           - 
EGS         16,868      -           45,304           - 
EGK          12,334    -         21,450            - 
EHIC(M)                    -        -                     88            - 

$5,182,008       20 $5,945,151         19 

C. Asset transactions
a. Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment

 Items  December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 
EITC Ships and equipments  $-  $2,059,117 
ESRC Offi ce equipment                              -                         620 
EIC Transportation equipment                   3,845                              - 

 $3,845  $2,059,737 
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a) In order to coordinate adjustments for routes and fl eet of ships, on March 1, 
2006, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to acquire the Uni-Crown, the 
Uni-Chart, the Uni-Concert, the Uni-Corona, and the Uni-Concord from related 
party-EITC, at a total price of USD 63,800 thousand. As of December 31, 2006, 
the ships were delivered and payments were made in full.

b) The EITC is accounted for under the equity method. According to regulations, 
unrealized gain from the above acquisition is eliminated proportionately to 
the percentage of shareholding. As of December 31, 2007, the unrealized 
gain amounted to $173,725 and was recorded as deduction in long-term 
investment.

b. Sales of property, plant and equipment

For the year ended 
 December 31, 2007 

For the year ended 
 December 31, 2006 

 Items  Price 
 Gain on  
 disposal  Price 

 Gain on  
 disposal 

GMS Ships and equipments  $-  $-  $1,211,569  $1,100,533 

TTSC Computer equipment 48  2    -       - 

 $48  $2  $1,211,569  $1,100,533 

a) In order to coordinate adjustments for routes and fl eet of ships, on March 1, 
2006, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to sell the Ever-Growth, the 
Ever-Gentle, the Ever-Garden, the Ever-Gifted, and the Ever-Govern to indirect 
subsidiary-Greencompass Marine S.A. for a total price of USD 37,000 thousand. 
The GRTH, the GNTL, the GRDN, the GIFT, and the GOVN were delivered and 
full payments were received as of December 31, 2006. 

b) The Company has effective control over GMS which is accounted for under 
the equity method.  According to the regulation, all unrealized gain from the 
transaction is eliminated.  As of December  31, 2007, the unrealized gain of 
$581,152 was recorded as other liabilities-deferred debts. 
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D. Leases
a. Rental income (recorded as non-operating income) generated from the operating 

premises and parking lots leased to the related parties are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
 2007  2006 

 Amount 
 % of Total 

Rental Income  Amount 
 % of Total 

Rental Income 
EIC Offi ce buildings  $72,402          97  $58,580         93 

Transportation 
equipment

                
1,664            - 

                
1,938           3 

EVA Parking lots       304         1        288           1 
ESRC Parking lots  96  - 240        - 

 $74,466       98  $61,046   97 

b. Rent expenses (recorded as general and administrative expenses) incurred for 
operating premises and parking lots leased from the related parties are as follows:

 For the years ended December 31, 
 2007  2006 

Leasehold 
Property  Amount 

 % of Total 
Rental Expense  Amount 

 % of Total 
Rental Expense 

EIC Offi ce buildings  $39,834         96  $37,151       93 
EITC Offi ce buildings    1,091           3     1,286           3 
EVA Parking lots         738          1       1,382        4 

 $41,663   100  $39,819     100 

c. Rent expenses incurred for the vessels and slot leased from the related parties are 
recorded under direct operating costs. Details are set forth below:

 For the years ended December 31, 
 2007  2006 

 Amount 

 % of Total 
Vessel and 
slot Rental 
Expenses  Amount 

 % of Total 
Vessel and 
slot Rental 
Expenses 

ITS $381,706          9 $ 361,339          6 
EMU 232,880           5 717,750          12 
GMS 500,757         11 779,539       14 
EIS 119,862           3 118,354          2 
GESA 1,798,309           40 1,813,302          31 
EITC 633,167     14 709,444      12 

$3,666,681        82 $4,499,728       77 
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E. Receivables from and payables to related parties
 The receivables from and payables to related parties bear no interest, and are set 

forth as follows:

 December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 

 Amount 

 % of  
 Account  
 Balance  Amount 

 % of  
 Account  
 Balance 

Accounts receivable

EIC  $60,901           9 $85,577           6 

EITC 24,556         3        24,844          2 

GESA 1,663           -          1,932            - 

EIS 13,474          2         7,795            - 

GMS  9,337           1        10,434          1 

ITS           191           -         10,496          1 

EMU         4,583         1         17,511           1 

$114,705        16 $158,589        11 

 December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 

 Amount 

 % of 
 Account 
 Balance  Amount 

 % of 
 Account 
 Balance 

Other receivables

EITC  $37  -  $91         - 

EVA               45   -                37           - 

EIC         74,666 12 74,651            5 

CCT         3,275  1           3,103           - 

EIS        30,065   5                   -           - 

GESA        1,745  -                   -           - 

GMS         21,750 4                  -           - 

EMU 1,113  - - - 

ITS           1,538  -                  -  - 

TTSC             270   -             270 - 

Others              481    -             430          - 

 $134,985 22  $78,582          5 
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 December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 

 Amount 

 % of 
 Account 
 Balance  Amount 

 % of 
 Account 
 Balance 

Accounts payable
EITC  $8,338 -  $10,067 1 
TTSC 44,357 2 48,870 2 

EIC 23,430 1 8,355 - 
ESRC 3,728 - 8,673 - 
ITS 32,441 2 9,609 - 
GMS 28,966 1 8,356 - 
EMU 18,679 1 269,965 11 
EMI 10,621 1 - - 
EGI 23,319 1 - - 
EIS 67,496 3 383,596 15 
Others 5,389 - 690 - 

 $266,764 12  $748,181 29 

(3) Endorsements and guarantees for related parties
Endorsements and guarantees provided for its related parties are as follows:

 December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 
GMS USD 817,706 USD 710,215 
PEONY USD 188,000 USD 187,600 
TCT USD 85,592 USD 76,292 
EMU USD 645,829 USD 587,587 
CCT USD 53,000 USD 53,000 
WHITNEY USD 12,000 USD 12,000 
HEMLOCK USD - USD 50,628 
ITS USD 10,000 USD 10,000 

(4) Signifi cant contracts with related parties
A. The Company entered into an agreement with EIC for various consulting services 

on business management, computer information, and shipping affairs. Except for 
payments made on behalf of the Company which are charged on actual amounts, 
the remaining fees are charged on an hourly basis or by cost plus method. The 
contract took effect on July 1, 1996 and continues to be in effect unless terminated.

B. The Company entered into an agency agreement with EIC. Under the agreement, 
EIC has served as the Company’s agent for cargo forwarding and freight collection 
since 2002. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the amount receivable under the 
agency agreement was $60,901 and $85,577, respectively.
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C. The Company entered into an agreement with ESRC. Under the agreement, ESRC 
shall provide security service in the Taipei office, Kaohsiung office, and container 
yards. The service fees for Taipei offi ce, Kaohsiung offi ce and container yards were 
$940 and $1,614 per month, respectively. The fees are paid monthly. For long-term 
contracts, please refer to Note G.

D. The Company entered into agency agreements with its related parties to manage 
petty cash required by their vessels, and payments of native crew salaries and 
insurance premiums in Taiwan. The transactions are recorded under “agency 
reciprocal accounts”. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the debit balances of the 
accounts are as follows:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
EIS $13,029 $10,748
GMS 10,733 15,484
GESA 4,861 4,895
EMU 5,115 3,337

$33,738 $34,464

E. The Company entered into agency agreements with its related parties, whereby the 
related parties act as the Company’s overseas agents to deal with the port formalities 
related to foreign ports, such as arrival and departure of the Company’s ships, cargo 
stevedoring and forwarding, freight collection and payment of expenses incurred 
in foreign ports. The transactions are recorded under “agency accounts”. As of 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the balances of the accounts are as follows:
a. Debit balances of agency accounts

 December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 
GMS  $-  $1,279,479 
EIC - 53,517 
GESA 27,282 15,434 
ITS 1,756,597 121,141 
EMI 15,409 40,568 
EGT 55,125 67,154 
EIS - 475,594 
EGK - 6,533 
EGS 4,328 784 
EGI 93,239 10,191 
EGU 11,000 - 
EES 15 - 
EIT 8,629 - 

 $1,971,624  $2,070,395 
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b. Credit balances of agency accounts

 December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 

EMU  $114,884  $363,502 

EIC 10,468 - 

GMS 659,645 - 

EIS 413,405 - 

EGK 2,019 - 

EGD 246 - 

EGN 947 - 

EGB 2,635 - 

EGF 510 - 

EGV 42,509 - 

 $1,247,268  $363,502 

F. The Company has been commissioned by its related parties to manage their vessel 
affairs. The management fees are charged monthly and are recorded as operating 
revenues. Details of the management fees recognized for the years ended December 
31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

For the year ended 
December 31, 2007

For the year ended 
December 31, 2006

EITC $94,271 $94,028

EIS 99,569 90,774

GMS 109,897 131,974

ITS 1,710 -

EMU 59,104 63,451

GESA 21,203 24,603

$385,754 $404,830

(5) In order to give back to society, the Company sponsored charities for the public good 
to Chang Yang-Fa Foundation and Chang Yung-Fa Charity Foundation with $43,000 
and $1,500 in 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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6. PLEDGED ASSETS
The Company’s assets pledged as collateral as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as 
follows:

 Pledged asset 
 Book value 

 Purpose  December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 
Restricted assets-current

-Time deposits
 $184,411  $134,915 Performance 

guarantee
Property, plant and 

equipment
2,717,061 2,742,786 Long-term loan

 $2,901,472  $2,877,701 

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A. Details of the stand-by letters of credit issued by the banks on behalf of the Company 

are as follows: (expressed in thousand dollars)

Guarantor December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Bank of America USD 5,000 USD 5,000

B. Endorsements and guarantees issued by the Company are as follows: (expressed in 
thousand dollars)

Companies receiving guarantees December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

GMS USD 817,706 USD 710,215
Peony USD 188,000 USD 187,600
TCT USD 85,592 USD 76,292
EMU USD 645,829 USD 587,587
CCT USD 53,000 USD 53,000
Whitney USD 12,000 USD 12,000
Hemlock USD - USD 50,628
ITS USD 10,000 USD 10,000

C. A former stockholder of the Company sold some of its shares through issuance of 
global depository receipts (GDRs). The issuance of GDRs was approved by the SEC 
on June 19, 1996 as per Letter (85) Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No. 35410.  On August 2, 1996, 
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the GDRs were approved by the UK governing authority to be listed on the London 
Stock Exchange and were issued in Asia, Europe and the US. The initial number of units 
issued was 5,449,592, representing 54,495,920 shares of the Company’s common stock 
at $50.50 (in dollars) per share, and the number of supplementary units issued was 
817,438. In total, the number of units issued was 6,267,030, representing 62,670,300 
shares of the Company’s common stock at $50.50 (in dollars) per share, and the GDRs 
issued amounted to USD 115 million. Another 2,053,122 units, representing 20,531,279 
shares of the Company’s common stock, were issued during the period from 1997 to 
December 31, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, 7,799,086 units were redeemed and 
521,066 units were outstanding, representing 5,210,719 shares of the Company’s 
common stock.

D. As of December 31, 2007, the medium-term loan facilities granted by the financial 
institutions with the resolution from the Board of Directors to finance the Company’
s purchase of new containers and general working capital requirement amounted to 
$20,625,442 and the unutilized credits were $12,496,230.

E. As of December 31, 2007, details of the loading and discharging equipment acquired to 
support the operations of the No. 4 and No. 5 Container terminal at Kaohsiung Harbor 
were as follows: (expressed in thousand dollars)

Item Contract Amount Amount Paid Amount Accrued
Forklift USD 598 USD 120 USD 478

F. As of December 31, 2007, the estimated amounts of rent payable in the following years 
under the long-term lease agreements entered into by the Company for the rental of 
ships and equipment were as follows:

Lessor
Amount

(in thousand dollars)
EITC USD 45,091
GESA  168,683
GMS  11,778
MCC  6,650
ESI  27,366
EIS  3,064

USD 262,632
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G. As of December 31, 2007, the estimated amounts of security service in the following 
years under the long-term contract that the Company entered into with ESRC amounted 
to $32,728 thousand. 

H. As of December 31, 2007, the guaranteed notes issued by the Company for loans 
borrowed amounted to $3,073,500.

8. SIGNIFICANT CATASTROPHE
NONE.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On December 24, 2007,the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to participate in the 
capital increase of Taipei Port Container Terminal Corporation as an original stockholder. 
In addition, the Company had paid the full amount on March 25, 2008 and completed 
the registration procedures. The Company paid $10 for each share and received 30,000 
thousand new shares, amounting to $300,000.
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10. OTHERS
(1) Fair value information of fi nancial instruments:

 December 31, 2007 
 Fair value 

 Book 
 value 

 Quotations 
 in an active 

 market 

 Estimated 
 using a 

 valuation 
 technique 

Non-derivative fi nancial instruments
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents  $4,499,197 $-  $4,499,197 
Notes and accounts receivable 1,323,537 - 1,323,537 
Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss

Equity securities 25,364 25,364 - 
Benefi ciary certifi cates 1,152,081 1,152,081 - 

Other fi nancial assets-current 105,727 - 105,727 
Restricted assets-current 184,411 - 184,411 
Available-for-sale fi nancial assets-non current 772,064 772,064 - 
Financial assets carried at cost-non current 1,536,146 - - 
Debt investments with no active market-non current 12,157 - - 
Long-term receivable including current portion 64,963 - 64,963 
Refundable deposits 38,641 - 38,641 

Liabilities 
Notes and accounts payable 6,178,116 - 6,178,116 
Corporate bonds payable(including current portion) 2,301,964 - 2,301,964 
Long-term loans(including current portion) 6,149,298 - 6,149,298 
Guarantee deposits received 64 - 64 

Derivative fi nancial instruments
Assets

Interest rate swap (IRS) 12,349 - 12,349 
Currency exchange contracts (CCS) 7,820 - 7,820 
Oil swap 54,343 - 54,343 
Structured and equity-linked fi nancial instruments 220,581 - 220,581 

Liabilities 
Interest rate swap (IRS) 12,265 - 12,265 
Currency exchange contracts (CCS) 416,074 - 416,074 

Foreign exchange option (FX Option) 289,230 - 289,230 
Oil swap 350,037 - 350,037 
Conversion right of stock 9,004 - 9,004 
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 December 31, 2006 
 Fair value 

Book
 value 

Quotations
in an active

 market 

Estimated
using a

 valuation 
 technique 

Non-derivative fi nancial instruments
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents  $3,452,533  $-  $3,452,533 
Notes and accounts receivable 2,565,042 - 2,565,042 
Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss

Bonds investments 14,015 14,015 - 
Equity securities 82,030 82,030 - 
Benefi ciary certifi cate 2,794,173 2,794,173 - 

Other fi nancial assets-current 106,083 - 106,083 
Restricted assets-current 134,915 - 134,915 
Available-for-sale fi nancial assets-non current 625,488 625,488 - 
Financial assets carried at cost-non current 2,195,805 - - 
Debt investments with no active market-non current 11,131 - - 
Long-term receivable including current portion 349,916 - 349,916 
Refundable deposits 37,298 - 37,298 

Liabilities 
Short-term debts 834,000 - 834,000 
Notes and accounts payable 7,315,854 - 7,315,854 
Corporate bonds payable(including current portion) 7,125,814 - 7,125,814 
Long-term loans(including current portion) 7,293,333 - 7,293,333 
Guarantee deposits received 515 - 515 

Derivative fi nancial instruments
Assets

Interest rate swap (IRS) 34,179 - 34,179 
Currency exchange contracts (CCS) 2,942 - 2,942 
Oil swap 1,864 - 1,864 
Structured and equity-linked fi nancial instruments 441,406 - 441,406 

Liabilities 
Interest rate swap (IRS) 40,585 - 40,585 
Currency exchange contracts (CCS) 14,822 - 14,822 
Foreign exchange option (FX Option) 234,241 - 234,241 
Oil swap 438,291 - 438,291 
Conversion right of stock 9,004 - 9,004 
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The unrealized loss that the Company recognized for the years ended December 31, 
2007 and 2006 due to changes in fair value estimated using a valuation technique were 
$1,097,767 and $430,101, respectively.

(2) The following summarizes the methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair 
value of fi nancial instruments:
a. The fair values of short-term financial instruments were determined using their 

carrying value because of the short maturities of these instruments. This method 
applies to cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivable (payable), other 
fi nancial assets, restricted assets, refundable deposits, short-term debts, short-term 
bills payable and guarantee deposits received.

b. For fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t or loss and available-for-sale fi nancial 
assets with quoted market price available in an active market, the fair value is 
determined using the quoted market price. When there is no quoted market price 
for reference, a substitute valuation technique is used to measure the fair value 
which incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in making 
estimations and assumptions for setting a price and wherein such information is 
available to the Company.

c. Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets are those with fi xed or determinable payments and 
a fi xed time-to-maturity which the Company has positive intent and ability to hold. 
Upon measurement, held-to-maturity fi nancial assets are carried at amortized cost. 
Any profits or losses incurred due to changes in fair value should be recognized 
in the income statement when the financial asset is derecognized, impaired or 
amortized.

d. Financial assets carried at the cost consist of unlisted stocks or those not actively 
traded in an active market. Their fair value could not be measured reliably; hence, 
such instruments are measured at cost in compliance with applicable accounting 
standards. For debt investments with no active market, the carrying value is used to 
estimate its fair value when there is no market price for reference.

e. Long-term accounts receivable are interest-bearing financial assets with floating 
interest rate, thus the carrying value is close to the fair value.

f. Fair values of long-term loans are estimated based on the present values of future 
cash fl ows.  For bank loans associated with fl oating interest rate, the carrying value 
represents their fair value.

g. Fair values of corporate bonds payable are determined as the quoted market prices 
when available. When the quoted market prices are not available, fair values are 
estimated based on fi nancial information or other information.
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h. Financial liabilities carried at costs are equity-linked instruments which are to be 
settled with equity instruments with no quoted market prices or with fair values that 
can not be reliably measured. Such instruments are measured at costs in accordance 
to the rules stipulated in the “Guidelines for Preparation of Financial Statements by 
Securities Issuers”. 

i. The fair values of derivative financial instruments, except for corporate bonds 
payable are determined based on the estimated amounts to be received or paid if 
the Company terminates the contract on the balance sheet date. Unrealized gains 
or losses arising from unsettled contracts are generally included. Ask price from 
counterparties are available for reference in setting fair values for the Company’s 
derivative fi nancial instruments.

(3) As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the fi nancial assets with fair value risk due to the 
change of interest rate amounted to $12,349 and $34,179, respectively, the fi nancial 
liabilities with fair value risk due to the change of interest rate amounted to $12,265 
and $40,585, respectively, and the fi nancial assets with cash fl ow risk due to the change 
of interest rate amounted to $1,499,842 and $657,982, respectively, the financial 
liabilities with cash fl ow risk due to the change of interest rate amounted to $6,149,298 
and $7,233,333, respectively.

(4) For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, total interest income (calculated 
using the effective interest method) for financial assets and financial liabilities that 
are not at fair value through profi t or loss amounted to $171,390 and $151,467, total 
interest expense (calculated using the effective interest method) for fi nancial assets and 
fi nancial liabilities that are not at fair value through profi t or loss amounted to $170,877 
and $148,723 respectively.

(5) Risk Policy and hedging strategy
The fi nancial instruments held by the Company, other than derivative instruments, are 
composed of cash and cash equivalents, stocks, funds, bank loan, and corporate bonds. 
Such financial instruments are held for maintaining adequate operating capital. The 
Company also held other accounts receivable and payable generated from operating 
activity.
The transactions associated with derivative instruments mainly include interest rate 
swap and oil swap. The primary objective is to avoid the interest rate risk and fuel price 
variation arising from operating and fi nancing activities.
The primary risks of fi nancial instruments are cash fl ow risk associated with interest rate 
fluctuations, exchange rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The risk management 
policies are set forth below:
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Cash fl ow risk associated with interest rate variations
The Company’s major exposure to cash fl ow risk associated with interest rate variations 
comes primarily from long-term fi nancing with fl oating interest. The Company adopts a 
combination of fi xed and fl oating interest rates methods in issuance of loans to manage 
such interest rate risks. In addition, the Company also engages in interest rate swaps to 
minimize cost of borrowings.
As of December 31, 2007, the carrying values of the Company’s fi nancial instruments 
exposed to interest rate are summarized in the order of maturity as follows:
a. Fixed interest rate

Within 1 year  1~2 years 2~3 years Over 3 years  Total 

Cash and cash equivalents  $2,955,636  $-  $-  $-  $2,955,636 

Corporate bonds (1,000,000) - - - (1,000,000)

Bank loan (500,000) - - - (500,000)

b. Floating interest rate

Within 1 year 1~2 years 2~3 years Over 3 years  Total 

Cash and cash equivalents  $1,499,842  $-  $-  $-  $1,499,842 

Bank loan (533,333) (266,666) - - (799,999)

(666,667) (666,667) - - (1,333,334)

(48,274) (96,548) (96,548) (103,445) (344,815)

- (500,000) - - (500,000)

- - - (2,371,150) (2,371,150)

- - - (300,000) (300,000)

Corporate bonds (500,000) - - - (500,000)

The interest of financial instruments associated with the floating interest rates is 
remeasured within 1 year period and the interest for fi nancial instruments associated 
with the fi xed interest rate is fi xed to maturity. The fi nancial instruments not included 
in the above table are not subject to interest payments and thus do not have inherent 
interest rate risk. 
Exchange rate risk
Although the Company is exposed to exchange rate risk, the Company has stable cash 
inflows denominated in foreign currencies for meeting cash outflows denominated 
in foreign currency due to the fact that the Company operates in international 
transportation industry. In order to minimize exchange rate risk, the Company also 
engages in activities, such as borrowing of US dollar loans, etc.
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Credit risk
The Company only deals with third parties with good credit standing. In compliance 
with the Company’s policies, strict credit assessment is to be performed by the 
Company prior to providing credit to customers. The occurrence of bad debts is 
also minimized by the Company’s practice of continuously monitoring and assessing 
collections on accounts and notes receivables and making adjustments to the credit 
terms granted to each customer based on the conclusion drawn from such assessment. 
Moreover, the Company is restricted from engaging in credit trading with other 
business units operating under other functional currencies unless permission from the 
highest instruction unit has been received.
Other fi nancial instruments held by the Company are subject to credit risk arising from 
the failure of counterparty to settle their contractual obligations as and when they fall 
due. Since the Company only deals with third parties with qualifying credit standings, 
no collateral is required by the Company which also represents that the maximum credit 
exposure amount equals to the relative carrying value. The maximum credit exposure 
amount for various fi nancial assets held by the Company is analyzed as below:

 December 31, 2007 

 Carrying value 
 Maximum credit 

 exposure amount  Financial instruments 
Financial assets at fair value through

profi t or loss
Equity securities  $25,364  $25,364 
Benefi ciary certifi cates 1,152,081 1,152,081 
Interest rate swap 12,349 12,349 
Currency exchange swap 7,820 7,820 
Oil swap 54,343 54,343 
Others 220,581 220,581 

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets-non 
current
Equity securities 772,064 772,064 

Financial assets carried at cost-non current 
Stock 1,536,146 1,536,146 

Bonds investment with no active market-
non current

Corporate bonds 12,157 12,157 
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 December 31, 2006 

 Financial instruments  Carrying value 
 Maximum credit 
exposure amount 

Financial assets at fair value through
profi t or loss
Bond investment  $14,015  $14,015 
Equity securities 82,030 82,030 
Benefi ciary certifi cates 2,794,173 2,794,173 
Interest rate swap 34,179 34,179 
Currency exchange swap 2,942 2,942 
Others 441,406 441,406 

Derivative fi nancial assets for hedging-
current
Oil swap 1,864 1,864 

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets-non 
current
Equity securities 625,488 625,488 

Financial assets carried at cost-non current 
Stock 2,195,805 2,195,805 

Bonds investment with no active market-
non current
Corporate bonds 11,131 11,131 

Credit risk refers to the risk of counterparty’s failure to settle contractual obligations 
as and when they fall due. The credit risk presented in the above table is the positive 
net amount of all contracts with positive fair values at the balance sheet date. The 
credit risk amount presented is the loss that may be incurred by the Company in the 
case of counterparty’s default. Since the counterparties of the Company are business 
enterprises or financial institutions with good credit rating, the potential credit risk 
event is remote. In addition, since the Company is not concentrated in transactions with 
one individual or counterparty, no concentration of credit risk is evident.
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Liquity risk
The Company achieves the objectives of effective use of capital and stabilization of 
capital by adjusting capital through the use of cash and cash equivalents, financial 
instruments held for trading, bank loans and corporate bonds, etc. The operating 
capital of the Company is sufficient in meeting capital on demand; therefore, no 
signifi cant liquidity risk is expected.

(6) Hedging activity
Cash fl ow hedge
The Company also engages in oil hedging transactions to minimize oil cost arising from 
variations in oil price. The Company compares the oil price and settles the contracts 
by cash to offset the oil cost (an expected transaction) and to avoid the cash fl ow risk 
from oil price monthly. As of now, the effectiveness of hedging was within a range of 
80% to 125%. In addition, the Company holds interest rate swap contracts in avoiding 
the variation between fl oating and fi xed rate, the effective hedge accounts for 80% to 
125%.

 Designated for hedging instrument 

 Hedge 
 item 

 Financial 
instrument was
designated for

Hedging
  instrument 

 Fair value Period of 
gain (loss)
recognized 
in income
statements 

 
December 
31, 2007 

 
December 
31, 2006 

Period of
anticipated
 cash fl ow 

Floating interest 
debts 

 Interest rate 
swap 

($3,892) ($11,944) 02~08 02~08

Expected oil 
transaction 

 Oil swap - (249,905) 04~08 04~08

Items
December 
31, 2007

December 
31, 2006

Adjustment amount in equity  $193,469 ($267,194)
Adjustment amount from equity to income statement (193,469) 267,194 
Adjustment amount from equity to non fi nancial assets - - 
(liabilities)
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Evergreen Marine Corporation and Subsidiaries Greencompass Marine S. A.
Derivative fi nancial instrument transactions

December 31, 2007

A. Derivative fi nancial instruments transactions:
(a) The contract amounts (or notional principal) and credit risk (expressed in thousand 

dollars)

December 31, 2007

Financial Instruments
Notional Principal
(Contract Amount) Credit Risk

Interest rate swaps (IRS) USD 149,204 USD 179

Currency exchange swap (CCS) USD 444,000 USD 86

The above credits risk amounts are based on the contracts with positive fair values 
on the balance sheet date and represent the possible loss that will be incurred by the 
Company in the event of counterparties’ default. The counterparties of the Company 
are all well-known banks with good credit ratings. Thus, the credit risk is assessed to be 
remote.

(b) Market risk
The interest rate swaps are utilized to hedge against fl uctuations in interest rates.  The 
foreign exchange options are derivative fi nancial instruments which are held for trading. 
Periodic reviews are conducted for evaluating the level of Subsidiary’s exposure to 
market risk, and a stop-loss mechanism has been established to minimize the impact of 
market risk on the Subsidiary’s operations.

(c) Liquidity risk, cash flow risk and the amount, timing and uncertainty of demand for 
future cash fl ow.
As no principals are exchanged upon settlement of the interest rate swaps and forward 
exchange options, no significant demand for cash flow is expected. Therefore, the 
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Subsidiary’s working capital is assessed to be adequate and no funding risk is dominant. 
In addition, since the interest rates, exchange rates and prices are predetermined, no 
signifi cant cash fl ow risk is expected. 

(d) The types, objectives and strategies of holding derivative fi nancial instruments
 The derivative financial instruments undertaken by the Company are held for trading 

and non-trading purposes. The primary objectives of derivative financial instruments 
held for non-trading purposes are to mitigate risk of debt obligations and commitments 
arising from fl uctuations in interest rates and exchange rate. The hedging strategy of 
the Company focuses on mitigating market price risks. On the other hand, the primary 
objective of the derivative financial instruments held for trading purposes is to profit 
from exchange rate and price differentials.

(e) Financial statement disclosures for derivative fi nancial instruments 

a) Interest Rate Swaps:
 The contracts are settled based on the difference between the spot interest rate and 

contracted interest rate. The amount received and paid upon settlement is recorded 
as a deduction from and an addition to the interest expense on shipping finance, 
respectively.

b) Foreign Exchange Option:
 As the Company has actual position in the underlying assets, full settlements are 

conducted at expiration of the contracts. The difference between the spot exchange 
rate and the contracted rate is recorded as foreign exchange gain or loss upon 
settlement.

B. Fair values of fi nancial instruments

December 31, 2007

Derivative fi nancial instruments Carrying Value Fair Value

Interest rate swaps(IRS) USD 149 USD 149

Currency exchange swaps(CCS) USD (11,872) USD (11,872)
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12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(1) Financial information by industries
The Company is engaged in only one single industry, i.e. international marine 
transportation and shipping agency. Therefore, no disclosure is required.

(2) Financial information by geographical areas
The Company is engaged in international marine transportation. Dealings with foreign 
ports, such as port formalities relating to arrival and departure of the Company’s ships, 
cargo stevedoring and forwarding, collection of freight, and payment of expenses 
incurred with foreign ports, are handled by overseas shipping agents. Therefore, no 
disclosure is required.

(3) Export information
As the Company is engaged in international marine transportation, every vessel sails 
between the major harbors in the world. Therefore, no export sales are reported.

(4) Information on major customers
The Company provides services to customers all over the world. No single customer 
of the Company accounts for more than 10% of the Company’s operating revenues.
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 4. Consolidated Financial Statements With Report of
 Independent Auditors

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Evergreen Marine Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Evergreen Marine 
Corporation (the Company”) and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and the related 
consolidated statements of income, of changes in stockholders’ equity and of cash flows 
for the year then ended. These fi nancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’
s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of 
Peony Investment S.A., a subsidiary of the Company, and its affiliated companies, which 
statements reflect total assets of 55,752,105 thousand New Taiwan dollars, constituting 
40.32% of the consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2007, and net operating revenues 
of 42,688,889 thousand New Taiwan dollars, constituting 29.46% of the consolidated net 
operating revenues for the year then ended. In addition, we did not audit the financial 
statements of all the investee companies accounted for under the equity method. Long-
term investments in these companies amounted to 18,639,656 thousand New Taiwan dollars, 
constituting 13.48% of the consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2007, and the related 
investment loss was 261,708 thousand New Taiwan dollars for the year then ended. Those 
statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to 
us, and our report expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Peony 
Investment S.A. and its affiliated companies accounted for under the equity method, is 
based solely on the reports of the other auditors. The consolidated fi nancial statements of 
Evergreen Marine Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 were audited 
by other auditors whose report dated March 23, 2007 expressed an unqualifi ed audit report 
with explanatory paragraph stating that part of the Company and its subsidiaries’ investment 
income accounted for under the equity method for the year ended December 31, 2006 
was recognized based on the investees’ financial statements audited by other auditors. 
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Rules Governing Examination of Financial 
Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing standards in 
the Republic of China. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated fi nancial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall consolidated fi nancial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the consolidated fi nancial 
statements referred to in the fi rst paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial 
position of Evergreen Marine Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and 
the results of its operations and its cash fl ows for the year then ended in conformity with the 
“Rules Governing the Preparation of Financial Statements by Securities Issuers”, “Business 
Entity Accounting Law”, “Regulations on Business Entity Accounting Handling” and generally 
accepted accounting principles in the Republic of China.

As discussed in Note C to the financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, Evergreen 
Marine Corporation and its subsidiaries adopted the SFAS No. 34, “Accounting for Financial 
Instruments” and No. 36, “Disclosure and Presentation of Financial Instruments”.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
April 7, 2008
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

The accompanying fi nancial statements are not intended to present the fi nancial position and 
results of operations and cash fl ows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and 
practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such fi nancial statements may differ 
from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. 
Accordingly, the accompanying fi nancial statements and report of independent accountants are 
not intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing 
standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications in practice.As the 
fi nancial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot 
accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or 
misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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 2007  2006 
 AMOUNT  %  AMOUNT  % 

Operating Revenues (Notes 4(29) and 5) $ 144,924,457  100 $ 150,076,753  100
Operating Costs (Notes 4(30) and 5) ( 130,605,936 ) ( 90 ) ( 149,911,806 ) ( 100 )
Gross profi t  14,318,521  10  164,947  -
Operating Expenses (Notes 4(30) and 5)

General and administrative expenses
                          
( 3,996,094 )

     
( 3 )

                          
( 3,717,782 )

     
( 2 )

Operating income  10,322,427  7 ( 3,552,835 ) (    2 )
Non-operating Income and Gains                                                          

Interest income  450,444  -  571,769  -
Gain on valuation of fi nancial assets (Note 4(2))  -  -  69,856    -
Investment income accounted for under the equity 

method (Note 4(12))  186,811  -                 -    -
Dividend income  302,669  -  306,370    -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (Note 5)  2,428,443  2  3,655,102  3
Gain on disposal of investments  53,619  -  139,556    -
Foreign exchange gain, net  891,106  1  174,968  -
Rental income (Note 5)  73,211  -  63,033    -
Other non-operating income  209,614  -  1,306,739    1

Non-operating Income and Gains  4,595,917  3  6,287,393  4
Non-operating Expenses and Losses                                                               
  Interest expense ( 403,320 )  - ( 1,322,558 ) ( 1 )

Loss on valuation of fi nancial assets (Note 4(2)) ( 530,229 ) ( 1 )   -    -
Loss on valuation of fi nancial liabilities(Note 4(17)) ( 384,157 )  - ( 102,771 )    -
Investment loss accounted for under the equity 

method (Note 4(12))  -  - ( 957,114 ) ( 1 )
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note 5) ( 2,341 )  - ( 16,676 )    -
Financing charges ( 28,604 )  - ( 52,951 )    -
Impairment loss (Note 4(10)) ( 119,000 )  -                 -    -
Other non-operating losses ( 15,848 )  - ( 39,138 )    -

Non-operating Expenses and Losses ( 1,483,499 ) ( 1 ) ( 2,491,208 ) ( 2 )
Income from continuing operations before income tax  13,434,845  9  243,350  -
Income tax expense (Note 4(31)) ( 1,411,168 ) ( 1 ) ( 84,958 )    -
Consolidated Income from continuing operations  12,023,677  8  158,392  -
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles  -  - ( 103,370 )    -
(Net of tax benefi t of $50,937)                                                               
Consolidated Net income $ 12,023,677  8 $ 55,022  -
Consolidated Net Income Attributed to:

Stockholders of the Company $ 10,381,702  7 $ 411,580  -
Minority interest  1,641,975  1 ( 356,558 )    -
Consolidated Net Income $ 12,023,677  8 $ 55,022  -

  Before Tax  After Tax  Before Tax  After Tax 
Basic earnings per share (Note 4(32))
  Consolidated Net income from continuing operations $ 4.56 $ 4.08 $ 0.08 $ 0.05
  Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles        -        - ( 0.05 ) ( 0.03 )
Minority interest ( 0.62 ) ( 0.55 )        0.12        0.12
Consolidated Net income $ 3.94 $ 3.53 $ 0.15 $ 0.14
Diluted earnings per share(Note 4(32))
  Consolidated Net income from continuing operations $ 4.37 $ 3.91 $ 0.08 $ 0.05
  Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles        -        - ( 0.05 ) ( 0.03 )
Minority interest (          0.60 ) (          0.53 )        0.11        0.11
Consolidated Net income $ 3.77 $ 3.38 $ 0.14 $ 0.13

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
See report of independent accountants dated April 7, 2008.

EVERGREEN MARINE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)
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EVERGREEN MARINE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

 2007  2006 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES           

Net income $ 12,023,677 $ 55,022
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities           

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles for fi nancial instruments          -  103,370
Depreciation  4,702,137  5,057,295
Amortization  50,541  49,952
Reclassifi cation of depreciation of dock facilities to operating costs and others  602,613  206,436
Reclassifi cation of amortization of deferred charges to others  38,903  63,075
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment ( 1,888,626 ) ( 3,643,443 )
Excess of equity-accounted investment loss over cash dividends  227,238  1,559,943
Loss on impairment of fi nancial assets carried at cost  119,000          -
Interest amortization of fi nancial assets and unrealized exchange gains ( 1,026 )  1,083
Interest compensation of convertible bonds ( 4,650 )  3,275
Financial assets held-to-maturity - current  -          21,421
Net loss on disposal of long-term equity investments under equity method          -  154
Changes in assets and liabilities      

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss  3,190,988  1,909,459
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale fi nancial assets ( 12,923 )  -
Notes and accounts receivable  2,275,911  1,697,140
Other receivables  657,916 ( 555,983 )
Other fi nancial assets  356 ( 106,083 )
Inventories  272,472  202,048
Prepaid expenses and prepayments ( 1,188,113 ) ( 204,015)
Restricted assets ( 49,496 ) ( 2,865 )
Agent accounts  768,226  1,082,104
Agency reciprocal accounts ( 4,344 ) ( 4,328 )
Other current assets  27,392 ( 69,898 )
Refundable deposits  487,145 ( 267,406 )
Notes and accounts payable  7,041,385 ( 208,777 )
Income tax payable ( 83,030 ) ( 825,131 )
Accrued expenses ( 8,391,648 )  2,360,055
Other payables ( 1,108,577 ) ( 294,147 )
Other current liabilities  25,312 ( 17,877 )
Accrued pension liability  60,932  83,006
Deferred income tax assets / liabilities  500,762 ( 1,193,210 )
Taxes due to changes in accounting principles for fi nancial instruments          -  26,385
Taxes due to unrealized gain or loss on cash fl ow hedge ( 64,488 )  89,065
Other liabilities ( 619,714 )  192,689 

Net cash provided by operating activities  19,656,271  7,369,814 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES           

Proceeds from capital reduction of investee $ 3,409 $ 9,261
Acquisition of long-term equity investment accounted for under the equity method ( 464,398 ) ( 762,995 )
Proceeds from sale of long-term equity investment accounted for under the equity method          -  2,100
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale fi nancial assets - non current  14,080          -
Acquisition of fi nancial assets carried at cost - non current ( 43,750 ) ( 22,100 )
Proceeds from sale of fi nancial assets carried at cost - non current  581,000          -
Acquisition of other long-term investments ( 3,282 )  -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment ( 8,271,710 ) ( 10,236,293 )
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  2,585,537  9,938,276
Increase in deferred expenses ( 65,386 ) ( 79,763 )
Decrease in long-term receivables  37,372  72,132

Net cash used in investing activities ( 5,627,128 ) ( 1,079,382 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES           

Decrease in short-term loans ( 735,277 ) ( 966,000 )
Decrease in short-term bills payable          - ( 799,755 )
Increase (decrease) in long-term loans  712,121 ( 2,452,898 )
Decrease in corporate bonds payable ( 2,500,100 ) ( 1,500,000 )
Increase in guarantee deposits received  140  489
Distribution of cash dividends ( 877,045 ) ( 4,910,302 )
Distribution of employee bonuses and directors and supervisors' remuneration ( 40,620 ) ( 131,086 )
Net change in minority interest  442,766  353,420 

Net cash used in fi nancing activities ( 2,998,015 ) ( 10,406,132 )
Effect of Initial Consolidation of Subsidiaries  1,429,589          - 
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes ( 958,548 ) ( 1,018,820 )
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  11,502,169 ( 5,134,520 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  10,100,138  15,234,658 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 21,602,307 $ 10,100,138 
Supplemental information of cash fl ow information           

Interest paid $ 500,665 $ 1,360,209 
Less: Interest capitalized          -          - 
Interest paid, net of interest capitalized $ 500,665 $ 1,360,209 
Income tax paid $ 1,042,172 $ 2,124,269 

Financing Activities Not Affecting Cash Flows
Long-term liabilities due within one year $ 4,761,212 $ 7,277,580 
Capitalization of retained earnings $        - $ 1,907,617 
Conversion of convertible bonds into common stock $ 2,319,100 $ 382,479 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
See report of independent accountants dated April 7, 2008.
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EVERGREEN MARINE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION
(1) The Company

Established on September 25, 1968, Evergreen Marine Corporation (the “Company”) is 
mainly engaged in domestic and international marine transportation, shipping agency 
services and the distribution of containers.  The Company was approved by the Securities 
and Futures Commission (SFC), Ministry of Finance (MOF) (currently known as the Securities 
and Futures Bureau (SFB), Financial Supervisory Commission, Executive Yuan) to be a 
public company on November 2, 1982 and was further approved by the SFC to be a listed 
company on July 6, 1987. The Company’s shares have been publicly traded on the Taiwan 
Stock Exchange since September 21, 1987. As of December 31, 2007, the Company and 
its subsidiaries included in the consolidated fi nancial statements had approximately 3,389 
employees.  The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred herein as the Group.

(2) Subsidiaries included in the consolidated fi nancial statements and their changes in 2007

Ownership (%)

Investor Subsidiary Main activities
December 
31 2007

December 
31 2006 Description

The 
Company

TTSC Cargo loading and 
discharging

55.00 55.00

Peony Investments in transport-
related businesses

100.00 100.00

Peony GMS Container shipping 100.00 100.00

Clove Investments in container 
yards and port terminals

100.00 100.00

Vigor Investments in container 
manufacturing

100.00 100.00

EMU Container shipping 51.00 51.00
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Ownership (%)

Investor Subsidiary Main activities
December 
31 2007

December 
31 2006 Description

Peony EHIC (M) Manufacturing of dry steel 
containers and container 
parts

84.44 84.44

Armand 
N.V.

Investments in container 
yards and port terminals

70.00 70.00

SGTC Loading, discharging, 
storage, repairs, cleaning 
and inland transportation 
of containers

55.00 55.00

MBPI Container storage and 
inspections of containers 
at the customs house

95.30 95.30

MBT Inland transportation, 
repairs and cleaning of 
containers

86.91 86.91 MBT is 17.39% 
directly owned by 
Peony and 72.95% 
indirectly owned by 
Peony through MBPI. 
Therefore, Peony’s 
total equity interest in 
MBT is 86.91%.

Island Investments in operating 
machinery and equipment 
of port terminals

43.65 43.65 Peony indirectly holds 
15% and 36% equity 
interest in Island 
through EMU and 
Clove, respectively. 
Therefore, Peony’s 
total equity interest in 
Island is 43.65%.

EGS Agency services dealing 
with port formalities

51.00 25.50

EGK 100.00 50.00
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Ownership (%)

Investor Subsidiary Main activities
December 
31 2007

December 
31 2006 Description

Peony EMI Agency services dealing 
with port formalities

51.00 25.44

EGT 51.00 25.50

EGI 99.99 49.98

EMA 51.00 25.50

EIT 55.00 -

EES 55.00 -

ERU 51.00 -

EGD 100.00 -

EGU(DBL) 100.00 -

EGD(WWX) 100.00 -

EGF 99.40 -

EGN 100.00 -

EGV 51.00 -

EGB 99.99 -

Clove Ample Investments in container 
yards and port terminals

90.00 90.00

Armand 
N.V.

Armand 
B.V.

Investments in container 
yards and port terminals

100.00 100.00

Island Whitney Investments and leases 
of operating machinery 
and equipment of port 
terminals

100.00 100.00

Hemlock Investments and leases 
of operating machinery 
and equipment of port 
terminals

100.00 100.00
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(3) Subsidiaries that are included in the consolidated fi nancial statements:
A. EGS, EGK, EMI, EGT, EGI, and EMA were acquired by Peony in December 31, 2007. 

As of December 31, 2007, Peony’s equity interest were 51%, 100%, 51%, 51%, 
99.99% and 51%.

B. EIT, EES, ERU, EGD, EGU (DBL), EGD (WWX), EGF, EGN, EGV and EGB were acquired 
by Peony in December 31, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, Peony’s equity interest 
were 55%, 55%, 51%, 100%, 100%, 100%, 99.4%, 100%, 51% and 99.99%.  

(4) Subsidiaries that is not included in the consolidated fi nancial statements: None.

(5) Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates: None.

(6) Special operating risks in foreign subsidiaries: None.

(7) Nature and extent of the restrictions on fund remittance from subsidiaries to the parent 
company: None.

(8) Contents of subsidiaries’ securities issued by the parent company: None.

(9) Information on convertible bonds and common stock issued by subsidiaries: None.

(10) The restricted situation that the distribution of the related party’s earnings: None.

(11) The method and term of consolidated term amortized: None. 

(12) Other important information for proper expressed for proper expressed for 
consolidated fi nancial statements: None.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in 
accordance with “Rules Governing the Preparation of Financial Statements by Securities 
Issuers”, “Business Entity Accounting Law”, “Regulations on Business Entity Accounting 
Handling” and accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China.  The 
Group’s signifi cant accounting policies are as follows:
(1) Classifi cation of current and non-current assets and liabilities

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; 
otherwise they are classifi ed as non-current assets:
a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized or 

consumed, or are intended to be sold within the normal operating cycle;
b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
c) Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance 

sheet date;
d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and 

those that are to be exchanged or used to pay off liabilities more than twelve 
months after the balance sheet date.
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B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classifi ed as current liabilities; 
otherwise they are classifi ed as non-current liabilities:
a) Liabilities arising from operating activities that are expected to be paid off within 

the normal operating cycle;
b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;
c) Liabilities that are to be paid off within twelve months from the balance sheet 

date;
d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to 

more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.
C. Financial liabilities that expire within 12 months from the balance sheet date which 

meet the following conditions are classifi ed as non-current liabilities:
a) The original contract term exceeds one year.
b) Intended for long-term refi nancing.
c) Have completed long-term refinancing and extended the period of liabilities 

before the balance sheet date, or have the intention to refi nance or extend the 
period of liabilities by one year after balance sheet date.

(2) Foreign currency transactions
A. The Group maintains its accounts in New Taiwan dollars. Transactions denominated 

in foreign currencies are translated into New Taiwan dollars and functional currencies 
at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Exchange gains or 
losses due to the difference between the exchange rate on the transaction date 
and the exchange rate on the date of actual receipt and payment are recognized in 
current year’s profi t or loss.

B. Receivables, other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. 
Exchange gains or losses are recognized in profi t or loss.

C. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized directly in equity, any 
exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognized directly in equity. 
Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profi t or 
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognized in profi t or 
loss. However, non-monetary items that are measured on a historical cost basis are 
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

(3) Translation of fi nancial statements of foreign subsidiaries
Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into New Taiwan dollars 
using the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Equity accounts are translated 
at historical rates except for beginning retained earnings, which is carried forward 
from prior year’s balance. Dividends are translated at the rates prevailing at the date 
of declaration. Profit and loss accounts are translated at weighted-average rates of 
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the year. The resulting translation differences are included in “cumulative translation 
adjustments” under stockholders’ equity.

(4) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks and other short-term 
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible to known amount of cash and 
which are subject to insignifi cant risk of changes in value resulting from fl uctuations in 
interest rates.
The consolidated statements of cash fl ows were edited based on the basis of cash and 
cash equivalents.

(5) Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss - current
A. Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

recognized and derecognized using trade date accounting and are recognized 
initially at fair value.

B. These financial instruments are subsequently remeasured and stated at fair value, 
and the gain or loss is recognized in profi t or loss. The fair value of listed stocks, OTC 
stocks and closed-end mutual funds and GDR is based on latest quoted fair prices 
of the accounting period. The fair value of open-end and balanced mutual funds is 
based on the net asset value at the balance sheet date.

(6) Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets - current
A. Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets are recognized or derecognized using trade date 

accounting and are stated initially, at its fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the fi nancial asset.

B. The fi nancial assets are carried at amortized cost.
C. If there is any objective evidence that the fi nancial asset is impaired, the impairment 

loss is recognized in profi t or loss. If the fair value of the fi nancial asset subsequently 
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after 
the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be 
reversed to the extent of the loss previously recognized in profi t or loss.

(7) Investments in bonds without active markets - current
A. Investments in bonds without active markets are recognized and derecognized using 

trade date accounting and are stated initially at its fair value plus transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the fi nancial asset.

B. This fi nancial asset is carried at amortized cost. Any change in the fair value of the 
assets to be received during the period between the trade date and settlement date 
is not recognized.

C. If there is any objective evidence that the fi nancial asset is impaired, the impairment 
loss is recognized in profit or loss. If, subsequently, the fair value of the asset 
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after 
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the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be 
reversed to the extent of the loss previously recognized in profi t or loss.

(8) Available-for-sale fi nancial assets
A. Available-for-sale fi nancial assets are recognized and derecognized using trade date 

accounting and are initially stated at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the fi nancial asset.

B. The financial assets are remeasured and stated at fair value, and the gain or loss 
is recognized in equity, until the fi nancial asset is derecognized, at which time the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity shall be recognized in profi t 
or loss. The fair values of listed stocks, OTC stocks and closed-end mutual funds and 
GDR are based on latest quoted fair prices of the accounting period. The fair values 
of open-end and balanced mutual funds are based on the net asset value at the 
balance sheet date.

C. If there is any objective evidence that the fi nancial asset is impaired, the cumulative 
loss that had been recognized directly in equity shall be transferred from equity to 
profi t or loss. When the fair value of an equity instrument subsequently increases, 
impairment losses recognized previously in profi t or loss shall not be reversed. When 
the fair value of a debt instrument subsequently increases and the increase can be 
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized 
in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be reversed to the extent of the loss 
recognized in profi t or loss.

(9) Financial assets carried at cost
A. Investments in unquoted equity instruments are recognized or derecognized using 

trade date accounting and are stated initially at its fair value plus transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the fi nancial asset.

B. If there is any objective evidence that the fi nancial asset is impaired, the impairment 
loss is recognized in profi t or loss. Such impairment loss shall not be reversed when 
the fair value of the asset subsequently increases.

(10) Derivative fi nancial assets for hedging
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a contract is entered into 
and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognizing the 
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging 
instrument and the nature of the hedged item.
(A) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value 
hedges are recognized in profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of the hedged 
asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged item are recognized in profi t or 
loss as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item.
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If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to 
the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method was 
used is amortized to profi t or loss over the period of maturity.

(B) Cash fl ow hedges:
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated 
and qualify as cash fl ow hedges is recognized in equity. The gain or loss relating to 
the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profi t or loss.
a) If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of 

a fi nancial asset or a fi nancial liability, the associated gains or losses that were 
recognized directly in equity are transferred to profi t or loss in the same period or 
periods when the hedged item affects profi t or loss. 

b) If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a 
non-fi nancial asset or a non-fi nancial liability, or a forecast transaction for a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability becomes a firm commitment for which 
fair value hedge accounting is applied, the associated gains and losses that 
were recognized directly in equity are transferred into profi t or loss in the same 
period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects 
profi t or loss.  However, any loss or portion of a loss recognized directly in equity 
expected not to be recovered in the future is reclassifi ed to profi t or loss.

(11) Derecognition of fi nancial assets and liabilities
A. All or part of a financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights that 

compose the asset has expired. When all or part of a fi nancial asset is transferred 
and contractual rights that composes the asset is given up, the cash fl ow received 
from the clearing house within a certain limit is treated as sale. When the transfer 
of financial asset does not qualify as lost of contractual rights, then such transfer 
of asset is recognized as guaranteed loan. Reacquiring rights of such assets will no 
longer be accounted as derivative fi nancial assets.

B. All or part of a financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified 
in the contract binding the financial liability is either discharged, cancelled or 
expired. Where there has been an exchange between an existing borrower of debt 
instruments and the Company with substantially different terms, or there has been 
a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability, then the 
transaction is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original fi nancial liability and 
the recognition of a new fi nancial liability. Any gain or loss from extinguishment of 
the original fi nancial liability is recognized in the income statement.

(12) Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided according to the evaluation of the 
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collectibles of notes and accounts receivable and other receivables, taking into account 
the bad debts incurred in prior years and the aging analysis of the receivables.

(13) Inventories
Fuel inventories are physically measured by the crew of each ship and reported back 
to the Head Offi ce through telegraph for recording purposes at year-end. Valuation of 
inventories is based on the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the fi scal year.

(14) Long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method
A. Long-term equity investments in which the Company holds more than 20% of the 

investee company’s voting shares or has the ability to exercise signifi cant infl uence 
on the investee’s operational decisions are accounted for under the equity method. 
The excess of the initial investment cost over the acquired net asset value of the 
investee attributable to goodwill is no longer amortized, effective January 1, 2006. 
Retrospective adjustment of the amount of goodwill amortized in previous year 
is not required. The excess of acquired net asset value of investee over the initial 
investment cost is allocated proportionately and applied as a reduction to the book 
values of identifi able non-current assets, and any remaining amount of such excess 
after this allocation is credited to extraordinary gains.

B. Foreign currency denominated financial statements of overseas subsidiaries and 
investees are translated into New Taiwan dollars in accordance with ROC Statement 
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 14, “Accounting for Foreign Currency 
Transactions and Translation of Foreign Financial Statements”. The translation 
differences are recorded as “cumulative translation adjustments” under stockholders’ 
equity.

(15) Property, plant and equipment
A. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Interests incurred on the loans 

used to bring the assets to the condition and location necessary for their intended 
uses are capitalized.

B. Major improvements and renewals are capitalized and depreciated accordingly. 
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

C. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis according to the respective 
assets’ useful lives regulated by the Ministry of Finance plus one year for salvage 
value.

D. For ships and equipment that are still in use after expiration of their useful life, 
depreciation is provided based on the original method and the reassessed useful 
life and salvage value. For other assets that are still in use after expiration of their 
useful life, depreciation is provided based on the original method to the extent 
that the salvage value falls below $3,000. Where impairment loss is recognized, 
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property, plant and equipment shall be depreciated over their remaining useful 
life based on their carrying value adjusted after the impairment loss.

(16) Deferred charges
Deferred charges refer to the expenses incurred for decoration, issuance of corporate 
bonds, computer software and cable installation. The expenses incurred for decoration 
are amortized on a straight-line basis over fi ve years, expenses incurred for issuance 
of corporate bonds are amortized over the issuance period, expenses incurred for 
issuance of convertible bonds are amortized over the period from the issuance date 
to the expiry date of the redemption rights and the remaining deferred charges are 
amortized over 2-3 years.

(17) Impairment of non-fi nancial assets
The Group recognizes impairment loss when there is indication that the recoverable 
amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value less costs to 
sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction 
after deducting any direct incremental disposal costs. The value in use is the present 
value of estimated future cash fl ows to be derived from continuing use of the asset and 
from its disposal at the end of its useful life. When the impairment no longer exists, the 
impairment loss recognized in prior years shall be recovered. However, impairment loss 
of goodwill is not recoverable.

(18) Convertible bonds
Bonds payable issued before December 31, 2005 are accounted for as follows:
A. Convertible bonds are stated at their issuance price. The excess of the redemption 

price over the face value of the convertible bonds is amortized using the interest 
method over the redemption period.

B. When bonds are converted, the par value of the bonds is credited to common stock 
and any excess is credited to capital reserve. No gain or loss is recognized on bond 
conversion.

C. Expenditures incurred on issuance of convertible bonds are classified as deferred 
assets and amortized over the life of the bonds. In cases where the bonds are 
converted or redeemed before the maturity date, the issuance expenditures are 
expensed in proportion to the amount of bonds converted or redeemed.

D. Where bonds are not redeemed during the redemption period, the interest on 
redemption is amortized under the interest method over the remaining life of the 
bonds. If the fair value of the underlying shares at the expiry date of the redemption 
option exceeds the redemption price, the interest on redemption is reclassifi ed to 
capital reserve.
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(19) Pensions
A. The Company and its subsidiary-TTSC’s pension plan applies to all permanent 

employees. Under the defined benefit pension plan, net periodic pension costs are 
recognized in accordance with the actuarial calculations. Net periodic pension costs 
include service cost, interest cost, expected return on plan assets, and amortization of 
unrecognized net transition obligation and gains or losses on plan assets. Unrecognized 
net transition obligation is amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years.

B. The Labor Pension Act (“the Act”), which adopts a defined contribution scheme, 
took effect from July 1, 2005. In accordance with the Act, employees of the Company 
and its subsidiary-TTSC’s  may elect to be subject to either the Act, and maintain 
their seniority before the enforcement of the Act, or the pension mechanism of the 
Labor Standards Law. For employees subject to the Act, the Company and TTSC 
shall make monthly contributions to the employees’ individual pension accounts on 
a basis no less than 6% of the employees’ monthly wages.

C. In accordance with the ROC SFAS No. 18, “Accounting for Pension”, the Company 
and its subsidiary-TTSC recognize pension costs based on the actuarial report. Under 
the defi ned benefi t pension scheme, net periodic pension cost is contributed based 
on the actuarial report, which includes current service cost, interest cost, expected 
rate of return on plan assets, and amortization of unrecognized net transition assets. 
The part of accumulated benefi t obligation which exceeds fair value of pension fund 
is recorded as minimum pension liability on the balance sheet. Unrecognized net 
transition assets and net benefi t obligation are amortized on a straight-line basis over 
15 years. Prior service cost and gain or loss is amortized over the average remaining 
service period on a straight-line basis. 

D. The oversea subsidiaries were not obligated to contribute to pension accounts and 
to establish contribution plans by the local laws.

(20) Revenue, cost and expense recognition
Revenues are recognized when the earning process is substantially completed and are 
realized or realizable. Costs and expenses are recognized as incurred.

(21) Income taxes
A. Inter-period and intra-period income taxes are allocated in accordance with the ROC 

SFAS No. 22, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. Income tax effects arising from taxable 
temporary differences are recognized as deferred income tax liabilities. Income tax 
effects arising from deductible temporary differences, loss carry forwards and income 
tax credits are recognized as deferred income tax assets and a valuation allowance is 
provided based on the expected reliability of the deferred income tax assets. Over 
or under provision of prior years’ income tax liabilities is included in current year’s 
income tax.
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B. In accordance with the “Statute of Income Basic Tax Amount”, effective January 1, 
2006, the estimated basic tax amount payable in the future is considered by the 
Company in evaluating the reliability of deferred income tax assets.

C. Investment tax credits arising from expenditures incurred on acquisitions of 
equipment or technology, research and development, employees’ training, and 
equity investments are recognized in the year the related expenditures are incurred.

D. An additional 10% tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is 
recorded as income tax expense in the year the stockholders resolve to retain the 
earnings.

(22) Basic (diluted) earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the net income (loss) attributed 
to common stockholders and the weighted-average number of common shares 
outstanding during the period. Any capital increase (reduction) through cash infusion 
(withdrawal), treasury stock transactions or other factors that would cause a change in 
the number of outstanding shares are incorporated in the calculation on a weighted-
average basis according to the circulation period. Adjustments are made retroactively 
to the weighted-average number of outstanding shares if there is any increase 
(decrease) in the number of outstanding shares which does not result in changes 
in the stockholders’ percentage of equity interest. Where the effective dates of the 
above mentioned events fall between the balance sheet date and the issue date of 
the financial statements, retroactive adjustments are also required. For the purpose 
of calculating diluted earnings per share, it is assumed that the convertible bonds 
are converted into the common stock on the date of issuance of the bonds, and the 
weighted-average number of outstanding shares is adjusted for the dilutive effect of 
the convertible bonds.

(23) Derivative fi nancial instruments and hedge trading
A. Oil swaps and interest rate swaps are utilized to hedge against fl uctuations in interest 

rates and oil prices. The initial recognization and subsequent valuation of derivative 
fi nancial instruments are carried at fair value. The assets are recognized for positive 
fair values, the liabilities are recognized for negative fair value.

B. The changes in fair value of derivatives are recognized in the income statement when 
such instrument does not qualify for hedge accounting.

 Hedge relationship is classifi ed into the following three categories:
a) Fair value hedges: to mitigate the risk of changes in the fair value of a recognized 

asset or liability or unrecognized commitment.
b) Cash flow hedges: to mitigate the risk of volatility in cash flow. The volatility is 

attributable to a recognized asset or liability (such as all or some future interest 
payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction that 
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might affect profi t or loss.
c) Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation: to mitigate the risk of the 

exchange rate fl uctuations associated with net investment in a foreign operation. 
The Group used cash flow hedge to avoid the exchange risk arising from existing 
commitments.
C. The hedging relationship, management and strategy are documented at the 

beginning of a designated hedge. The hedge instruments, related hedge items or 
transactions and identification of hedged risk, and the method for measuring the 
hedge effectiveness, are also documented. The Group expects that the hedge could 
offset the volatility of fair value and cash fl ow during the period under hedge. The 
Group also assesses the effectiveness of hedge, and makes sure the hedge is highly 
effective during the period.

D. In the case where the hedge trading meets the criteria of hedge accounting, the 
accounting for hedging is set forth below:
a) Fair value hedge
 The fair value hedge is used to mitigate the risk of a fair value change of the 

recognized assets or liabilities, unrecognized commitment, or designated part 
of such items, which could arise from certain specifi c risk and affect income. In a 
fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the hedged items arising from hedged risks 
are recognized in the income statement. The gain or loss on derivative fi nancial 
instruments measured at fair value on the subsequent measurement is also 
recognized in the income statement.

 For the fair value hedge associated with hedged items that are initially measured 
at  amortized cost, the adjustment is amortized under effective interest method 
by the budging period and recognized in the income statement. The amortization 
begins either when the adjustment is recognized or when hedge accounting 
ceases to apply.

 For the unrecognized commitment that is designated as a hedge item, the 
cumulative fair value changes due to hedged risk are classified as assets or 
liabilities and recognized in the income statement.
The Group discontinues hedge accounting when the hedging instrument is 
settled, sold, terminated or exercised, no longer qualifi es for hedge since it does 
not meet the criteria of hedge relationship, or when the Group decides to revoke 
the designation.

b) Cash fl ow hedge
 Cash flow hedge avoids risk of volatility in cash flow arising from specific risks 

associated with recognized assets or liabilities, or highly expected transaction 
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which will affect income statement. The gain or loss that is attributable to effective 
hedge is recognized in equity directly and that is attributable to ineffective hedge 
is recognized in income statement.

 In the case where the expected transaction being hedged is likely to result in the 
recognition of financial assets or financial liabilities, the gain or loss previously 
recognized directly as adjustments in equity is to be transferred to income 
statement as profi t or loss in the period when such assets or liabilities affect net 
income. In other cases where the expected transaction under hedge is likely to 
result in the recognition of non-fi nancial assets or non-fi nancial liabilities, the gain 
or loss previously recognized directly as adjustments in equity for such hedging 
instrument is treated as valuation adjustments to the book value of such assets or 
liabilities.

 When the occurrence of the expected transaction is deemed unlikely, the 
accumulated profit or loss previously recognized as adjustments in equity is 
recognized as profit or loss for the period. When hedging instruments are 
matured, sold, terminated or executed, or when the Group cancelled designated 
hedging instruments under initial recognition, the accumulated amount previously 
recognized directly as adjustments in equity remains in equity as an adjustment 
item when such expected transaction does occur. However, when such expected 
transaction is not likely to occur, the accumulated amount is recognized in current 
income.

c) Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation
 Accounting for hedge of net investment in a foreign operation is similar to 

accounting for cash fl ow hedge.  The hedge instruments are recognized directly 
in equity when deemed effective and recognized in the income statement when 
deemed ineffective. Cumulative gains or losses recognized as adjustments in 
equity are transferred to income statement upon disposal of foreign operation.

(24) Use of estimates
A. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the fi nancial statements and the amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
assumptions and estimates.

B. Accrued expenses are recorded at the amounts stated in the original supporting 
documents. Foreign port charges without supporting documents are estimated 
based on past records and period-end sailing schedules. Differences between the 
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expenses actually incurred in the following year and the estimated accrued expenses 
are credited or charged to operating costs or expenses in the following year.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
(1) Effective January 1, 2006, the Group adopted the Statement of Financial Accounting 

Standards (SFAS) No. 34, "Accounting for Financial Instruments" and SFAS No. 36, 
"Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Instruments". All financial instruments on 
hand as of the effective date are recognized according to the following:
A. Transactions which were designated as a hedge prior to the effective date 

For designated hedge transaction prior to the effective date which does not qualify 
for conditions of an effective hedge accounting is no longer applicable since the 
effective date. No retroactive adjustment is required for prior year accounting and 
relevant SFAS is to be complied with.

B. Accounting for derivative instruments 
 The Group recognizes all derivative fi nancial instruments either as assets or liabilities 

at fair value. With the exception of those designated as hedging instruments, the 
difference between the carrying value and the fair value of all derivative financial 
instruments is recognized as cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles.

C. Accounting for fi nancial instruments at fair value through profi t or loss and amortized 
cost

 The Group reclassified its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value and 
amortized cost according to appropriated categories as of the effective date and 
measured each at fair value and amortized cost, respectively. Difference between 
the carrying value and the fair value of the fi nancial instruments at fair value through 
profi t or loss is recognized as cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles. 
Difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the fi nancial instruments 
either measured at amortized cost or classifi ed under the available-for-sale fi nancial 
instruments, and the derivatives which are associated with cash fl ow hedge or net 
investment hedge for foreign operation are recognized directly in equity.

D. Accounting for cash fl ow hedge
 The Group reclassifi ed the deferred income and loss incurred for cash fl ow hedge 

before the effective date that still qualify for conditions of an effective hedge since 
effective date to adjustment item in equity.

E. Accounting for the non-monetary assets denominated in foreign currency
 The Group revalues the costs of its non-monetary assets denominated in foreign 

currencies originally carried at costs using the prevailing exchange rate at the trade 
date. Cumulative loss originally recognized in equity is then transferred to other 
fi nancial assets.
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The effects of the above changes in accounting principles on the consolidated fi nancial 
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2006 are set forth as follows:

 Recognized as 
Cumulative 

 Effect of Changes in 
Accounting Principles    

 Recognized as 
Adjustments 

in Equity        
Pre tax After tax  Pre tax After tax

Financial assets at fair value
through profi t or loss-current $97,411  $91,182  $-  $-

Derivative fi nancial assets held
For hedging-current - - 169,983 127,487

Available-for-sale fi nancial
assets–non current - - 72,213 72,213

Held-to-maturity fi nancial
assets-non current - - 3,799 2,849

Debt investment with no active
market-non current - - (367) (367)

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profi t or loss-current (251,718) (194,552) - -

Derivative fi nancial liabilities
held for hedging-non current - - (75,574) (56,681)

Financial liabilities accounted
for by the cost method-non 
current - - (9,004) (9,004)

Total ($154,307) ($103,370)  $161,050  $136,497

Pre tax After tax  
Effect to earnings per share (EPS): (In dollars)

Basic EPS ($0.05) ($0.03)
Diluted EPS ($0.05) ($0.03)

(2) The difference between initial investment and the net worth of investees’ equity for 
long-term investments under the equity method was amortized on a straight line 
basis over 5 years.  Pursuant to the newly revised SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Long-
Term Investment in Equity Securities”, effective January 1, 2006, such difference is 
recognized in accordance with the guidelines related to amortization of acquisition 
costs, as stated in SFAS No. 25 “Business combination-Purchase Price Accounting”.  
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Difference attributable to goodwill is no longer amortized.  Such changes in accounting 
principles had no effect on net income and EPS for the year ended December 31, 2006. 

(3) Effective January 1, 2007, the Group adopted the Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 37, “Accounting for Intangible Assets”. Such change in 
accounting principle had no effect on net income, EPS and total assets as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2007.

4. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS
(1) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31,
 2007  2006

Cash  $14,064  $14,306
Checking accounts 36,389 35,092
Demand deposits 28,667 17,960
Foreign currency deposits 8,347,461 1,705,377
Time deposits (New Taiwan dollars) 835,500 1,505,300
Time deposits (Foreign currencies) 12,301,275 6,843,788
Add: Unrealized foreign exchange gain

(loss) 38,951 (21,685)
 $21,602,307  $10,100,138

(2) Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss - current

December 31,           
2007 2006

Financial assets held for trading
Listed (TSE and OTC) stocks  $35,113  $94,081
Benefi ciary certifi cates 1,395,832 2,891,242
Bond investments - 13,948
Interest rate swap (IRS) 12,349 43,654
Currency exchange swap (CCS) 7,820 2,942
Oil swap 54,343 -
Structured fi nancial instruments 329,146 790,916

1,834,603 3,836,783
Adjustment of fi nancial assets held

for trading (192,366) 22,412
 $1,642,237  $3,859,195
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A. The Group recognized net loss of $530,229 and gain of $69,856 for the years ended 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

B. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding interest rate swap contracts are 
set forth below:

 December 31, 2007

Contract period Notional Amount Carrying Value 

Interest rate swap  03.08~07.08 NTD 500,000  $844

   05.03~09.03 USD 10,000 2,316

   04.07~09.07 USD 25,000 9,189

 $12,349

December 31, 2006

Contract period   Notional Amount Carrying Value 

 Interest rate swap  03.08~07.08 USD 5,000  $5,239

   04.05~07.09 USD 2,700 1,882

   03.08~07.08 USD 7,500 7,862

   05.03~09.03 USD 10,000 5,381

   04.05~07.05 USD 10,000 2,586

   05.03~09.03 USD 15,000 6,755

   04.07~09.07 USD 25,000 4,474

   03.07~08.07 USD 7,500 7,049

  04.05~09.03 USD 7,500 1,043

 06.01~07.12 USD 7,059 1,383

 $43,654

C. As of December 31,3 2007 and 2006, the outstanding currency exchange swap 
contracts are set forth below:

December 31, 2007

Contract period  Notional Amount Carrying Value 

Currency exchange swap  07.10~08.10 USD 48,000  $150

  07.11~08.11 USD 104,000 6,751

 07.11~09.05 USD 78,000 798

 07.01~08.01 USD 24,000 121

 $7,820
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December 31, 2006

Contract period   Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

Currency exchange swap  06.08~07.02 USD 3,000  $800

  06.08~07.03 USD 3,000 1,289

 06.09~07.09 USD 3,000 205

 06.09~07.03 USD 3,000 648

 $2,942

D. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding oil swap contracts are set forth 
below:

December 31, 2007

Contract period 
Notional Quantity

(Ton)     Carrying Value 

Oil swap  07.08~10.01          399,230  $4,961

 07.08~10.01          399,230 12,919

 07.08~10.01          399,230 4,293

 06.09~09.02          399,230 16,071

 06.09~09.02          399,230 16,099

 $54,343

 December 31, 2006: NONE.

E. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the contracts of structural fi nancial instruments 
are set forth below:

December 31, 2007

   Notional Amount  Carrying Value

Structural fi nancial instruments USD 5,730  

JPY 508,150 $220,581

December 31, 2006

 Notional Amount    Carrying Value

 Structural fi nancial instruments USD          22,632  

NTD          50,000 $776,184
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(3) Derivative fi nancial assets for hedging – current
December 31, 2007: NONE.

December 31, 2006

Contract period 
Notional Quantity

 (Ton)     Carrying Value 
Oil swap   06.09~09.02            5,000  $1,864

(4) Accounts receivable, net

December 31,
2007 2006

Non-related parties  $13,088,408  $11,813,706
Add: Unrealized foreign exchange gain 

(loss) 4,785 (1,422)
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (5,395) (5,290)

13,087,798 11,806,994
Related parties 357,193 384,488
Add: Unrealized foreign exchange gain 511 -

 $13,445,502  $12,191,482

(5) Other receivables

December 31,
2007 2006

Non-related parties
Accrued income  $3,987  $4,856
Tax refundable 14,210 13,927
Accounts receivable from disposal of 

investment
72,413 284,985

Accounts receivable from disposal of 
property, plant and equipment

- 616,459

Current portion of long-term installment 
receivable

27,841 275,422

Incentive from Kaohsiung Harbor Bureau 237,002                 -
Others 877,726 285,759

1,233,179 1,481,408
Related parties

Others 111,852 110,706
 $1,345,031  $1,592,114
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(6) Other fi nancial assets – current

 December 31,

 2007      2006      

Future transaction margin  $105,727  $106,083

(7) Inventories

 December 31,

 2007      2006      

Fuel  $1,240,019  $1,929,643

Steel and others 762,376 351,473

 $2,002,395  $2,281,116

(8) Other current assets

 December 31,            

 2007       2006      

Agency accounts  $2,968,366  $2,460,151

Agency reciprocal accounts 19,988 15,644

Temporary debits 72,916 102,974

Others 205,295 -

 $3,266,565  $2,578,769

A. Agency accounts
 The Group has entered into agreements with foreign agents to deal with the port 

formalities related to foreign ports such as arrival and departure of ships, cargo 
loading, discharging and forwarding, collection of freight and payment of expenses 
incurred with foreign ports. The above transactions are booked in the agency 
accounts.

B. Agency reciprocal accounts
 The Group has been appointed by Evergreen International S.A., Gaining Enterprise 

S.A., Greencompass Marine S.A., Italia Marittima S.P.A. and Evergreen Marine (UK) 
Limited and Evergreen Marine (Hong Kong) LTD. as their agent to pay the petty cash 
required by their vessels, crew salaries and insurance premiums in Taiwan. The above 
transactions are booked in the agency reciprocal accounts.
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(9) Available-for-sale fi nancial assets - non-current

 December 31,            
 2007       2006      

Listed (TSE and OTC) securities
Central Reinsurance Corp.  $490,801  $490,801
Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. 6,187 7,344

496,988 498,145
Add: Valuation adjustment 275,076 127,343

 $772,064  $625,488

(10) Financial assets carried at cost - non-current

 December 31,            
 2007      2006      

Non-listed securities  $5,040,770  $5,709,762

A. The Group’s investment in non-listed securities were measured at cost since its fair 
value cannot be measured reliably.

B. In April 2007, Taishin International Telecommunication Co., Ltd. purchased publicly-
listed shares of Taiwan Fixed Network Co. Ltd. The Company sold all its shares of 
Taiwan Fixed Network based on the purchase price of $8.3 (in dollars) per share. The 
Company’s investment cost was $700,000, and the purchase price was $581,000. As 
a result, a realized impairment loss of $119,000 was recognized for the year ended 
December 31, 2007.

C. In July 2007 and 2006, Power World Fund Inc. (PWF) reduced its capital at a 
conversion rate of 18.93% and 33.93%, respectively. The amount returned to the 
stockholders was $10 (in dollars) par value per share. As a result of the capital 
reduction, the proceeds received by the Company based on its proportionate equity 
interest in PWF were $3,409 and $9,261, respectively, and the carrying amount of the 
Company’s investment in PWF was written down by $3,409 and $9,261, respectively. 
No gain or loss was incurred.

D. On December 24, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution to 
participate in the issuance of common stocks for cash by GRETEC Construction 
Corp. and acquire 3,500 thousand common shares at $12.5 (in dollars) per share, 
resulting to a total investment of $43,750 which is recorded under fi nancial assets 
carried at cost.
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E. The shares of Classic Outlook Investment Ltd. and Everup Profits Ltd. have been 
pledged as collaterals for the loans borrowed by Clove Holding Ltd. Please refer to 
Notes D24 and F for details.

(11) Investments in bonds without active markets

Item              Period  
Coupon 
  Rate  

 December 31,       
 2007    2006   

Convertible Bond - Tungtex 
(Thailand)  Public Company 
Limited 

03.10.05 ~ 
03.10.13 

0%  $11,640  $9,686

Add: Unrealized exchange gain 517 1,445
 $12,157  $11,131

A. In 1997, the Company purchased US$180 thousand of the convertible bonds issued 
by Tungtex (Thailand) Public Company Limited (Tungtex). As Tungtex encountered 
fi nancial diffi culties, it defaulted at maturity of the bonds. Accordingly, the Company 
fully recognized the losses on the bonds in 2001. Tungtex subsequently filed an 
application to the court for corporate restructuring and reached a consensus with the 
creditors to reissue the abovementioned bonds. The convertible bonds allocated to 
the Company were recorded at their face value of THB15,737 thousand (NT$12,581 
thousand), and the Company recognized $12,581 thousand income under “non-
operating income – others” for the year ended December 31, 2005.

B. For stock conversion right of the above convertible bonds, please refer to Note D.22.
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(12) Long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method
A. Details of long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method are set 

forth below:

        Investee company           
 Percentage 

 of ownership 

Carrying amount          
December 
31, 2007     

December 
31, 2006     

Charng Yang Development Co., Ltd. 40.00 % $464,831 $434,098
Evergreen International Storage and 

Transport Corporation 39.74 % 7,561,859 7,553,108
Evergreen Security Corporation 31.25 % 53,677 48,385
EVA Airways Corp. 19.37 % 8,559,094 8,937,289
Taipei Port Container Terminal Corporation 27.00 % 491,319 225,340
Shanghai Jifa Logistics Co., Ltd. 21.06 % 276,267 271,003
Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. 40.00 % 72,825 80,629
Qingdao Evergreen Container Storage 

and Transportation Co., Ltd. 40.00 % 192,077 178,169
Kingtrans International Logistics (Tianjin) 

Co., Ltd. 40.00 % 133,200 65,089
Luanta Investment (Netherlands) N.V. 50.00 % 508,539 556,264
Balsam Investment (Netherlands) N.V. 49.00 % 5,951,433 5,276,207
Evergreen Shipping Agency (Singapore) 

Pte. Ltd. 51.00 % - 49,572
Evergreen Shipping Agency (Korea) 

Corporation 100.00 % - 71,684
Evergreen Shipping Agency (Thailand) 

Co., Ltd. 51.00 % - 33,766
Colon Container Terminal S.A. 40.00 % 2,068,862 1,883,190
PT. Evergreen Shipping Agency Indonesia 51.00 % - 27,592
Evergreen Container Terminal (Thailand) 

Ltd. 48.18 % 800,192 765,499
Evergreen Shipping Agency (India)

Pte. Ltd. 99.99 % - 1,635
Evergreen Shipping Agency (Australia)

Pty Ltd. 51.00 % - 9,910
Green Peninsula Agencies SDM. BHB 30.00 %         233,028               -
Total $27,367,203 $26,468,429
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B. Investment income (loss) accounted for under the equity method for the years ended 
December 31, 2007 and 2006 is set forth below:

December
31, 2007

December
31, 2006

Charng Yang Development Co., Ltd. $37,933 $32,101

Evergreen International Storage
and Transport Corporation 412,598   255,496

Evergreen Security Corporation 5,292  7,558

EVA Airways Corp. (362,585) (346,678)

Taipei Port Container Terminal Corporation (2,681) (4,486)

Toplogis Technology Corporation - (1,809)

Shanghai Jifa Logistics Co., Ltd. 6,390 13,369

Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. 15,961 23,592

Qingdao Evergreen Container Storage
and Transportation Co., Ltd. 18,000 16,181

Kingtrans International Logistics (Tianjin) 
Co., Ltd. (1,749) -

Luanta Investment (Netherlands) N.V. (158,800) (73,782)

Balsam Investment (Netherlands) N.V. 88,842 (1,342,442)

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Singapore) 
Pte. Ltd. 12,514 10,459

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Korea) 
Corporation 11,318 7,629

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Thailand)
Co., Ltd. 29,754 27,010

Colon Container Terminal S.A. 10,879 334,121

PT. Evergreen Shipping Agency Indonesia 11,497 4,209

Evergreen Container Terminal
(Thailand) Ltd. 31,066 72,020

Evergreen Shipping Agency (India) Pte. Ltd. 15,286 642

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Australia)
Pty Ltd. 5,296 7,696

Total $186,811 ($957,114)
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C. EGS, EGK, EMI, EGT, EGI, and EMA were acquired by Peony in December 31, 
2007. As of December 31, 2007, Peony’s equity interest were 51%, 100%, 51%, 
51%, 99.99% and 51%. The subsidiaries’ revenues and expenses were added in 
consolidanced fi nancial statements from the control date.   

D. The investment income recognized for the above investees accounted for under 
the equity method was based on their fi nancial statements audited by independent 
auditors for the corresponding periods except for Evergreen International Storage 
and Transport Corporation, Shanghai Jifa Logistics Co., Ltd., Ningbo Victory 
Container Co., Ltd., Qingdao Evergreen Container Storage and Transportation Co., 
Ltd. and Taipei Port Container Terminal Corporation. For the years ended December 
31, 2007 and 2006, investment income of $186,811 and investment loss of $957,114 
was recognized, respectively.

E. On March 1, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution for the 
Company to infuse additional cash in EVA Airways Corp. as a shareholder. The 
Company subscribed 58,159 thousand shares at $12 (in dollars) per share amounting 
to $697,906. The ownership decreased to 19.37% after the additional cash infusion. 
Therefore, the retained earnings decreased by $14,511. As of December 31, 2007 
and 2006, percentage of ownership was 19.37%.

F. On October 4, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution to sell all 
shareholdings in Toplogis Technology Corporation at $2.1 (in dollars) per share. With 
a disposal price of $2,100 and a carrying value of $2,254, the Company incurred an 
investment loss of $154.

G. On April 19, 2007 and December 24, 2007, the Company and its subsidiary-
Armand Estate (Netherlands) B.V.’s Board of Directors passed a resolution for the 
Company to infuse additional cash in Taipei Port Container Terminal Corporation as 
a shareholder. The Company subscribed 27,000 thousand shares at $10 (in dollars) 
per share amounting to $270,000. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, percentage 
of ownership was 27%.

H. On April 12, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution for 
its subsidiary-Peony and Evergreen Marine (UK) Limited to invest in Kingtrans 
International Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.  The carrying amount was USD4,000,000, 
and the percentage of ownership was 40%.
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(13) Other long-term investments

              December 31,            
2007 2006

Membership fee and service charges paid to 
Marshall golf country club  $312  $312

Membership fee paid to Mission Hills golf club 3,541 3,590
Others 6,603 -

 $10,456  $3,902

(14) Property, plant and equipment, net

 December 31, 2007                

Asset          Initial cost   
Accumulated
depreciation  

Net book
value 

Land  $2,145,939 $-  $2,145,939
Buildings 2,202,217 (653,209) 1,549,008
Loading / discharging equipment 8,005,496 (4,221,561) 3,783,935
Computer equipment 160,932 (115,637) 45,295
Transportation equipment 25,213,975 (14,085,782) 11,128,193
Ships and equipment 59,963,219 (21,350,332) 38,612,887
Dock facilities 296,619 - 296,619
Offi ce equipment 1,755,883 (1,040,531) 715,352

99,744,280 (41,467,052) 58,277,228
Prepayments for equipment 3,861 - 3,861

 $99,748,141 ($41,467,052)  $58,281,089

 December 31, 2006                

Asset          Initial cost   
Accumulated
 depreciation  

Net book
value 

Land  $2,166,681 $-  $2,166,681
Buildings 2,132,335 (590,949) 1,541,386
Loading / discharging equipment 7,836,660 (3,688,695) 4,147,965
Computer equipment 146,249 (92,135) 54,114
Transportation equipment 21,668,445 (16,388,488) 5,279,957
Ships and equipment 59,925,255 (18,934,294) 40,990,961
Dock facilities 531,633 - 531,633
Offi ce equipment 306,358 (233,628) 72,730

94,713,616 (39,928,189) 54,785,427
Prepayments for equipment 100,210 - 100,210

 $94,813,826 ($39,928,189)  $54,885,637
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A. All the aforementioned ships and equipment have been insured based on the market 
value of each vessel or the requirement of the creditor banks. As of December 31, 2007 
and 2006, the insurance coverage amounted to USD1,054,872 and USD1,675,260 
, respectively. In addition, the ships were covered by the protection and indemnity 
insurance with GARD. The indemnity amounts were unlimited except for oil pollution 
which was limited to USD 8 billion as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

B. The Group’s loading/discharging equipment has been covered by the general insurance 
for construction machinery with insurance coverage amounting to $6,514,031 and 
$6,474,428 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The fire insurance 
coverage for office equipment and building were $2,659,986 and $3,976,419 as of 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Container facilities were insured with full 
coverage amounting to USD272,146  and USD703,448 as of December 31, 2007 and 
2006, respectively.

C. The Group entered into a construction agreement with Kaohsiung Harbor Bureau 
to complete the extension project of Pier No. 116 of Kaohsiung Harbor. The Group 
is entitled to use the port free of charge for 16 years commencing from the date of 
completion. Upon expiration of the 16-year period, the Group is obliged to return the 
port to the Bureau but has the priority to lease the port. The construction project was 
reclassifi ed to dock facilities upon its completion on January 1, 1992, and is amortized 
on a straight-line basis over 16 years with the amortization charged to loading/
discharging expenses.

D. The Group entered into a construction agreement with Kaohsiung Harbor Bureau to 
complete the extension project of Piers No. 79~81 of Kaohsiung Harbor. The Group 
is entitled to use the ports free of charge for 10 years commencing from the date of 
completion. Upon expiration of the 10-year period, the Group is obliged to return the 
ports to the Bureau but has the priority to lease the ports. The construction project 
was reclassified to dock facilities upon its completion in the beginning of 2000, and 
is amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 years with the amortization charged to 
loading/discharging expenses.

(15) Long-term installment receivables

 December 31,            
 2007      2006      

Receivables from sales of vessels  $69,770  $371,367
Less: Unrealized foreign exchange loss (4,807) (21,451)

64,963 349,916
Less: Current portion (27,841) (275,422)
Long-term installment receivables, net  $37,122  $74,494
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A. The above installment receivables were derived from the sale of four vessels, GLEE, 
GLOW, GRUP and GALT, in 2001 and 2002 with a total price of USD54,648. The 
interest charged on the receivables is LIBOR (London InterBank Offered Rate) plus 
1.5%. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the accrued amount of the receivables 
was USD2,000 and USD10,737, respectively.

B. As of December 31, 2007, details of the long-term installment receivables to be 
collected in the following years are as follows (expressed in thousand dollars):

Term              Amount    
Within 1 year USD 857 

1~2 years  1,143
USD 2,000

(16) Short-term loans

 December 31,            
2007      2006      

Unsecured loans  $98,723  $834,000
Interest rate  1.75%~5.41%  1.69%~1.73% 

(17) Financial liabilities at fair value through profi t or loss – current

 December 31,            
 2007       2006      

Financial liabilities held for trading 
Interest rate swap  $3,542  $33,734
Oil swap 350,037 186,522
Currency exchange swap 801,696 14,822
Foreign exchange rate swap 289,230 234,388

 $1,444,505  $469,466
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A. The Group recognized net loss of $384,157 and $102,771 for the years ended 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

B. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding interest rate swap contracts are 
set forth below:

 December 31, 2007                
Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

Interest rate swap  05.03~09.03 USD 15,000  $562
 03.11~08.11 USD 20,000 357
 03.07~08.07 NTD 500,000 7,454
 99.09~08.03 USD 55,000 250
 03.07~08.07 USD 15,000 (3,495)
 04.05~09.03 USD 12,000 (650)
 06.01~11.05 USD 22,352 (916)
 06.01~11.05 USD 22,352 (750)
 05.12~08.07 USD 22,500 730

 $3,542

 December 31, 2006                
Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

Interest rate swap  02.07~07.07 NTD 125,000  $856
 03.11~08.11 USD 20,000 193
 03.07~08.07 NTD 500,000 23,754
 03.08~08.08 NTD 500,000 3,838
 99.09~08.03 USD 9,706 2,061
 06.01~11.05 USD 14,776 1,333
 06.01~11.05 USD 14,776 1,306
 05.12~08.07 USD 15,000 393

 $33,734

C. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding oil swap contracts are set forth 
below:

 December 31, 2007              

Contract period 
Notional Quantity

(Ton)      Carrying Value 
Oil swap  07.07~09.12 399,230  $347,246

 07.11~10.04 399,230 2,791
 $350,037
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December 31, 2006              

Contract period 
Notional Quantity

(Ton)      Carrying Value 
Oil swap  05.02~07.06 10,000  $-

 05.04~07.06 5,000 -
 06.08~09.01 7,692 109,738
 07.01~09.06 7,692 76,784

 $186,522

D. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding currency exchange swap 
contracts are set forth below:

 December 31, 2007               
Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

Currency exchange swap  07.04~08.04 USD 24,000  $1,627
 07.04~08.05 USD 24,000          1,896
 07.05~08.05 USD 24,000          2,689
 07.07~08.07 EUR 6,000         72,082
 07.07~08.07 EUR 6,000         72,440
 07.08~08.07 USD 52,000         36,685
 07.08~08.08 USD 24,000          5,766
 07.09~08.09 USD 24,000          8,120
 07.09~08.09 USD 24,000          6,163
 07.09~08.09 USD 24,000          4,932
 07.09~08.09 USD 24,000          6,178
 07.10~08.10 USD 52,000         32,261
 07.10~09.10 EUR 48,000         40,181
 07.10~09.10 EUR 24,000         16,866
 07.10~09.10 EUR 24,000         15,281
 07.11~09.11 USD 104,000         57,437
 07.12~08.12 USD 104,000         35,470
 07.05~10.05 USD 36,000        303,964
 07.10~09.10 USD 48,000         12,018
 07.10~09.10 USD 48,000         12,826
 07.11~09.11 USD 104,000 (148)
 07.11~08.11 USD 104,000 (2,638)
 07.11~09.11 USD 104,000 59,600 

 $801,696 
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December 31, 2006               
Contract period  Notional Amount   Carrying Value 

Currency exchange swap  03.04~07.03 USD 6,250  $7,195
 03.04~07.03 USD 2,500 2,775
 06.12~07.12 USD 12,000 4,852

$14,822

E. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding foreign exchange rate swap 
contracts   are set forth below:

December 31, 2007                 
Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

Foreign exchange rate swap  06.12~11.12 USD 162,000  $221,027
 04.05~09.05 EUR 25,000 68,188
 01.10~07.08 USD 2,000 15

 $289,230

 December 31, 2006               
Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

Foreign exchange rate swap  04.05~09.05 EUR 30,000  $27,431
 03.08~11.12 USD 716,000 206,810
 06.12~07.12 USD 6,000 147

 $234,388

(18) Derivative fi nancial liabilities for hedging – current

 December 31, 2007               
Contract period  Notional Amount  Carrying Value 

Interest rate swap  03.06~08.06 NTD 300,000  $2,335
 03.06~08.06 NTD 200,000 1,557

 $3,892

 December 31, 2006               

Contract period 
Notional Quantity

(Ton)      Carrying Value 
Oil swap  06.09~09.02 5,000  $84,462

 06.09~09.02 5,000 95,153
 06.11~09.04 5,000 46,705
 06.11~09.04 5,000 25,449

 $251,769
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(19) Accrued expenses

December 31,            
2007      2006      

Accrued expenses  $8,149,193  $12,660,486
Estimated accrued expenses 3,182,078 3,742,706
Less: Unrealized foreign exchange gain (12,721) (7,522)

 $11,318,550  $16,395,670

The estimated accrued expenses represent the estimated expenses to be incurred with 
the foreign agents and on the agency services rendered by the Group to the foreign 
marine transportation companies. The estimated accrued expenses as of December 
31, 2006 was $3,724,730, of which $2,204,030 was reversed as of December 31, 2007, 
constituting 59.17% of the estimated amount. The estimated accrued expenses as of 
December 31, 2005 was $2,544,448, of which $2,165,779 was reversed as of December 
31, 2006, constituting 85.12% of the estimated amount.

(20) Long-term liabilities due within one year

December 31,            
2007      2006      

Corporate bonds payable  $1,500,000  $4,134,400
Long-term bank loans 1,748,274 1,340,000
Long-term loans by its subsidiary 1,512,938 1,803,180

 $4,761,212  $7,277,580

(21) Derivative fi nancial liabilities for hedging - non-current
December 31, 2007:None.   

December 31, 2006             
Contract period  Notional Amount Carrying Value 

Interest rate swap  03.06~08.06 NTD 300,000  $6,926
 03.06~08.06 NTD 200,000 4,624
 02.08~07.06 NTD 80,000 394 

 $11,944 

(22) Financial liabilities carried at cost - non-current

December 31,    
Item             Period 2007  2006  

Stock Conversion Tuntex (Thailand) Public Company  03.10.13  $9,004  $9,004
Right Limited 
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The above financial liability is the embedded stock conversion right obtained by 
the Company through acquisition of convertible corporate bond issued by Tuntex 
(Thailand) Public Company Limited (TUNTEX) during the fi rst quarter of 2005. As stated 
in the terms of the agreement, TUNTEX can choose either to pay back by cash at face 
value of corporate bonds (THB15,737 thousand dollars) or convert to stock on the 
maturity date.  On initial acquisition, such transaction was not recorded separately, and 
subsequently measured at cost using the historical exchange rate.

(23) Corporate bonds payable

December 31,            
2007      2006      

Secured corporate bonds  $1,500,000  $4,000,000
Unsecured corporate bonds 797,000 3,116,200
Add: Accrued interest compensation 4,964 9,614

2,301,964 7,125,814
Less: Current portion (1,500,000) (4,134,400)

 $801,964  $2,991,414

A. On January 12, 2004, the Company issued its fi rst unsecured domestic convertible 
bonds (referred herein as the “Bonds”) at face value, totaling $4 billion. The major 
terms of the issuance are set forth below:
a) Period: 5 years (January 12, 2004 to January 11, 2009)
b) Coupon rate: 0% per annum
c) Principal repayment and interest payment
 Unless the Bonds are redeemed, repurchased, resold, converted or deregistered 

before maturity, or other events occur due to regulatory reasons, the principal of 
the Bonds shall be repaid in lump sum by cash at maturity based on the face value 
of the Bonds.

d) Collaterals
 The Bonds are unsecured. However, if the Company subsequently issues other 

convertible bonds secured with collaterals, the rights of the bondholders to claim 
their credits and the collaterals are set at the same rank as the holders of the 
convertible bonds issued subsequently.

e) Redemption of the Company’s option
(a) During the period from 3 months after the issuance of the Bonds to 40 

days before the maturity of the Bonds, if the closing price of the Company’s 
common stock at the Taiwan Stock Exchange is equal to or more than 50% of 
the conversion price for a period of 30 consecutive trading days, the Company 
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may redeem 100% of the outstanding bonds in cash at the redemption price 
calculated based on the predetermined yield rate on redemption within 30 
trading days after the abovementioned 30 consecutive trading days. The yield 
rate on redemption is 0.20% per annum during the period from 3 months to 
3 years after the Bonds’ issuance. During the period from 3 years after the 
Bonds’ issuance to 40 days before the maturity of the Bonds, the Bonds are 
redeemable at their face value.

(b) During the period from 3 months after the issuance of the Bonds to 40 days 
before the maturity of the Bonds, if the total amount of the Bonds outstanding 
after the conversion by the bondholders is less than $400 million (10% of the 
total issued amount), the Company may redeem the outstanding bonds in 
cash in accordance with the terms stated in Paragraph (a) above.

(c) When the Company issues its redemption notice, if the bondholders do not 
reply before the effective redemption date, the Company may convert the 
bonds held by those bondholders into common stock at the conversion price 
in effect at the expiration of the notice period.

f) Redemption of the bondholders’ option
 During the period from 30 days before the 3-year maturity of the Bonds to the 

date of maturity, the bondholders may require the Company to redeem their 
bonds in cash at the face value plus interest compensation (i.e. 100.60% of the 
face value with a yield rate of 0.20% per annum).

g) Terms on conversion
(a) Conversion period
 The bondholders may convert the Bonds into the Company’s common stock 

during the period from 3 months after the Bonds are issued to 10 days before 
the maturity of the Bonds.

 The bondholders are prohibited from exercising their conversion right during 
the period from 3 trading days before the announcement of cash or stock 
dividends to the date of distribution of the cash or stock dividends.

(b) Conversion price
 The conversion price is the lowest among the three average closing prices 

of the Company’s common stock during the 10, 15 and 20 trading days 
before October 3, 2003 multiplied by 115%. If any cash or stock dividends 
are distributed before October 3, 2003, the closing price used in the 
computation of the conversion price must be adjusted for the effect of the 
dividend distribution. If any cash or stock dividends are distributed during 
the period from the date on which the conversion price is set to the date on 
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which the Bonds are converted, the conversion price is required to be adjusted 
in accordance with the adjusting formula specifi ed in the bond agreement. The 
conversion price at the issuance of the Bonds was set at $28.60 (in dollars). On 
December 31, 2007, the adjusted conversion price was $21.85 (in dollars).

h) Others
(a) Entitlement to cash dividends
 The bondholders who request to convert the Bonds on a date which is more than 

3 trading days before the announcement of cash dividends are entitled to the 
cash dividends resolved by the stockholders in the current year.

 The bondholders who request to convert the Bonds 3 trading days before the 
announcement of cash dividends or later are not entitled to the cash dividends 
resolved by the stockholders in the current year, but are entitled to the cash 
dividends resolved by the stockholders in the following year.

(b) The affi liated companies of the Company may subscribe the Bonds, but do not 
have the right to convert the Bonds into the Company’s common stock.

B.On September 6, 2004, the Company issued its second unsecured domestic convertible 
bonds (referred herein as the “Second Bonds”) at face value, totaling $4.5 billion. The 
major terms of the issuance are set forth below:
a) Period: 5 years (September 6, 2004 to September 5, 2009)
b) Coupon rate: 0% per annum
c) Principal repayment and interest payment
 Unless the Second Bonds are redeemed, repurchased, resold, converted or 

deregistered before maturity, or other events occur due to regulatory reasons, the 
principal of the Second Bonds shall be repaid in lump sum by cash at maturity based 
on the face value of the Second Bonds.

d) Collaterals
 The Second Bonds are unsecured. However, if the Company subsequently issues 

other convertible bonds secured with collaterals, the rights of the holders of the 
Second Bonds to claim their credits and the collaterals are set at the same rank as 
the holders of the convertible bonds issued subsequently.

e) Redemption of the Company’s option
(a) During the period from 3 months after the Second Bonds are issued to 40 days 

before the maturity of the Second Bonds, if the closing price of the Company’s 
common stock at the Taiwan Stock Exchange is equal to or more than 50% of the 
conversion price for a period of 30 consecutive trading days, the Company may 
redeem the outstanding bonds in cash at the face value of the Second Bonds 
within 30 trading days after the abovementioned 30 consecutive trading days. 
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(b) During the period from 3 months after the Second Bonds are issued to 40 days 
before the maturity of the Second Bonds, if the total amount of the Second 
Bonds outstanding after the conversion by the bondholders is less than $450 
million (10% of the total issued amount), the Company may redeem the 
outstanding bonds at their face value any time during the 40 days before the 
maturity of the Second Bonds.

(c) When the Company issues its redemption notice, if the bondholders do not 
reply before the effective redemption date, the Company may convert the 
bonds held by those bondholders into common stock at the conversion price 
in effect at the expiration of the notice period.

f) Redemption of the bondholders’ option
 During the period from 30 days before the 3.5-year maturity of the Second Bonds 

to the date of maturity, the bondholders may require the Company to redeem 
their bonds in cash at the face value.

g) Terms on conversion
(a) Conversion period
 The bondholders may convert the Second Bonds into the Company’s common 

stock during the period from 1 month after the Second Bonds are issued to 10 
days before the maturity of the Second Bonds.

 The bondholders are prohibited from exercising their conversion right during 
the period from 3 trading days before the announcement of cash or stock 
dividends to the date of distribution of the cash or stock dividends.

(b) Conversion price
 The conversion price can be any of the three average closing prices of the 

Company’s common stock during the 1, 3 and 5 trading days before August 
24, 2004 multiplied by 103%. If any cash or stock dividends are distributed 
before August 24, 2004, the closing price used in the computation of the 
conversion price must be adjusted for the effect of the dividend distribution. 
If any cash or stock dividends are distributed during the period from the date 
on which the conversion price is set to the date on which the Second Bonds 
are converted, the conversion price is required to be adjusted in accordance 
with the adjusting formula specifi ed in the bond agreement. The conversion 
price at the issuance of the Second Bonds was set at $28.50 (in dollars). On 
December 31, 2007, the adjusted conversion price was $18.27 (in dollars).

h) Entitlement to cash dividends
 The bondholders who request to convert the Second Bonds during the period 

from January 1 of the current year to any date which is more than 3 trading days 
before the announcement of cash or stock dividends are entitled to the cash or 
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stock dividends resolved by the stockholders in the current year. Conversion of 
the Second Bonds is prohibited during the period from 3 trading days before the 
announcement of cash or stock dividends to the ex-dividend date.

 The bondholders who request to convert the Second Bonds during the period 
from the date following the ex-dividend date to December 31 of the current year 
are not entitled to the cash or stock dividends resolved by the stockholders in 
the current year, but are entitled to the cash or stock dividends resolved by the 
stockholders in the following year.

(24) Long-term loans

December 31,            

2007      2006      

Secured bank loans  $2,388,569  $1,333,333

Unsecured bank loans 19,508,381 20,005,461

Add: exchange loss 6,253 -

21,903,203 21,338,794

Less: Current portion (3,261,212) (3,143,180)

Others 3,220,897 2,835,585

 $21,862,888  $21,031,199

Interest rate  2.18%~6.60%  2.18%~6.60% 

Please refer to Note 6 for details of the collaterals pledged for the above long term loans.
The above long-term loans $2,826,058 is its subsidiary – CLOVE fi nanced form Edge 
ware Profi ts Ltd. for Classic Outlook Investment Ltd. and Ever up Profi ts Ltd.’s equity. 
And the above stocks of them were secured with collaterals.

(25) Pension liabilities
A. The Labor Pension Act (“the Act”), which adopts a defined contribution scheme, 

took effect from July 1, 2005. In accordance with the Act, employees of the 
Company and its subsidiary-TTSC may elect to be subject to either the Act, and 
maintain their seniority before the enforcement of the Act, or the pension mechanism 
of the Labor Standards Law. Under the defi ned benefi t pension plan, two units are 
accrued for each year of service for the fi rst 15 years and one unit for each additional 
year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based on 
the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the 
last 6 months prior to retirement. The Company and its subsidiary-TTSC contribute 
monthly an amount equal to 9.6% of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages 
to the retirement fund deposited with Trust Division of Bank of Taiwan, the trustee, 
under the name of the independent retirement fund committee.
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(1) Actuarial assumptions

For the year ended 
December 31, 2007

For the year ended 
December 31, 2006

Discount rate 3.25% 3.25%
Increase in future salary level 2.00% 1.50%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 3.25% 3.25%

(2) The Company and its subsidiary-TTSC’s pension fund is deposited in an exclusive 
account with the Trust Division of Bank of Taiwan. Reconciliation of the funded status of 
the plan to the carrying amount of accrued pension liability is as follows: 

December 31,            
2007      2006      

Benefi t obligation
Vested benefi t obligation (VBO) ($261,733) ($237,044)
Non-vested benefi t obligation (1,024,794) (1,004,445)
Accumulated benefi t obligation (ABO) (1,289,527) (1,241,489)
Effects of future salary increments (164,985) (148,744)
Projected benefi t obligation (PBO) (1,454,512) (1,390,233)

Fair value of plan assets 569,304 525,163
Funded status (885,208) (865,070)
Unrecognized net transition obligation 130,118 156,019
Unamortized prior service cost 20,895 22,502
Unrecognized loss on plan assets 541,138 554,655
Additional accrued pension liability (527,166) (584,432)
Accrued pension liability ($720,223) ($716,326)

(3) The pension costs comprise the following:

For the year ended
December 31, 2007 

 For the year ended
December 31, 2006 

Service cost  $65,284  $121,726
Interest cost 44,310 34,848
Expected return on plan assets (16,932) (15,718)
Deferred amortization

Unrecognized net transition obligation 25,900 25,900
Prior service cost 1,607 1,607
Unrecognized loss on plan assets 31,538 18,234

Net pension costs  $151,707  $186,597
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B. Effective July 1, 2005, the Company and its subsidiary - TTSC established a funded 
defi ned contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act.  
Employees have the option to be covered under the New Plan. Under the New Plan, 
the Company and its subsidiary-TTSC contribute monthly an amount based on 6% 
of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension 
accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefi ts accrued are portable when 
the employment is terminated.

C. The pension costs under the defi ned contribution pension plan for the years ended 
December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $175,224 and $200,989, respectively.

(26) Capital stock
A. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company’s authorized capital was 

$36,000,000 for both years, and the paid-in capital was $30,338,695 and $29,159,293, 
respectively, divided into 3,033,870 thousand and 2,915,929 thousand shares of 
common stocks, respectively, with a par value of $10 per share.

B. On June 23, 2006, the Company’s stockholders resolved to increase capital by 
capitalizing $1,907,617 of retained earnings. Accordingly, 190,762 thousand new 
shares were issued with a par value of $10 per share. The Company’s capital stock 
after the capital increase amounted to $29,159,293. The capital increase was 
approved by the Financial Supervisory Commission of Executive Yuan on July 12, 
2006 as per Letter Jin-Kuan-Zheng-(1)-Zi No. 0950130032 with the effective capital 
increase date set on August 20, 2006.

C. Details of the common stock converted from the unsecured domestic convertible 
bonds issued by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are 
set forth below:

For the years ended December 31,

2007 2006

No. of 
Shares

(in ‘000) Amount

No. of 
Shares

(in ‘000) Amount

First unsecured 
convertible bonds 45,899 $458,990 - $-

Second unsecured 
convertible bonds 72,041 720,412 17,643 176,430

117,940 $1,179,402 17,643 $  176,430
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(27) Capital surplus
The Securities and Exchange Act Law requires that capital reserve shall be exclusively 
used to cover accumulated deficit or to increase capital and shall not be used for 
any other purpose. However, capital reserve arising from paid-in capital in excess 
of par value on issuance of common stock and donations can be capitalized once a 
year, provided that the Company has no accumulated deficit and the amount to be 
capitalized does not exceed 10% of the paid-in capital.

(28) Appropriation of retained earnings and dividend policy
A. The sections of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation applicable to the 

appropriation of the 2005 earnings are as follows:
 According to Article 26 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, if there is any 

profi t for a fi scal year, the Company shall fi rst make provision for income tax, and 
cover prior years’ losses, then appropriate 10% of the residual amount as legal 
reserve. Dividends shall be proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved by the 
stockholders. Bonuses paid to employees shall be at least 1% of the total distributed 
amount and the remuneration paid to the directors and supervisors shall not exceed 
5% of the total distributed amount. The Company is currently at the stable growth 
stage. To facilitate future expansion plans, distribution to stockholders shall be in 
the form of both cash and stocks with proportions at 0%~50% and 100%~50%, 
respectively. To maintain the Company’s earnings per share at a certain level and 
in consideration of the impact of stock dividends on the Company’s financial 
performance, the proportions of cash and estimated earnings per share for the year 
in which the dividends are distributed decrease by more than 20% compared to prior 
year. The Company can also adjust the cash and stock dividends with proportions at 
100%~50% and 0%~50%, respectively, based on the Company’s fi nancial situation. 

B. On June 23, 2006, the Company’s Board of Stockholders resolved to amend the 
Company’s policy on dividends and distribution of earnings effective 2006. The 
newly revised policies are as follows:

 According to Article 26 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, if there is any 
profi t for a fi scal year, the Company shall fi rst make provision for income tax, and 
cover prior years’ losses, then appropriate 10% of the residual amount as legal 
reserve. Dividends shall be proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved by 
the stockholders. Bonuses paid to employees shall be at least 0.5% of the total 
distributed amount and the remuneration paid to the directors and supervisors 
shall not exceed 5% of the total distributed amount.  The Company is currently at 
the stable growth stage. In order to facilitate future expansion plans, dividends to 
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stockholders are distributed mutually in the form of both cash and stocks with the 
basic principle that the ratio of cash dividends to total stock dividends shall not be 
lower than 10%.

C. Legal reserve
 Pursuant to the Company Law, the Company is required to set aside 10% of its 

annual after-tax net income as legal reserve until the balance of such reserve equals 
the Company’s paid-in capital. Utilization of the legal reserve is limited to offsetting 
defi cit and capital increase. Appropriation of the legal reserve as cash dividends is 
prohibited.

D. Special reserve 
 If there is any negative stockholders’ equity item recorded by the Company, such as 

unrealized loss on the decline in market value of long-term equity investments and 
cumulative translation adjustments, the Company is required to set aside an amount 
equal to the amount of the negative stockholders’ equity item as special reserve from 
the after-tax net income. If the negative stockholders’ equity items are subsequently 
reversed, an amount not exceeding the reversed amount can be appropriated from 
the special reserve.

E. Appropriation of the 2006 and 2005 earnings as resolved by the stockholders on 
June 27, 2007 and June 23, 2006, respectively, is set forth below:

Appropriated
Earnings

Dividend Per Share
(in dollars)

2006 2005 2006 2005

Cash dividends to common 
stockholders

$877,045 $4,905,302 $0.30 $1.80

Stock dividends to common 
stockholders

- 1,907,617 - 0.70

Cash bonus to employees 33,620 70,000

Remuneration to directors 
and supervisors

7,000 60,400

 Appropriation of the 2006 and 2005 earnings were calculated using the following 
formula. After distributing the bonus to employees and the remuneration to directors 
and supervisors, the after-tax basic earnings per share for 2006 and 2005 decreased 
to $0.14 from $0.13 and to $4.23 from $4.19, respectively.
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Formula

After-tax net income Cash bonus to employees
Remuneration to directors and supervisors 

Weighted-average number of outstanding shares
(After retroactive adjustment)

2006 = (411,580 33,620–7,000)/ 2,911,327 thousand shares=$0.13

2005 = (12,223,911–70,000–60,400)/ 2,886,869 thousand shares =$4.19

F. Information relating to the appropriation of the Company’s 2007 earnings as 
proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved by the stockholders in 2008 is 
published on the “Market Observation Post System” at the website of the Taiwan 
Stock Exchange.

(29) Operating revenues

For the years ended December 31,     
2007      2006      

Marine freight income  $133,285,318  $128,862,289

Ship rental income          7,234,897         17,990,165
Commission income and

Agency service income            109,413            116,958
Container manufacturing income          2,338,463          1,833,136
Others 1,956,366 1,274,205

 $144,924,457  $150,076,753

(30) Expenses relating to personnel, depreciation, depletion and amortization
Personnel, depreciation, depletion and amortization expenses are summarized as 
follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2007          
Operating cost Operating expense Total     

Personnel expenses
Salaries  $1,574,729  $1,163,103  $2,737,832
Labor and health insurance         38,032          64,816        102,848
Pension        121,314          91,835        213,149
Others        118,575          35,039        153,614

Depreciation      3,856,378         845,759      4,702,137
Depletion              -               -              -
Amortization        626,053          27,101        653,154
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For the year ended December 31, 2006          

Operating cost  Operating expense Total     

Personnel expenses

Salaries  $1,984,539  $1,071,788  $3,056,327

Labor and health insurance         45,946          65,299        111,245

Pension        124,438         103,633        228,071

Others        135,492          43,872        179,364

Depreciation      3,694,167       1,363,128      5,057,295

Depletion              -               -              -

Amortization        206,436          49,952        256,388

(31) Income tax

For the years ended December 31,    

2007      2006      

Income tax expense  $1,411,168  $84,958

Add (Less):

Prepaid and withholding taxes (468,284) (602,258)

Separate income tax (337) (111)

Adjustments for changes in tax 
estimates      105,284           110,560

Net change in deferred income tax 
assets (499,063)         1,201,079

Changes in accounting principles                  - (50,937)

Income tax effect arising from equity 
adjustments 64,488 (64,513)

Income tax payable  $613,256  $678,778

A. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

December 31,            

2007      2006      

Deferred income tax assets  $507,350  $480,388

Deferred income tax liabilities ($2,072,708) ($1,546,388)

Valuation allowance ($827) ($1,122)
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B. Details of temporary differences, resulting in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as 
follows:

December 31,                

2007        2006        

Amount Tax effect Amount Tax effect 

Current items:

Bad debts  $556  $139  $786  $197

Unrealized foreign exchange 
(gain) loss (146,400) (39,054)     16,282       4,071

Foreign dividends          -           -      3,742         936

Loss (gain) on valuation of
fi nancial assets     81,025      20,256 (50,081) (12,520)

Loss (gain) on valuation of
fi nancial liabilities  1,014,844     253,711   431,511     107,876

Loss (gain) on valuation of 
fi nancial  liabilities for hedging      3,892         973          -           -

Loss (gain) on valuation of 
fi nancial assets for hedging          -           - (1,864) (466)

  Others    126,748      31,687          -           -

 $267,712  $100,094

Non-current items:

Unrealized investment loss          -          -      1,300         325

Deferred income on disposal of
shipping equipment    581,152     145,288  1,044,603     261,151

Unrealized expenses and losses     20,736       6,056     19,923       4,981

Pension expense    193,058      48,265    131,894      32,974

Loss on valuation of fi nancial 
liabilities for hedging          -           -    263,714      65,929

Property, plant and equipment      3,249         975 (108,397) (27,099)

Others (120,860) (30,214) (13,404) (3,351)

Equity-accounted investment 
income (8,007,681) (2,003,440) (6,004,017) (1,501,004)

Valuation allowance (827) (1,122)

($1,833,897) ($1,167,216)
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C. The 2006 and 2005 earnings which were not distributed had been assessed the 10% surtax 
amounting to $0 and $406,741, respectively.

D. As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s income tax returns through 2005 have been 
assessed and approved by the Tax Authority.

E. Unappropriated retained earnings

  December 31, 2007   December 31, 2006 

Earnings generated in and before 1997  $5,570,596  $5,570,596

Earnings generated in and after 1998         18,273,064          8,850,185

 $23,843,660  $14,420,781

F. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the balance of the imputation tax credit account was 
$2,514,432 and $1,605,161, respectively. The creditable tax rate was 11.98% for 2006 and is 
estimated to be 24.45% for 2007.

(32) Earnings per share

For the year ended December 31, 2007               

Amount        
Weighted-average

outstanding
common shares 

 Earnings per  
share (in dollars)    

Before tax After tax  Before tax After tax 

Basic earnings per share

Consolidated net income 
from continuing operations  $13,434,845  $12,023,677       2,943,402  $4.56  $4.08

Less: Minority interest (1,834,686) (1,641,975) (0.62) (0.55)

Consolidated net income $11,600,159 $10,381,702  $3.94  $3.53

Diluted earnings per share

Consolidated net income 
from continuing operations  $13,434,845  $12,023,677        $4.37  $3.91

Less: Minority interest (1,834,686) (1,641,975) (0.60) (     0.53)

Dilutive effect of common 
stock equivalents:

(Convertible bonds) 55 41         128,429          -          -

Consolidated net income 
attributable to common 
stockholders with dilutive 
effect of common stock  $11,600,214  $10,381,743       3,071,831  $3.77  $3.38
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For the year ended December 31, 2006               

Amount        
Weighted-average

outstanding
common shares 

 Earnings per  
share (in dollars)    

Before tax After tax  Before tax   After tax 
Basic earnings per share
Consolidated net income 

from continuing operations  $243,350  $158,392       2,911,327  $0.08  $0.05
Less: Cumulative effect of 

changes in accounting 
principles (154,307) (103,370) (0.05) (0.03)

Add: minority interest      356,558      356,558       0.12       0.12
Consolidated net income  $445,601  $411,580  $0.15  $0.14

Diluted earnings per share
Consolidated net income 

from continuing operations  $243,350  $158,392      $0.08  $0.05
Less: Cumulative effect of 

changes in accounting 
principles (154,307) (103,370) (0.05) (0.03)

Add: minority interest      356,558      356,558       0.11       0.11
Dilutive effect of common 
stock:
Convertible bonds        4,080 3,879         171,422          -          -
Consolidated net income 

attributable to common 
stockholders with dilutive 
effect of common stock  $449,681  $415,459       3,082,749  $0.14  $0.13
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5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) Names of the related parties and their relationship with the Company

Related Party Relationship with the Company

Evergreen International S.A. (EIS) Major stockholder of the Company

Evergreen International Storage and Transport 
Corporation (EITC)

Investee accounted for under the equity method

EVA Airways Corporation (EVA) Investee accounted for under the equity method

Evergreen Security Corporation (ESRC) Investee accounted for under the equity method

Charng Yang Development Co., Ltd. (CYD) Investee accounted for under the equity method

Evergreen International Corporation (EIC) Investee of the Company’s major stockholder

Evergreen State Transport Co., Ltd. 
(Evergreen State)

Investee of the Company’s major stockholder

Evergreen Star Transport Co., Ltd. (Evergreen Star) Investee of the Company’s major stockholder

Evergreen Airline Service Corporation (EAS) Investee of the Company’s major stockholder

Chang Yuag-Fa Charity Foundation Its chairman being the Company’s director

Chang Yung-Fa Foundation Its chairman being the Company’s director

Shanghai Jifa Logistics Co., Ltd. (SJL) Investee of Peony

Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. (NVC) Investee of Peony

Qingdao Evergreen Container Storage and 
Transportation Co., Ltd. (QECT)

Investee of Peony

Taranto Container Terminal S.P.A. (TCT) Investee of Peony

Italia Marittima S.P.A (ITS) Investee of Peony

Evergreen Container Terminal (Thailand) (ECTT) Investee of Peony

Colon Container Terminal S.A. (CCT) Investee of Peony

Gaining Enterprise S.A. (GESA) Investee of Peony

Green Peninsula Agencies SDM. BHB. Investee of Peony

PT. Evergreen Marine Indonesia (EMI) Investee of Peony (Note)

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Thailand)
Co., Ltd. (EGT)

Investee of Peony (Note)

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd. (EGS)

Investee of Peony (Note)

Evergreen Korea Corporation (EGK) Investee of Peony (Note)
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Related Party Relationship with the Company

Evergreen India Pte. Ltd. (EGI) Investee of Peony (Note)

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Deutschland)
GmbH (EGD)

Investee of Peony (Note)

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Ireland) Ltd. (EGU) Investee of Peony (Note)

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Netherlands)
B.V. (EGN)

Investee of Peony (Note)

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Poland) SP. ZO. O 
(EGD-WWX)

Investee of Peony (Note)

Evergreen Shipping Agency France S.A. (EGF) Investee of Peony (Note)

Evergreen Shipping (Spain) S.L. (EES) Investee of Peony (Note)

Evergreen Shipping Agency (Italy) S.P.A. (EIT) Investee of Peony (Note)

Seaside Transportation Service LLC (STS) Investee of ISLAND with signifi cant infl uence

Sinotrans Group Shenahen Co. (SGSC) Investee of SGTC with signifi cant infl uence

(Note) Peony has effective control over the investee December 31, 2007.

(2) Signifi cant transactions and balances with related parties
A. Operating revenues from related parties

For the years ended December 31,           

2007         2006          

Amount   

 % of Total 
 Operating 
Revenues       Amount   

 % of Total 
 Operating 
Revenues

EITC  $102,540 -  $102,298 -

EIC       2,007,331 1       2,186,834 1

EVA              51 -             130 -

ITS         900,534 -       2,038,503 1

EIS       2,065,525 2         426,028 -

GESA          21,203 -          24,603 -

STS               - -          60,224 -

 $5,097,184 3  $4,838,620 2
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B. Expenditures on services rendered by related parties

For the years ended December 31,           
2007         2006          

Amount   

 % of Total 
 Operating 
Costs and
Expenses Amount   

 % of Total 
 Operating 
Costs and
Expenses

EITC  $848,033 1  $908,118 1
EIC         378,970 -         309,157 -
ESRC          43,880 -          53,564 -
EAS           1,796 -           6,879 -
EVA           3,793 -          10,988 -
GESA 1,792,169 2 1,804,413 1
ITS         392,106 -         361,734 -
EIS         493,090 -         507,703 -
EMI          54,978 -          61,579 -
EGT          56,640 -          56,119 -
EGI          18,425 -               - -
EGS          16,868 -          45,304 -
EGK          12,334 -          21,450 -
SGSC               - -             184 -

 $4,113,082 3  $4,147,192 2

C.Asset transactions
a) Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment

Items        
December
31, 2007 

December
31, 2006 

EITC Ships and equipments  $-  $2,059,117
ESRC Offi ce equipment - 620
EIC Transportation equipment 3,845 -

 $3,845  $2,059,737

(a) In order to coordinate adjustments for routes and fl eet of ships, on March 1, 
2006, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to acquire the Uni-Crown, 
the Uni-Chart, the Uni-Concert, the Uni-Corona, and the Uni-Concord from 
related party-EITC, at a total price of USD 63,800. As of December 31, 2006, 
the ships were delivered and payments were made in full.
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(b) The EITC is accounted for under the equity method. According to regulations, 
unrealized gain from the above acquisition is eliminated proportionately to 
the percentage of shareholding. As of December 31, 2007, the unrealized 
gain amounted to $173,725 and was recorded as deduction from long-term 
investment.

D. Leases
a) Rental income (recorded as non-operating income) generated from the operating 

premises and parking lots leased to the related parties are as follows:

Lease Property

For the years ended December 31,           

2007         2006          

Amount   

% of Total
Rental 
Income Amount   

% of Total
Rental 
Income

EIC Offi ce buildings  $72,402 97  $58,580 93

Transportation 
equipment

1,664 - 1,938 3

EVA Parking lots 304 1 288 1

ESRC Parking lots 96 - 240 -

 $74,466 98 $61,046 97

b) Rent expenses (recorded as general and administrative expenses) incurred for 
operating premises and parking lots leased from the related parties are as follows:

Lease Property

For the years ended December 31,           

2007         2006          

Amount   

% of Total
Rental 

Expenses Amount   

% of Total
Rental 

Expenses

EIC Offi ce buildings  $39,834 96  $37,151 93

EITC Offi ce buildings 1,091 3 1,286 3

EVA Parking lots 738 1 1,382 4

 $41,663 100  $39,819 100
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c) Rent expenses incurred for the vessels and slot leased from the related parties are 
recorded under direct operating costs. Details are set forth below:

For the years ended December 31,           

2007         2006          

Amount   

% of Total
Vessel and
Slot Rental
Expenses Amount   

% of Total
Vessel and
Slot Rental
Expenses

ITS  $381,706 9  $361,339 9

EIS 119,862 3 118,354 3

GESA 1,798,309 40 1,813,302 40

EITC 633,167 14 709,444 18

 $2,933,044 66  $3,002,439 70

E. Receivables from and payables to related parties
 The receivables from and payables to related parties which bear no interest, are set 

forth as follows:

December 31,                     

2007         2006           

Amount   

% of
Account
Balance Amount   

% of
Account
Balance 

Accounts receivable 

EIC  $60,901 -  $86,262 1

EITC 24,556 - 24,844 -

GESA 1,663 - 1,932 -

EIS 13,474 - 21,793 -

ITS 257,110 2 242,123 2

STS - - 7,534 -

 $357,704 2  $384,488 3
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For the years ended December 31,           

2007         2006        

Amount   

% of
Account
Balance Amount   

% of
Account
Balance 

Other receivables 

EITC  $37 -  $91 -

EVA 45 - 37 -

EIC 74,666 6 74,651 5

CCT 3,275 - 3,103 -

EIS 30,065 2 - -

GESA 1,745 - - -

ITS 1,538 - - -

EGI               - - 32,591 2

Others 481 - 233 -

 $111,852 8  $110,706 7

Accounts payable 

EITC  $8,338 -  $10,067 -

EIC 23,430 - 8,355 -

ESRC 3,728 - 8,673 -

EVA 181 - 139 -

ITS 32,441 - 9,609 -

EIS 67,496 1 383,596 7

Others - - 550 -

 $135,614 1  $420,989 7

Other payables 

EITC  $- -  $35 -

EIC - - 808 -

STS - - 5,051 1

 $- -  $5,894 1
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F. Loans granted

For the year ended December 31, 2007           
Maximum
Banance  

Balance at
Ending   Interest rate 

Total Interest
Income   

Other receivables
EGI  $     32,591  $         -           - $         -

For the year ended December 31, 2006           
Maximum
Banance  

Balance at
Ending   Interest rate 

Total Interest
Income   

Other receivables
EGI  $     32,591  $    32,591 4.509%~5.822% $       203

(3) Endorsements and guarantees for related parties
Endorsements and guarantees provided to related parties are as follows:

 December 31, 2007  December 31, 2006 
TCT USD 85,592 USD 76,292
CCT USD 53,000 USD 53,000
ITS USD 10,000 USD 10,000

(4) Signifi cant contracts with related parties
A. The Company has entered into an agreement with EIC for various consulting services 

on business management, computer information, and shipping affairs. Except for 
payments made on behalf of the Company which are charged on actual amounts, 
the remaining fees are charged on an hourly basis or by cost plus method. The 
contract took effect on July 1, 1996 and continues to be in effect unless terminated.

B. The Company has entered into an agency agreement with EIC. Under the 
agreement, EIC has served as the Company’s agent for cargo forwarding and freight 
collection since 2002. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the amount receivable 
under the agency agreement was $60,901 and $85,577, respectively.

C. The Company has entered into an agreement with ESRC. Under the agreement, 
ESRC shall provide security service in the Taipei office, Kaohsiung office, and 
container yards. The service fees for Taipei offi ce was $940, and for the Kaohsiung 
office and container yards was $1,614.  The fees are paid monthly. For long-term 
contracts, please refer to Note G.
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D. The Company has entered into agency agreements with its related parties to 
manage petty cash required by their vessels, and payments of native crew salaries 
and insurance premiums in Taiwan. The transactions are recorded under “agency 
reciprocal accounts”. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the debit balances of the 
accounts are as follows:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

EIS $13,029 $10,748

GESA 4,861 4,895

$17,890 $15,643

E. The Company has entered into agency agreements with its related parties, whereby 
the related parties act as the Company’s overseas agents to deal with the port 
formalities related to foreign ports, such as arrival and departure of the Company’s 
ships, cargo stevedoring and forwarding, freight collection and payment of expenses 
incurred in foreign ports. The transactions are recorded under “agency accounts”. As 
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the balances of the accounts are as follows:
a) Debit balances of agency accounts

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 

EIC  $-  $53,517

GESA 27,282 15,434

ITS 1,756,597 121,141

EMI - 40,568

EGT - 67,154

EIS - 475,594

EGK - 6,533

EGS - 784

EGI - 10,191

 $1,783,879  $790,916

b) Credit balances of agency accounts

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 

EIC  $10,468  $-

EIS 1,164,898 1,005,432

EGH 322,467 -

 $1,497,833  $1,005,432
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F. The Company has been commissioned by its related parties to manage their vessel 
affairs. The management fees are charged monthly and are recorded as operating 
revenues. Details of the management fees recognized for the years ended December 
31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

For the years ended December 31,    
2007      2006      

EITC  $-  $94,028
EIC 229,322 -
EIS 99,569 90,774
ITS 1,710 -
GESA 21,203 24,603

 $351,804  $209,405

(5) In order to give back to society, the Company sponsored charities for the public good 
through Chang Yang-Fa Foundation and Chang Yung-Fa Charity Foundation totaling 
$43,000 and $1,500 in December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

6. PLEDGED ASSETS
The Company's assets pledged as collateral as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as 
follows:

Book value          

Pledged asset          
 December
31, 2007

 December
31, 2006 Purpose   

Restricted assets-current
-Time deposits  $184,411  $134,915 Performance guarantee

Property, plant and equipment 4,875,953 7,924,277 Long-term loan
Financial assets carried at cost

-Classic Outlook Investment Ltd. 3,324,774 3,335,974
-Everup Profi ts Ltd. 7 7

 $8,385,145 $11,395,173

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A. Details of the stand-by letters of credit issued by the banks on behalf of the Company 

are as follows: (expressed in thousand dollars)

Guarantor December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Bank of America USD 5,000 USD 5,000
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B. Endorsements and guarantees issued by the Company are as follows: (expressed in 
thousand dollars)

Companies receiving guarantees December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
TCT USD 85,592 USD 76,292
CCT USD 53,000 USD 53,000
ITS USD 10,000 USD 10,000

C. A former stockholder of the Company sold some of its shares through issuance of 
global depository receipts (GDRs). The issuance of GDRs was approved by the SEC 
on June 19, 1996 as per Letter (85) Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No. 35410.  On August 2, 1996, 
the GDRs were approved by the UK governing authority to be listed on the London 
Stock Exchange and were issued in Asia, Europe and the US. The initial number of units 
issued was 5,449,592, representing 54,495,920 shares of the Company’s common stock 
at $50.50 (in dollars) per share, and the number of supplementary units issued was 
817,438. In total, the number of units issued was 6,267,030, representing 62,670,300 
shares of the Company’s common stock at $50.50 (in dollars) per share, and the GDRs 
issued amounted to USD 115 million. Another 2,053,122 units, representing 20,531,279 
shares of the Company’s common stock, were issued during the period from 1997 to 
December 31, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, 7,799,086 units were redeemed and 
521,066 units were outstanding, representing 5,210,719 shares of the Company’s 
common stock.

D. In 1999, due to the confl icts from the contract to import and export goods, a lawsuit 
was filed against Shenzhen Greentrans Transportation Co., Ltd. (SGTC) by the other 
company. SGTC had authorized the agent lawyer to litigate, requesting an indemnity 
of RMB10,527 thousand plus the interest, by December 31, 2007. In this case, our 
company was judged by the Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court as the winning party 
of this lawsuit. Then, the plaintiff appealed the case to a higher court, the Gung Dong 
High People’s Court, which in 2001 had judged the company as the loser of the lawsuit 
and had secured part of the transportation equipment.  (As of December 31, 2007, the 
book value of the fi xed asset was RMB6,661 thousand) However, the company refused 
to accept the results and requested a retrial, and till the date of the presentation of 
the fi nancial report, the case is still being judged. The fi nal results of this case are still 
awaited, and the cost of the second case is not yet listed.

E. As of December 31, 2007, the medium-term loan facilities granted by the financial 
institutions with the resolution from the Board of Directors to finance the Company’
s purchase of new containers and general working capital requirement amounted to 
$20,625,442, and the unutilized credit were $12,496,230.
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F. As of December 31, 2007, details of the loading and discharging equipment acquired to 
support the operations of the No. 4 and No. 5 Container terminal at Kaohsiung Harbor 
were as follows: (expressed in thousand dollars)

Item Contract Amount Amount Paid Amount Accrued
Spreaders USD 598 USD 120 USD 478

G. As of December 31, 2007, the machineries that EHIC(M) purchased were as follows: 
(expressed in thousand dollars)

Item Contract Amount Amount Paid Amount Accrued
25-ton overhead cranes MYR 342 MYR 325 MYR 17
Mould MYR 22 MYR - MYR 22

H. As of December 31, 2007, the estimated amounts of rent payable in the following years 
under the long-term lease agreements entered into by the Company for the rental of 
ships and equipment were as follows:

Lessor
Amount

(in thousand dollars)
EITC USD 45,091
GESA  168,683
GMS  11,778
MCC  6,650
ESI  27,366
EIS  10,716
C19  123,597
CONTI  131,192
HF1  17,311
SAT  24,931
ES2  25,579
FS7  65,026
FSL  65,026
APOLL  1,420
ELEPH  4,969
HERME  1,692
PANAG  1,216
POSEI  1,726
TIGER  4,655
Quaterieme Leasing International Co., Ltd.  40,789
HALIFAX  212,021

USD 991,434
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I. As of December 31, 2007, the estimated amount of security service in the following 
years under the long-term contract that the Company entered into with ESRC amounted 
to $32,728.

J. As of December 31, 2007, the guaranteed notes issued by the Company for loans 
borrowed amounted to $3,073,500.

8. SIGNIFICANT CATASTROPHE
NONE.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On December 24, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to participate in the 
capital increase of Taipei Port Container Terminal Corporation as an original stockholder. 
In addition, the Company had paid the full amount on March 25, 2008 and completed the 
registration procedures. The Company paid $10 for each share and received 30 million 
new shares amounting to $300,000.



189

10. OTHERS
(1) Fair value information of fi nancial instruments:

December 31, 2007           

 Book 
value    

Fair value       

 Quotations 
 in an active 

market   

 Estimated 
 using a 

 valuation 
technique  

Non-derivative fi nancial instruments
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents  $21,602,307  $-  $21,602,307
Notes and accounts receivable   14,763,719            -   14,763,719
Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss

Equity securities       25,364       25,364            -
Benefi ciary certifi cates    1,321,780    1,321,780            -

Other fi nancial assets-current      105,727            -      105,727
Restricted assets-current      184,411            -      184,411
Available-for-sale fi nancial assets-non current      772,064      772,064            -
Financial assets carried at cost-non current    5,040,770            -            -
Bond investments with no active market-non
    current       12,157            -            -
Long-term receivables including current portion       64,693            -       64,693
Refundable deposits      108,167            -      108,167

Liabilities 
Short-term loans       98,723            -       98,723
Notes and accounts payable   25,722,972            -   25,722,972
Corporate bonds payable

(including current portion)    2,301,964            -    2,301,964
Long-term loans (including current portion)   25,124,100            -   25,124,100
Guarantee deposits received       41,428            -       41,428

Derivative fi nancial instruments
Assets

Interest rate swap (IRS)       12,349            -       12,349
Currency exchange contracts (CCS)        7,820            -        7,820
Oil swap       54,343            -       54,343
Structured fi nancial instruments      220,581            -      220,581

Liabilities            -
Interest rate swap (IRS)        7,434            -        7,434
Currency exchange contracts (CCS)      801,696            -      801,696
Foreign exchange option (FX Option)      289,230            -      289,230
Oil swap      350,037            -      350,037
Conversion right of stock        9,004            -        9,004
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December 31, 2006           

 Book 
value    

Fair value       

 Quotations 
 in an active 

market   

 Estimated 
 using a 

 valuation 
technique  

Non-derivative fi nancial instruments
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents  $10,100,138  $-  $10,100,138
Notes and accounts receivable   13,514,687            -   13,514,687
Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss

Bond investments       14,015       14,015            -
Equity securities       82,030       82,030            -
Benefi ciary certifi cates    2,940,370    2,940,370            -

Other fi nancial assets-current      106,083            -      106,083
Restricted assets-current      134,915            -      134,915
Available-for-sale fi nancial assets-non current      625,488      625,488            -
Financial assets carried at cost-non current    5,709,762            -            -
Bond investments with no active market-non
    current       11,131            -            -
Long-term receivables including current portion      349,916            -      349,916
Refundable deposits      559,771            -      559,771

Liabilities 
Short-term loans      834,000            -      834,000
Notes and accounts payable   23,080,134            -   23,080,134
Corporate bonds payable

(including current   portion)    7,125,814            -    7,125,814
Long-term loans (including current portion)   24,174,379            -   24,174,379
Guarantee deposits received        4,115            -        4,115

Derivative fi nancial instruments
Assets

Interest rate swap (IRS)       43,654            -       43,654
Currency exchange contracts (CCS)        2,942            -        2,942
Oil swap        1,864            -        1,864
  Structured and equity-linked fi nancial instruments      776,184            -      776,184

Liabilities 
Interest rate swap (IRS)       45,678            -       45,678
Currency exchange contracts (CCS)       14,822            -       14,822
Foreign exchange option (FX Option)      234,388            -      234,388
Oil swap      438,291            -      438,291
Conversion right of stock        9,004            -        9,004
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The unrealized loss that the Group recognized for the years ended December 31, 
2007 and 2006 due to changes in fair value estimated using a valuation technique 
were $1,478,558 and $437,602, respectively.

(2) The following summarizes the methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair 
value of fi nancial instruments:
A. The fair values of short-term financial instruments were determined using their 

carrying value because of the short maturities of these instruments. This method 
was applied to cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivable (payable), 
other financial assets, restricted assets, refundable deposits, short-term debts, 
short-term bills payable and guarantee deposits received.

B. For fi nancial assets at fair value through profi t or loss and available-for-sale fi nancial 
assets with quoted market price available in an active market, the fair value is 
determined using the quoted market price. When there is no quoted market price 
for reference, a substitute valuation technique is used to measure the fair value 
which incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in making 
estimations and assumptions for setting a price and wherein such information is 
available to the Group.

C. Held-to-maturity financial assets are those with fixed or determinable payments 
and a fi xed time-to-maturity which the Group has positive intent and ability to hold. 
Upon measurement, held-to-maturity fi nancial assets are carried at amortized cost. 
Any profi ts or losses incurred due to changes in fair value should be recognized 
in the income statement when the financial asset is derecognized, impaired or 
amortized.

D. Financial assets carried at the cost consist of unlisted stocks or those not actively 
traded in an active market. Their fair value could not be measured reliably; hence, 
such instruments are measured at cost in compliance with applicable accounting 
standards. For debt investments with no active market, the carrying value is used to 
estimate its fair value when there is no market price for reference.

E. Long-term accounts receivable are interest-bearing financial assets with floating 
interest rate, thus the carrying value is close to the fair value.

F. Fair values of long-term loans are estimated based on the present values of future 
cash fl ows.  For bank loans associated with fl oating interest rate, the carrying value 
represents their fair value.

G. Fair values of corporate bonds payable are determined based on quoted market 
prices when available. When the quoted market prices are not available, fair values 
are estimated based on fi nancial information or other information.
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H. Financial liabilities carried at cost are equity-linked instruments which are to be 
settled with equity instruments with no quoted market prices or with fair values that 
cannot be reliably measured. Such instruments are measured at costs in accordance 
with the rules stipulated in the “Guidelines for Preparation of Financial Statements 
by Securities Issuers”. 

I. The fair values of derivative financial instruments, except for paragraph “H” 
are determined based on the estimated amounts to be received or paid if the 
Group terminates the contract on the balance sheet date. Unrealized gains or 
losses arising from unsettled contracts are generally included. Ask price from 
counterparties are available for reference in setting fair values for the Group’s 
derivative fi nancial instruments.

(3) As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the fi nancial assets with fair value risk due to the 
change of interest rate amounted to $12,349 and $43,654; respectively, the fi nancial 
liabilities with fair value risk due to the change of interest rate amounted to $7,434 
and $45,678, respectively; the fi nancial assets with cash fl ow risk due to the change 
of interest rate amounted to $18,420,812 and $7,152,689, respectively; and the 
fi nancial liabilities with cash fl ow risk due to the change of interest rate amounted to 
$21,862,721 and $22,112,794, respectively.

(4) For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, total interest income (calculated 
using the effective interest method) on financial assets that are not at fair value 
through profit or loss amounted to $171,390 and $151,970, respectively, and total 
interest expense (calculated using the effective interest method) on fi nancial liabilities 
that are not at fair value through profi t or loss amounted to $162,646 and $140,001, 
respectively.

(5) Risk policy and hedging strategy
 The financial instruments held by the Group, other than derivative instruments, are 

composed of cash and cash equivalents, stocks, funds, bank loan, and corporate 
bonds. Such fi nancial instruments are held for maintaining adequate operating capital. 
The Group also held other accounts receivable and payable generated from operating 
activity.

 The transactions associated with derivative instruments mainly include interest rate 
swap and oil swap. The primary objective is to avoid the interest rate risk and fuel 
price variation arising from operating and fi nancing activities.

 The primary risks of fi nancial instruments are cash fl ow risk associated with interest rate 
fluctuations, exchange rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The risk management 
policies are set forth below:



193

Cash fl ow risk associated with interest rate variations
The Group's major exposure to cash fl ow risk associated with interest rate variations comes 
primarily from long-term fi nancing with fl oating interest. The Group adopts a combination 
of fixed and floating interest rate methods for loans to manage such interest rate risks. In 
addition, the Group also engages in interest rate swaps to minimize cost of borrowings.
As of December 31, 2007, the carrying values of the Group’s fi nancial instruments exposed to 
interest rate are summarized in the order of maturity as follows:
A. Fixed interest rate

Within 1 year 1~2 years 2~3 years Over 3 years Total    

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 2,936,790  $-  $-  $-  $2,936,790

Corporate bonds (1,000,000)         -         -            - (1,000,000)

Bank loan (500,000)         -         -            - (500,000)

B. Floating interest rate

Within 1 year 1~2 years 2~3 years Over 3 years Total    

Cash and cash equivalents  $18,576,113  $-  $-  $- $18,576,113

Bank loan (533,333) (266,666)          - - (799,999)

(666,667) (666,667)          - - (1,333,334)

(48,273) (96,547) (96,547) (103,443) (344,810)

           - (500,000)          - - (500,000)

           -         -          - (2,364,902) (2,364,902)

           -         -          - (300,000) (300,000)

Corporate bonds (500,000)         -          - - (500,000)

Loans            -         -          - (649,630) (649,630)

(931,729)         -          - (12,289,659) (13,221,388)

(581,209)         -          - (1,007,360) (1,588,569)

           -         -          - (161,366) (161,366)

           -         -          - (98,723) (98,723)

The interest of financial instruments associated with the floating interest rates is 
remeasured within 1 year period and the interest for fi nancial instruments associated with 
the fixed interest rate is fixed to maturity. The financial instruments not included in the 
above table are not subject to interest payments and thus do not have inherent interest 
rate risk. 
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Exchange rate risk
Although the Group is exposed to exchange rate risk, the Company has stable cash infl ows 
denominated in foreign currencies for meeting cash outfl ows denominated in foreign currency 
due to the fact that the Company operates in international transportation industry. In order to 
minimize exchange rate risk, the Company also engages in activities, such as borrowing of US 
dollar loans, etc.
Credit risk
The Group only deals with third parties with good credit standing. In compliance with the 
Group’s policies, strict credit assessment is to be performed by the Group prior to providing 
credit to customers. The occurrence of bad debts is also minimized by the Group’s practice 
of continuously monitoring and assessing collections on accounts and notes receivable 
and making adjustments to the credit terms granted to each customer based on the 
conclusion drawn from such assessment. Moreover, the Group is restricted from engaging 
in credit trading with other business units operating under other functional currencies unless 
permission from the highest instruction unit has been received.
Other fi nancial instruments held by the Group are subject to credit risk arising from the failure 
of counterparty to settle their contractual obligations as and when they fall due. Since the 
Group only deals with third parties with qualifying credit standings, no collateral is required 
by the Group which also represents that the maximum credit exposure amount equals to the 
relative carrying value. The maximum credit exposure amount for various fi nancial assets held 
by the Group is analyzed as below:

Financial instruments

December 31, 2007         

Carrying value   
 Maximum credit 
exposure amount  

Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss
Equity securities  $25,364  $25,364
Benefi ciary certifi cates         1,321,780         1,321,780
Interest rate swap            12,349            12,349
Currency exchange swap             7,820             7,820
Oil swap            54,343            54,343
Others           220,581           220,581

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets-non current
Equity securities           772,064           772,064

Financial assets carried at cost-non current 
Stock         5,040,770         5,040,770

Bond investments with no active market-non current
Corporate bonds            12,157            12,157
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December 31, 2006         

Financial instruments Carrying value   
Maximum credit

exposure amount  

Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss

   Bond investments  $14,015  $14,015

   Equity securities 82,030            82,030

   Benefi ciary certifi cates         2,940,370         2,940,370

   Interest rate swap            43,654            43,654

   Currency exchange swap             2,942             2,942

   Others           776,184           776,184

Derivative fi nancial assets for hedging-current

   Oil swap             1,864             1,864

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets-non current

   Equity securities           625,488           625,488

Financial assets carried at cost-non current 

   Stock         5,709,762         5,709,762

Bond investments with no active market-non current

   Corporate bonds            11,131            11,131

Credit risk refers to the risk of counterparty’s failure to settle contractual obligations as and 
when they fall due. The credit risk presented in the above table is the positive net amount 
of all contracts with positive fair values at the balance sheet date. The credit risk amount 
presented is the loss that may be incurred by the Group in the case of counterparty’s default. 
Since the counterparties of the Group are business enterprises or fi nancial institutions with 
good credit rating, the potential credit risk event is remote. In addition, since the Group is not 
concentrated in transactions with one individual or counterparty, no concentration of credit 
risk is evident.

Liquity risk
The Group achieves the objectives of effective use of capital and stabilization of capital by 
adjusting capital through the use of cash and cash equivalents, fi nancial instruments held for 
trading, bank loans and corporate bonds, etc. The operating capital of the Group is suffi cient 
in meeting capital on demand; therefore, no signifi cant liquidity risk is expected.
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(6) Hedging activity
Cash fl ow hedge
The Group also engages in oil hedging transactions to minimize oil cost arising from 
variations in oil price. The Group compares the oil price and settles the contracts by cash 
to offset the oil cost (an expected transaction) and to avoid the cash fl ow risk from oil price 
monthly. As of now, the effectiveness of hedging was within a range of 80% to 125%. In 
addition, the Group holds interest rate swap contracts in avoiding the variation between 
fl oating and fi xed rate, the effective hedge accounts for 80% to 125%.

 Hedge 
item      

Designated hedging instrument             

Period of
anticipated
cash fl ow  

Period of 
gain (loss)
expected 

to be
recognized 

 Financial 
instrument was
designated as

hedged
Instrument   

Fair value               

December
31, 2007 

December
31, 2006  

Floating interest 
debts 

 Interest rate swap ($3,892) ($11,944) 02~08 02~08

Expected oil 
transaction 

 Oil swap - (249,905) 04~08 04~08

Items                            
December
31, 2007  

December 31,
2006   

Adjustment amount in equity  $193,469 ($  267,194)

Adjustment amount from equity to income statement (193,469)     267,194 

Adjustment amount from equity to non fi nancial assets 
(liabilities)

                -           -

(7) OTHERS
A. Certain accounts in the 2006 fi nancial statements were reclassifi ed to conform with the 

2007 fi nancial statement presentation.
B.  2007, the subsidiaries did not own any shares of the Company.
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Evergreen Marine Corporation and Subsidiaries Greencompass Marine S. A.
Derivative fi nancial instrument transactions

December 31, 2007

A. Derivative fi nancial instruments transactions:
(a) The contract amounts (or notional principal) and credit risk (expressed in thousand 

dollars)

December 31, 2007

Financial Instruments
Notional Principal
(Contract Amount) Credit Risk

Interest rate swaps (IRS) USD 149,204 USD 179

Currency exchange swap (CCS) USD 444,000 USD 86

The above credit risk amounts are based on the contracts with positive fair values at the 
balance sheet date and represent the possible loss that will be incurred by the Company 
in the event of counterparties’ default. The counterparties of the Company are all well-
known banks with good credit ratings. Thus, the credit risk is assessed to be remote.

(b) Market risk
The interest rate swaps are utilized to hedge against fl uctuations in interest rates.  The 
foreign exchange options are derivative fi nancial instruments which are held for trading. 
Periodic reviews are conducted for evaluating the level of Subsidiary’s exposure to 
market risk, and a stop-loss mechanism has been established to minimize the impact of 
market risk on the Subsidiary’s operations.

(c) Liquidity risk, cash flow risk and the amount, timing and uncertainty of demand for 
future cash fl ow.
As no principals are exchanged upon settlement of the interest rate swaps and forward 
exchange options, no significant demand for cash flow is expected. Therefore, the 
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Subsidiary’s working capital is assessed to be adequate and no funding risk is dominant. 
In addition, since the interest rates, exchange rates and prices are predetermined, no 
signifi cant cash fl ow risk is expected. 

(d) The types, objectives and strategies of holding derivative fi nancial instruments
The derivative financial instruments undertaken by the Company are held for trading 
and non-trading purposes. The primary objectives of derivative financial instruments 
held for non-trading purposes are to mitigate risk of debt obligations and commitments 
arising from fl uctuations in interest rates and exchange rate. The hedging strategy of 
the Company focuses on mitigating market price risks. On the other hand, the primary 
objective of the derivative financial instruments held for trading purposes is to profit 
from exchange rate and price differentials.

(e) Financial statement disclosures for derivative fi nancial instruments
 

a) Interest Rate Swaps:
 The contracts are settled based on the difference between the spot interest rate and 

contracted interest rate. The amount received and paid upon settlement is recorded 
as a deduction from and an addition to the interest expense on shipping finance, 
respectively.

b) Foreign Exchange Option:
 As the Company has actual position in the underlying assets, full settlements are 

conducted at expiration of the contracts. The difference between the spot exchange 
rate and the contracted rate is recorded as foreign exchange gain or loss upon 
settlement.

B. Fair values of fi nancial instruments

December 31, 2007

Derivative fi nancial instruments Carrying Value Fair Value

Interest rate swaps (IRS) USD 149 USD 149

Currency exchange swaps (CCS) USD (11,872) USD (11,872)
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12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(1) Financial information by industry
The Company is engaged in only one single industry, i.e. international marine 
transportation and shipping agency. Therefore, no disclosure is required.

(2) Financial information by geographical areas
The Company is engaged in international marine transportation. Dealings with foreign 
ports, such as port formalities relating to arrival and departure of the Company’s ships, 
cargo stevedoring and forwarding, collection of freight, and payment of expenses 
incurred with foreign ports, are handled by overseas shipping agents. Therefore, no 
disclosure is required.

(3) Export information
As the Company is engaged in international marine transportation, every vessel sails 
between the major harbors in the world. Therefore, no export sales are reported.

(4) Information on major customers
The Company provides services to customers all over the world. No single customer 
of the Company accounts for more than 10% of the Company’s operating revenues.






